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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-36124
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Pennsylvania 46-2116489
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
825 Berkshire Blvd., Suite 400
Wyomissing, Pennsylvania 19610
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area o@d«€) 401-2900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(he@fAct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, par value $.01 per share Nasdaq
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefct:
None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e0B#turities Act. YesX] No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yedd No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €t filed all reports to be filed by Section 13 &(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 dutmg preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to file such reports), and (2) has been stiltgesuch filing requirements for the past 90 d¥§es No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsrstted electronically and posted on its corpokd&bsite, if any, every Interactive Data File regdito be submitted and

posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§&Bof this chapter) during the preceding 12 msifth for such shorter period that the registraa wequired to submit and post such
files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiiierrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorK§8229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herand will not be contained, to t
best of the registrant's knowledge, in definitivexy or information statements incorporated by mefiee in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendurterthis Form 10-K.[X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&@se the definitions of "large
accelerated filer", "accelerated filer" and "smatleporting company"” in Rule 12b-2 of the ExchaAgé

Large accelerated fileix] Accelerated filerd Non-accelerated fileid Smaller reporting companid
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). YesO No

As of June 30, 2014 (the last business day ofagstrant's most recently completed second fisaattgr), the aggregate market value of the votergraon stock held by non-
affiliates of the registrant was approximately $8ilfon . Such aggregate market value was comphiexeference to the closing price of the commaoslsas reported on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market on June 30, 2014. For purpofesaking this calculation only, the registransigefined affiliates as including all directorseeutive officers and beneficial owners
of more than ten percent of the common stock oQbmpany.

The number of shares of the registrant's commak statstanding as of February 20, 2015 was 1133662,
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant's definitive proxy staét for its 2015 annual meeting of shareholdetee(wit is filed) will be incorporated by refererioto Part 111 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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IMPORTANT FACTORS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEME NTS

Forward-looking statements in this document argestito known and unknown risks, uncertainties atiér factors that may cause actual
results, performance or achievements of Gaming.amlire Properties, Inc. ("GLPI") and subsidiafig® "Company") to be materially different
from any future results, performance or achievemerpressed or implied by such forward-lookingestetnts. Forward-looking statements include
information concerning the Company's businessegiyatplans, and goals and objectives.

Statements preceded by, followed by or that othenwiclude the words "believes,” "expects,” "aptes,” "intends," "projects,” "estimates,"
"plans,” "may increase," "may fluctuate," and saniéxpressions or future or conditional verbs sagchwill," "should," "would," "may" and "could"
are generally forward-looking in nature and notdrisal facts. You should understand that the feitm important factors could affect future results
and could cause actual results to differ materiatiyn those expressed in such forward-looking stetgs:

< the ability to receive, or delays in obtainitige regulatory approvals required to own and/orajgeour properties, or other delays or
impediments to completing our planned acquisitionprojects;

« the outcome of our lawsuit against Cannery GaBasorts LLC ("CCR"), the owner of the Meadows &eack and Casino, alleging among
other things, fraud, breach of the agreement aeddbr of the related consulting agreement;

« our ability to qualify as a real estate investirteust ("REIT"), given the highly technical andnaplex Internal Revenue Code ("Code")
provisions for which only limited judicial and admgtrative authorities exist, where even a tecHracéadvertent violation could
jeopardize REIT qualification and where requirersently depend in part on the actions of third paudieer which the Company has
control or only limited influence;

< the satisfaction of certain asset, income, degdional, distribution, shareholder ownership atiter requirements on a continuing basis in
order for the Company to maintain its intended tedacof REIT status;

« the ability and willingness of our tenants, aggers and other third parties to meet and/or perfibreir obligations under their respective
contractual arrangements with us, including, in s@ases, their obligations to indemnify, defend laold us harmless from and against
various claims, litigation and liabilities;

« the ability of our tenants and operators to n@inthe financial strength and liquidity necesdargatisfy their respective obligations and
liabilities to third parties, including without litation obligations under their existing creditifdies and other indebtedness;

< the ability of our tenants and operators to clgmmpth laws, rules and regulations in the openatid our properties, to deliver high quality
services, to attract and retain qualified persoanel to attract customers;

« the availability and the ability to identify $able and attractive acquisition and developmepbdpnities and the ability to acquire and lease
the respective properties on favorable terms;

e the degree and nature of our competii

« the ability to generate sufficient cash flows tosgze our outstanding indebtedne

* the access to debt and equity capital mar

e fluctuating interest rate

« the availability of qualified personnel and ourliéypito retain our key management persor

e GLPI's duty to indemnify Penn National Gaminug.land Subsidiaries ("Penn") in certain circumstarif the spin-off transaction described
in Part 1 of this Form 10-K fails to be tax-free;

e changes in the United States tax law and othee,dderal or local laws, whether or not specificdal estate, real estate investment trus
to the gaming, lodging or hospitality industries;

e changes in accounting standa
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« the impact of weather events or conditions, nattisdsters, acts of terrorism and other internatibnstilities, war or political instabilit

« other risks inherent in the real estate businastiding potential liability relating to enviromental matters and illiquidity of real estate
investments; and

» additional factors discussed in the sectiongledt'Risk Factors" and "Management's Discussioth Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" in this document.

Certain of these factors and other factors, riskbuncertainties are discussed in the "Risk Fatsarstion of this document. Other unknown or
unpredictable factors may also cause actual reguttsfer materially from those projected by tloeviiard-looking statements. Most of these factors
are difficult to anticipate and are generally beydme control of the Company.

You should consider the areas of risk describedabas well as those set forth under the headimgk"Ractors," in connection with
considering any forward-looking statements that tm@ynade by the Company generally. The Company mlatesndertake any obligation to release
publicly any revisions to any forward-looking staents, to report events or to report the occurreficemanticipated events unless required to do so
by law.
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This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes informatiegarding Penn National Gaming, Inc. and Subsid&("Penn"), a Pennsylvania
corporation. Penn is subject to the reporting requients of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Conomi§SEC") and is required to file with the
SEC annual reports containing audited financiabimhation and quarterly reports containing unaudifatancial information. The information
related to Penn provided in this Annual Report amrir 10-K has been derived from public filings. Vigéhnot independently verified this
information. We have no reason to believe that softirmation is inaccurate in any material respesfe are providing this data for information
purposes only. Penn's filings with the SEC carobed atwww.sec.gov.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the terms "w&$," "our," the "Company" and "GLPI" refer to Geng and Leisure Properties, Inc. and
subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwis

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

GLPI is a self-administered and self-managed Pdwaisia REIT. The Company was formed from the 2G3ftee spin-off of the real estate
assets of Penn. GLPI was incorporated in PennsiwanFebruary 13, 2013, as a wholly-owned subsidiéPenn. On November 1, 2013, Penn
contributed to GLPI, through a series of interraporate restructurings, substantially all of teeeds and liabilities associated with Penn's real
property interests and real estate developmenhbssj as well as the assets and liabilities ofyabd Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino
Perryville, which are referred to as the "TRS Prtes," and then spun-off GLPI to holders of Perosmon and preferred stock in a tax-free
distribution (the "Spin-Off"). GLPI owns and operatthe TRS Properties through an indirect whollyresvsubsidiary, GLP Holdings, Inc.

The Company intends to elect on its United StatdsS(") federal income tax return for its taxab&ay beginning on January 1, 2014 to be
treated as a REIT and the Company, together witR Gbldings, Inc., intend to jointly elect to tresich of GLP Holdings, Inc., Louisiana Casino
Cruises, Inc. and Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc. aggdible REIT subsidiary" (a "TRS") effective on firet day of the first taxable year of GLPI as a
REIT. As a result of the Spin-Off, GLPI owns sulbgialy all of Penn's former real property assetd keases back these assets to Penn for use by it
subsidiaries pursuant to a master lease (the "Mbstese"). The Master Lease is a "triple-net" oppegdease with an initial term of 15 years with no
purchase option, followed by four 5-year renewalays (exercisable by Penn) on the same terms amditons.

The assets and liabilities of GLPI were recordeithair respective historical carrying values attilee of the Spin-Off in accordance with the
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Bo@FRSB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASG)5-60, "Spinoffs and Reverse Spinoffs."

Prior to the Spin-Off, GLPI and Penn entered in®eparation and Distribution Agreement settinghféine mechanics of the Spin-Off, certain
organizational matters and other ongoing obligatiohPenn and GLPI. Penn and GLPI or their respestibsidiaries, as applicable, also enterec
a number of other agreements prior to the Spint®ffrovide a framework for the restructuring andtfe relationships between GLPI and Penn after
the Spin-Off.

In connection with the Spin-Off, Penn allocatedsiteumulated earnings and profits (as determinet 8. federal income tax purposes) for
periods prior to the consummation of the Spin-Qffeen Penn and GLPI. In connection with its ebecto be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal
income tax purposes for the year ending Decembe2@®14 , GLPI declared a special dividend to isreholders to distribute any accumulated
earnings and profits relating to the real propasyets and attributable to any pre-REIT yearsydiicy any earnings and profits allocated to GLPI in
connection with the Spin-Off, to comply with certd®EIT qualification requirements (the "Purging tbsution"). The Purging Distribution, which
was paid on February 18, 2014, totaled $1.05 billind was comprised of cash and GLPI common studttitionally, on December 19, 2014, the
Company made a ortemne distribution of $37.0 million to shareholdémsorder to confirm the Company appropriately adi@d its historical earning
and profits relative to the separation from Pennesponse to the Pre-Filing Agreement requested fthe IRS. See Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements for further details on thegihg Distribution and the distribution related ke tPre-Filing Agreement.

GLPI's primary business consists of acquiring,rfiziag, and owning real estate property to be le&sgadming operators in "triple net" lease
arrangements. "Triple net" leases are leases iohwthe lessee pays rent to the lessor, as well &xeas, insurance, and maintenance expenses that
arise from the use of the property. As of Decen#igr2014 , GLPI's portfolio consisted of 21 gamamgl related facilities, including the TRS
Properties and the real property associated withalBing and related facilities operated by Pennthadeal property associated with the Casino
Queen in East St. Louis,
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lllinois. These facilities are geographically disiied across 12 states and contain approximatélynillion of rentable square feet. As of
December 31, 2014 , the Company's properties wiEe&bsloccupied.

We expect to grow our portfolio by pursuing oppaitigs to acquire additional gaming facilities éa$e to gaming operators under prudent
terms, which may or may not include Penn. Additignave believe we have the ability to leverage ¢xpertise our management team has devel
over the years to secure additional avenues farthroeyond the gaming industry. Accordingly, weicipate we will be able to effect strategic
acquisitions unrelated to the gaming industry al ageother acquisitions that may prove complenmrim GLPI's gaming facilities.

Tax Status

We intend to elect on our U.S. federal income & for our taxable year beginning on Janua®014 to be treated as a REIT and intend to
continue to be organized and to operate in a mahaéwvill permit us to qualify as a REIT. To qdplas a REIT, we must meet certain organizati
and operational requirements, including a requirgnedistribute at least 90% of our annual RENatzle income to shareholders. As a REIT, we
generally will not be subject to federal income texincome that we distribute as dividends to dxarsholders. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any
taxable year, we will be subject to U.S. federabime tax, including any applicable alternative minim tax, on our taxable income at regular
corporate income tax rates, and dividends paiditasbareholders would not be deductible by us mmaing taxable income. Any resulting
corporate liability could be substantial and cowldterially and adversely affect our net income iagidcash available for distribution to shareholders
Unless we were entitled to relief under certaireinal Revenue Code (the "Code") provisions, we @&lzold be disqualified from re-electing to be
taxed as a REIT for the four taxable years follaypiine year in which we failed to qualify to be tdxas a REIT.

Our TRS Properties are able to engage in activiéisslting in income that is not qualifying incofioe a REIT. As a result, certain activities of
the Company which occur within our TRS Propertiessabject to federal and state income taxes.

Tenants

As of December 31, 2014 , all of the Company'salgmtoperties, with the exception of the real propassociated with the Casino Queen
acquired in January 2014, were leased to a whaellyeal subsidiary of Penn under the Master Lease.

Penn is a leading, diversified, multi-jurisdictibmavner and manager of gaming and pari-mutuel pt@s and an established gaming provider
with strong financial performance. The obligatiemsler the Master Lease are guaranteed by PennyaaltiRenn subsidiaries that occupy and
operate the facilities leased under the Masteré,aasthat own a gaming license, other licensetlieramaterial asset necessary to operate any portio
of the facilities. A default by Penn or its subaiiiés with regard to any facility will cause a défavith regard to the entire Penn portfolio.

We will seek to cultivate our relationships witmaéats and gaming providers in order to expand tixéune of tenants operating our properties
and, in doing so, to reduce our dependence on Réarexpect that this objective will be achievedrauae as part of our overall strategy to acquire
new properties and further diversify our overalttfmio of gaming properties. For instance, in Jamy2014, GLPI closed on an agreement to acquire
the real estate assets associated with the CasieerQn East St. Louis, lllinois. The Casino Qupsaperty is operated by the former owners
pursuant to a long-term lease with terms and camditsimilar to the Master Lease.

The rent structure under the Master Lease with Resindes a fixed component, a portion of whickubject to an annual 2% escalator if
certain rent coverage ratio thresholds are metaazwmponent that is based on the performanceedatilities, which is adjusted, subject to certain
floors (i) every 5 years by an amount equal to 4%he average change to net revenues of all fesliinder the Master Lease (other than Hollywood
Casino Columbus and Hollywood Casino Toledo) dutirggpreceding five years, and (i) monthly by amant equal to 20% of the net revenues of
Hollywood Casino Columbus and Hollywood Casino Toleluring the preceding month. In addition to refitproperties under the Master Lease
with Penn are required to pay the following: (1)fatility maintenance, (2) all insurance required¢onnection with the leased properties and the
business conducted on the leased properties,X&3 tavied on or with respect to the leased prage(bther than taxes on the income of the lessor)
and (4) all utilities and other services necessamgppropriate for the leased properties and tlsebas conducted on the leased properties.

At Penn's option, the Master Lease with Penn magxended for up to four 5-year renewal terms bdytbe initial 15-year term, on the same
terms and conditions. If Penn elects to renewehm bf the Master Lease, the renewal will be effecas to all, but not less than all, of the leased
property then subject to the Master Lease, provitlatthe final renewal option shall only be exgabie with respect to certain of the barge-based
facilities—i.e., facilities where barges serve asrfdations upon which buildings are constructesetoe as gaming or related facilities or serve
ancillary purposes such as access platforms or slaeges to protect a gaming facility from floatitgbris—following an independent third party
expert's review of the total useful life of the hpgble barged-based facility measured from therbegg of the initial term. If the final
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five-year renewal term would not cause the aggeetgtn to exceed 80% of the useful life of sucliifgcthe facility shall be included in the five-
year renewal. In the event that a -year renewal of such facility would cause it teed 80% of the estimated useful life, such facdhall be
included in the renewal for the period of time ddoaut not exceeding 80% of the estimated udééul

Penn will not have the ability to terminate itsightions under the Master Lease prior to its exjirawithout the Company's consent. If the
Master Lease is terminated prior to its expiratdimer than with our consent, Penn may be liablelfsnages and incur charges such as continued
payment of rent through the end of the lease terihnaaintenance costs for the leased property.

The following table summarizes certain featureswfproperties as of December 31, 2014 :

Approx.
Property
Square Owned Leased Hotel
Location Type of Facility Footage® Acreage Acreage® Rooms
Tenants
Hollywood Casino Lawrenceburg Lawrenceburg, IN Dockside gaming 634,00( 74.1 32.1 29t
Hollywood Casino Aurora Aurora, IL Dockside gaming 222,18¢ 0.4 2.1 —
Hollywood Casino Joliet Joliet, IL Dockside gaming 322,44¢ 276.4 — 10C
Argosy Casino Alton Alton, IL Dockside gaming 241,76 0.2 3.6 —
Hollywood Casino Toledo Toledo, OH Land-based gaming 285,33! 43.¢ — —
Hollywood Casino Columbus Columbus, OH Land-based gaming 354,07! 116.2 — —
Hollywood Casino at Charles Town Races Charlesr oV Land-based gaming/Thoroughbred racing 511,24¢ 298.¢ — 152
Hollywood Casino at Penn National Race
Course Grantville, PA Land-based gaming/Thoroughbred racing 451,75t 573.7 — —
M Resort Henderson, NV Land-based gaming 910,17¢ 87.€ — 39C
Hollywood Casino Bangor Bangor, ME Land-based gaming/Harness racing 257,08! 6.7 27.€ 152
Zia Park Casino Hobbs, NM Land-based gaming/Thoroughbred racing 109,06° 317.2 — —
Hollywood Casino Gulf Coast Bay St. Louis, MS Land-based gaming 425,92( 579.¢ — 291
Argosy Casino Riverside Riverside, MO Dockside gaming 450,39° 41.C — 25¢
Hollywood Casino Tunica Tunica, MS Dockside gaming 315,83: — 67.7 494
Boomtown Biloxi Biloxi, MS Dockside gaming 134,80( 1.6 1.C —
Hollywood Casino St. Louis Maryland Heights, MO Land-based gaming 645,27( 247.¢ — 502
Hollywood Gaming at Dayton Raceway Dayton, OH Land-based gaming/Standardbred racing 191,03 119.7 — —
Hollywood Gaming at Mahoning Valley
Race Course Youngstown, OH Land-based gaming/Thoroughbred racing 177,44¢ 193.¢ — —
Casino Queen East St. Louis, IL Land-based gaming 330,50: 67.2 157
6,970,34. 3,045.¢ 134.1 2,792
TRS Properties
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge Baton Rouge, LA Dockside gaming 120,51° 28.¢ — —
Hollywood Casino Perryville Perryville, MD Land-based gaming 97,96. 36.4 — —
218,47¢ 658 — —
Total 7,188,82 3,111.: 134.1 2,792
o Square footage includes air conditioned space &cldaes parking garages and bg
@ Leased acreage reflects land subject to leaseghiithparties and includes land on which certdithe current facilities and ancillary

supporting structures are located as well as patkits and access rights.

Hollywood Casino Lawrencebu

We own 74.1 acres and lease 32.1 acres in Lawranggindiana, a portion of which serves as the disiskembarkation for the gaming vessel,
and includes a Hollywood-themed casino riverboag@tertainment pavilion, a 295-room hotel, twokpeg garages and an adjacent surface lot, with
the other portion used for remote parking.
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Hollywood Casino Aurori

We own a dockside barge structure and land-basatiomein Aurora, lllinois. We own the land, whidk approximately 0.4 acres, on which the
pavilion is located and a pedestrian walkway bridgee property also includes a parking lot undeop@rating lease agreement and two parking
garages under capital lease agreements, togettmgrising 2.1 acres.

Hollywood Casino Jolie

We own 276.4 acres in Joliet, lllinois, which indés a barge-based casino, land-based pavilior)-s0bdn hotel, a 1,100 space parking gar
surface parking areas and a recreational vehicle pa

Argosy Casino Alto

We lease 3.6 acres in Alton, Illinois, a portionndfich serves as the dockside boarding for therABelle Il, a riverboat casino. The dockside
facility includes an entertainment pavilion andiaéfspace, as well as surface parking areas wa#ilispaces. In addition, we own an office building
property consisting of 0.2 acres.

Hollywood Casino Toled

We own a 43.8 acre site in Toledo, Ohio, where yatlod Casino Toledo is located. The property inekithe casino as well as structured and
surface parking for approximately 3,300 spaces.

Hollywood Casino Columbt

We own 116.2 acres of land in Columbus, Ohio, wittmlywood Casino Columbus is located. The propertyudes the casino as well as
structured and surface parking for 4,616 spaces.

Hollywood Casino at Charles Town Ra

We own 298.6 acres on various parcels in CharlesTand Ranson, West Virginia of which 155 acres pase Hollywood Casino at Charles
Town Races. The facility includes a 153-room hatel a 3/4-mile all-weather lighted thoroughbrecetesck, a training track, two parking garages,
an employee parking lot, an enclosed grandstaraholuse and housing facilities for over 1,300 harses

Hollywood Casino at Penn National Race Cot

We own 573.7 acres in Grantville, Pennsylvania,neti®enn National Race Course is located on 18k athe facility includes a one-mile all-
weather lighted thoroughbred racetrack and a 7I8-mif track, a parking garage and surface parkpares. The property also includes
approximately 393 acres surrounding the Penn Nalti@ace Course that are available for future expars development.

M Resorl

We own 87.6 acres on the southeast corner of Lgad/Boulevard and St. Rose Parkway in Hendersoradée where the M Resort is locat
The M Resort property includes a 390-room hotdl, 780 space parking facility and other facilities.

Hollywood Casino Bangc

We own and lease the land on which the Hollywoosdi@aBangor facility is located in Bangor, Mainehieh consists of 6.7 acres, and
includes a 152-room hotel and four-story parkimgadidition, we lease 27.6 acres located at hisBags Park, which is adjacent to the facility, and
includes a one-half mile standardbred racetrackaagiindstand with over 12,000 square feet anihgefar 3,500 patrons.

Zia Park Casino

We own 317.4 acres in Hobbs, New Mexico, wherePZgk Casino is located. The property also inclidese-mile quarter thoroughbred
racetrack.



Hollywood Casino Gulf Coa:

We own 579.9 acres in the city of Bay St. Louiss$isippi, including a 20-slip marina. The propéngiudes a land-based casino,Hde golf
course, a 291-room hotel and other facilities.
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Argosy Casino Riversic

We own 41 acres in Riverside, Missouri, which iggla a barge-based casino, a 258-room luxury tastentertainment/banquet facility and a
parking garage.

Hollywood Casino Tunic

We lease 67.7 acres of land in Tunica, Mississippé property includes a single-level casino, a#®m hotel, surface parking and other land-
based facilities.

Boomtown Bilox

We lease 1.0 acres of land mostly used for pariimya welcome center. In addition our tenant rggsito 18.5 acres of land, most of which is
utilized for the gaming location and 4.5 acresudfraerged tidelands at the casino site.

Hollywood Casino St. Lou

We own 247.8 acres along the Missouri River in Nemyg Heights, Missouri, which includes a 5@®m hotel and structure and surface par
for approximately 4,600 spaces.

Hollywood Gaming at Dayton Racew

We own 119.7 acres in Dayton, Ohio, where Pennegpétollywood Gaming at Dayton Raceway on August2Zd.4. The property includes a
land-based casino, a 5/8-mile all-weather standaddiacetrack and surface parking.

Hollywood Gaming at Mahoning Valley Race Cot

We own 193.4 acres in Youngstown, Ohio, where Rgramed Hollywood Gaming at Mahoning Valley Race iSewn September 17, 2014.
The property includes a land-based casino, a ofethuroughbred racetrack and surface parking.

Casino Queen

We own 67.3 acres in East St. Louis, lllinois, whikcludes a 157-room hotel, a recreational velpeld and surface parking areas.
TRS Properties
Hollywood Casino Baton Rou

Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge is a dockside rivetlyaaning facility operating in Baton Rouge, Louigda The riverboat features
approximately 28,000 square feet of gaming spatie 966 gaming machines and 12 table games. Thigyfadso includes a two-story, 58,000
square foot dockside building featuring a varidtamenities, including a grill, a 268-seat buffetleli, a premium players' lounge, a nightclub, a
lobby bar, a public atrium, two meeting rooms atbQ parking spaces.

Hollywood Casino Perryvilli

Hollywood Casino Perryville is located directly dfiterstate 95 in Cecil County, Maryland just 33asinortheast of Baltimore and 70 miles
from Washington, D.C. Hollywood Casino Perryviltea Hollywood-themed facility which offers 34,328uare feet of gaming space with 1,158 slot
machines, 12 table games and 10 poker tables.aHileyf also offers various food and beverage apjancluding a bar and grill, a gift shop and
1,600 parking spaces with valet and self-parking.

Competition

We compete for real property investments with oREITs, investment companies, private equity ardhbedund investors, sovereign funds,
lenders, gaming companies and other investors. Sfmr competitors are significantly larger anddgreater financial resources and lower costs
of capital than we have. Increased competition midke it more challenging to identify and succdgsftapitalize on acquisition opportunities that
meet our investment objectives. Furthermore, asiidd regional casino operator has recently anrezliptains to separate its real estate assets and



operations through the formation of a REIT. Anotlaege global casino operator has declared a vatyr@hapter 11 reorganization in order to
significantly reduce its debt with the intent o$treicturing its operations into a REIT and sepappirating company. There is also market
speculation surrounding the formation of additiogaiing REITs. If any of these transactions maieeéawe will face direct competition in the
acquisition of gaming properties.
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In addition, revenues from our gaming propertiesdapendent on the ability of our gaming tenantsaperators to compete with other gaming
operators. The gaming industry is characterizedrbincreasingly high degree of competition amotayge number of participants, including
riverboat casinos, dockside casinos, land-basedassideo lottery, sweepstakes and poker machioebcated in casinos, Native American
gaming, emerging varieties of Internet gaming atieioforms of gaming in the U.S. In a broader seasegaming tenants and operators face
competition from all manner of leisure and entertant activities, including: shopping, athletic etg television and movies, concerts and travel.
Legalized gaming is currently permitted in varidosns throughout the U.S., in several Canadianipaes and on various lands taken into trust for
the benefit of certain Native Americans in the LhBd Canada. Other jurisdictions, including stamjacent to states in which our gaming tenants
operators are located have legalized, and will edggaming in the near future. In addition, est&@igaming jurisdictions could award additional
gaming licenses or permit the expansion or relooadif existing gaming operations. New, relocateebgranded operations by other persons will
increase competition for our gaming tenants andatpes and could have a material adverse impacuoigaming tenants and operators and us as
landlord. Finally, the imposition of smoking bamgléor higher gaming tax rates have a significamtaot on our gaming tenants and operators' ability
to compete with facilities in nearby jurisdictions.

Hollywood Casino Perryville continued to face agtglil competition, led by the August 26, 2014 opgrif the Horseshoe Casino Baltimore,
located in downtown Baltimore. In addition Marylabide!, at the Arundel Mills mall in Anne Arundeélaryland, which opened on June 6, 2012,
added table games on April 11, 2013, and a 52 faiker room in late August 2013. Further, in e@ML5, Horseshoe Casino Baltimore and
Maryland Live! received approval to add additiotsdle games. Both facilities have and will contino@egatively impact Hollywood Casino
Perryville's results of operations.

Furthermore, in November 2012, voters approvedlaion authorizing a sixth casino in Prince Gew@ounty. The new law also changes
tax rate casino operators pay the state, varymg frasino to casino, allows all casinos in Marylemtle open 24 hours per day for the entire year,
and permits casinos to directly purchase slot nmeshin exchange for gaming tax reductions. In Déegr2013, the license for the sixth casino in
Prince George's County was granted. The proposdiffilion casino resort, which is expected to opethe second half of 2016 will adversely
impact Hollywood Casino Perryville's financial réisu

In Louisiana, a new riverboat casino and hotel egdern September 1, 2012 in Baton Rouge. The opafitids riverboat casino has and will
continue to have an adverse effect on the finamegllts of Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge.

Segments

Consistent with how our Chief Operating Decisionkigia(as such term is defined in ASC 280 "SegmepbRig") reviews and assesses our
financial performance, we have two reportable segm&LP Capital, L.P. (a wholly-owned subsidiafyad.P1 through which GLPI owns
substantially all of its real estate assets) ("Gadpital”) and the TRS Properties. The GLP Capépbrtable segment consists of the leased real
property and represents the majority of our busin€ee TRS Properties reportable segment condisteltywood Casino Perryville and Hollywood
Casino Baton Rouge. See "ltem 7—Management's Dimmuand Analysis of Financial Condition and ResoftOperations" and "lItem 8—Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 13—Segmi@niation” for further information with respecttite Company's segments.

Management

Name Age Position

Peter M. Carlino 68 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
William J. Clifford 57 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
Steven T. Snyder 54  Senior Vice President of Corporate Development
Desiree A. Burke 49  Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
Brandon J. Moore 40 Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Peter M. Carlino.  Mr. Carlino is Chairman of our Board of Direxg@nd Chief Executive Officer. Prior to the Spiff;®r. Carlino served
as Penn's Chief Executive Officer since April 1989dbsequent to the Spin-Off, Mr. Carlino no longerves as an officer of Penn, however, he
continues in his role as Penn's Chairman of thedofDirectors. Since 1976, Mr. Carlino has beessRlent of Carlino Capital Management Corp.
(formerly known as Carlino Financial Corporatioa)yolding company that owns and operates variodsnGdamily businesses, in which capacity
has been continuously active in strategic planaimgymonitoring the operations.

William J. Clifford. Mr. Clifford is our Chief Financial Officer, 8eetary and Treasurer. Prior to the Spin-off, Miff@d served as Penn's
Senior Vice President-Finance and Chief Financféit€r since October 2001. From March 1997
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to July 2001, Mr. Clifford served as the Chief Fin&l Officer and Senior Vice President of Finaméth Sun International Resorts, Inc., Paradise
Island, Bahamas. From November 1993 to February ,199. Clifford was Financial, Hotel and Operatiddentroller for Treasure Island Hotel and
Casino in Las Vegas. From May 1989 to November 1883Clifford was Controller for Golden Nugget Hbtand Casino, Las Vegas. Prior to May
1989, Mr. Clifford held the positions of Controllir the Dunes Hotel and Casino, Las Vegas, Prg@perations Analyst with Aladdin Hotel and
Casino, Las Vegas, Casino Administrator with Laga&Hilton, Las Vegas, Senior Internal Auditor witel Webb, Las Vegas, and Agent, Audit
Division, of the Nevada Gaming Control Board, Laagels and Reno.

Steven T. Snyder. Mr. Snyder is our Senior Vice President of Qugte Development. Mr. Snyder joined the Comparngoimection with
the Spin-Off on November 1, 2013. Prior to the Spifi he served as Penn's Senior Vice Preside@obgborate Development since 2003 and was
responsible for identifying and conducting interaatl industry analysis of potential acquisitiores;tiperships and other opportunities. He joined F
as Vice President of Corporate Development in M@§8land held that position until his appointmensémior Vice President in 2003. Prior to
joining Penn, Mr. Snyder was a partner with HamilRartners, Ltd., as well as Managing Director affidipal and Corporate Investment Bank
for Meridian Capital Markets. Mr. Snyder began ¢aseer in finance at Butcher & Singer, where hgestas First Vice President of Public Finance.

Desiree A. Burke.Ms. Burke joined the Company in April 2014 as oani®r Vice President and Chief Accounting Offidereviously, Ms.
Burke served as Penn's Vice President and Chieduxting Officer since November 2009. Additionakhe served as Penn's Vice President and
Corporate Controller from November 2005 to Octdd@®9. Prior to her time at Penn National Gaming,,IMs. Burke was the Executive Vice
President/Director of Financial Reporting and Cohfior MBNA America Bank, N.A. She joined MBNA ir984 and held positions of ascending
responsibility in the finance department during tegure. Ms. Burke is a CPA.

Brandon J. Moore.  Mr. Moore joined the Company in January 201éw@sSenior Vice President and General Counselidusly, he serve
as Penn's Vice President, Senior Corporate Cosirsed March 2010 where he was a member of the tegal responsible for a variety of
transactional, regulatory and general legal matgnisr to joining Penn, Mr. Moore was with BalleBgahr, LLP, where he provided advanced legal
counsel to clients on matters including mergeraeglisition transactions, debt and equity finangjregnd various other matters.

Tax Considerations

We intend to elect to be treated as a REIT on o8« téderal income tax return for our taxable y@ginning on January 1, 2014 and we,
together with an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiafythe Company, GLP Holdings, Inc., intend to jbirelect to treat each of GLP Holdings, Inc.,
Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. and Penn Cecil Mag| Inc. as a "taxable REIT subsidiary" effectivethe first day of the first taxable year of GLPI
as a REIT. We intend to continue to be organizetitaroperate in a manner that will permit us tolifpas a REIT. Qualification and taxation as a
REIT depends on our ability to meet on a continliagis, through actual operating results, distitiouevels, and diversity of stock ownership,
various qualification requirements imposed uponRHly the Code. Our ability to qualify to be taxasda REIT also requires that we satisfy certain
tests, some of which depend upon the fair markeiegaof assets that we own directly or indirecilige material qualification requirements are
summarized below. Such values may not be suscejttild precise determination. Accordingly, no emsce can be given that the actual results of
our operations for any taxable year will satisfglsuequirements for qualification and taxation &E4T. Additionally, while we intend to operate so
that we continue to qualify to be taxed as a RB assurance can be given that the Internal Rev@enwice (the "IRS") will not challenge our
qualification, or that we will be able to operatesiccordance with the REIT requirements in ther&itu

Taxation of REITs in General

As a REIT, generally we will be entitled to a detioie for dividends that we pay and therefore wilt be subject to U.S. federal corporate
income tax on our net REIT taxable income thauisantly distributed to our shareholders. Thistiment substantially eliminates the "double
taxation" at the corporate and shareholder levelsdenerally results from an investment in a Qaortion. A "C corporation” is a corporation that
generally is required to pay tax at the corporatell Double taxation means taxation once at theorate level when income is earned and once
again at the shareholder level when the incomestslalited. In general, the income that we genasataxed only at the shareholder level upon a
distribution of dividends to our shareholders. Wk monetheless be subject to U.S. federal taxhanfollowing circumstances:

. We will be taxed at regular corporate rates onwamgistributed net taxable income, including undistted net capital gair

. We may be subject to the "alternative minimum tax'our items of tax preference, including any déidas of net operating loss
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If we have net income from prohibited transactiamsich are, in general, sales or other dispositafriaventory or property held primari
for sale to customers in the ordinary course ofrtass, other than foreclosure property, such incaitide subject to a 100% tax.

. If we elect to treat property that we acquire@mnection with a foreclosure of a mortgage loacestain leasehold terminations as
"foreclosure property," we may thereby avoid th@%ax on gain from a resale of that propertyH# sale would otherwise constitute a
prohibited transaction), but the income from thie s& operation of the property may be subjectoigparate income tax at the highest
applicable rate (currently 35%).

. If we fail to satisfy the 75% gross income t@stl/or the 95% gross income test, as discussed pleld nonetheless maintain our
qualification as a REIT because we satisfy othquirements, we will be subject to a 100% tax omuaount based on the magnitude of
the failure, as adjusted to reflect the profit niam@ssociated with our gross income.

. If we violate the asset tests (other than cera minimis violations) or other requirements aglile to REITSs, as described below, and
yet maintain our qualification as a REIT becauszdhs reasonable cause for the failure and ofty@icable requirements are met, we 1
be subject to a penalty tax. In that case, the atoiithe penalty tax will be at least $50,000 fadlure, and, in the case of certain asset
test failures, will be determined as the amoumntaifincome generated by the nonqualifying assegsi@stion multiplied by the highest
corporate tax rate (currently 35%) if that amourdeds $50,000 per failure.

. If we fail to distribute during each calendaayat least the sum of (i) 85% of our ordinary imeofor such year, (ii) 95% of our capital
gain net income for such year and (iii) any undisiied net taxable income from prior periods, wé e subject to a nondeductible 4%
excise tax on the excess of the required distobutver the sum of (a) the amounts that we actulidlyibuted and (b) the amounts we
retained and upon which we paid income tax at thiparate level.

. We may be required to pay monetary penaltighé¢dRS in certain circumstances, including if \a# fo meet recordkeeping requiremen
intended to monitor our compliance with rules rielgto the composition of a REIT's shareholders.

. A 100% tax may be imposed on transactions betwseand a TRS that do not reflect artatsgth terms

. If we acquire appreciated assets from a corordbat is not a REIT (i.e., a corporation taxalmheler subchapter C of the Code) in a
transaction in which the adjusted tax basis ofabeets in our hands is determined by referendeetadjusted tax basis of the assets in the
hands of the subchapter C corporation, we may bjgstto tax on such appreciation at the highegiaate income tax rate then
applicable if we subsequently recognize gain orspasition of any such assets during the ten-yedog following their acquisition from
the subchapter C corporation.

. The earnings of our TRSs will generally be subjedt.S. federal corporate income 1

In addition, we and our subsidiaries may be sulifeatvariety of taxes, including payroll taxes atate, local, and foreign income, property,
gross receipts and other taxes on our assets amdtigms. We could also be subject to tax in sibmatand on transactions not presently
contemplated.

Requirements for Qualificati—General
The Code defines a REIT as a corporation, truaseociation:

that is managed by one or more trustees or dirg
the beneficial ownership of which is evidenced fansferable shares, or by transferable certificaté®neficial interes
that would be taxable as a domestic corporatiorfdats election to be subject to tax as a R

that is neither a financial institution nor an iresace company subject to specific provisions ofGhee

o > w N PR

the beneficial ownership of which is held by 100wwre person
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6. in which, during the last half of each taxajar, not more than 50% in value of the outstandingk is owned, directly or indirectly, by
five or fewer "individuals" (as defined in the Combeinclude specified tax-exempt entities); and

7. that meets other tests described below, includiitig respect to the nature of its income and as

The Code provides that conditions (1) through (4tbe met during the entire taxable year, anddbadition (5) must be met during at least
335 days of a taxable year of 12 months, or dwaipgoportionate part of a shorter taxable year.ditimms (5) and (6) need not be met during a
corporation's initial tax year as a REIT (whichpiar case, will be 2014). Our charter providesrigtsins regarding the ownership and transfers of
our stock, which are intended to assist us infyatig the stock ownership requirements describetbimditions (5) and (6) above. These restrictions,
however, may not ensure that we will, in all cabesable to satisfy the share ownership requiresndgscribed in conditions (5) and (6) above. If we
fail to satisfy these share ownership requirementsept as provided in the next sentence, ourstda REIT will terminate. If, however, we com
with the rules contained in applicable U.S. Deparitrof the Treasury (the "Treasury") regulatiorst tliequire us to ascertain the actual ownership of
our shares and we do not know, or would not hawknthrough the exercise of reasonable diligerta, we failed to meet the requirements
described in condition (6) above, we will be trelaés having met this requirement.

To monitor compliance with the stock ownership iegents, we generally are required to maintaionms regarding the actual ownership of
our stock. To do so, we must demand written statésneach year from the record holders of signifigeancentages of our stock pursuant to which
the record holders must disclose the actual owofetge stock (i.e., the persons required to inclodedividends in their gross income). We must
maintain a list of those persons failing or refgsia comply with this demand as part of our recoWle could be subject to monetary penalties if we
fail to comply with these record-keeping requiretseff, upon request by the Company, a sharehddderor refuses to comply with the demands,
such holder will be required by Treasury regulaitmsubmit a statement with his, her or its tanrredisclosing the actual ownership of our stock
and other information.

Qualified REIT Subsidiaries

The Code provides that a corporation that is alifigé REIT subsidiary" shall not be treated asparate corporation, and all assets, liabi
and items of income, deduction and credit of a lifjgd REIT subsidiary" shall be treated as asskdsijlities and items of income, deduction
credit of the REIT. A "qualified REIT subsidiarys a corporation, all of the capital stock of whistowned by the REIT, that has not elected to
"taxable REIT subsidiary" (discussed below). Inlgjmg the requirements described herein, all of ‘wuralified REIT subsidiaries" will be ignore
and all assets, liabilities and items of incomejudtion and credit of such subsidiaries will beategl as our assets, liabilities and items of ing
deduction and credit. These subsidiaries, thergfoitenot be subject to federal corporate incoraeation, although they may be subject to state
local taxation.

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries

In general, we may jointly elect with a subsidiaprporation, whether or not wholly-owned, to treath subsidiary corporation as a TRS. We
generally may not own more than 10% of the seasitif a taxable corporation, as measured by veitinger or value, unless we and such
corporation elect to treat such corporation as 8 TRhe separate existence of a TRS is not ignaned fS. federal income tax purposes. Accordin
a TRS generally is subject to corporate incomeptaits earnings, which may reduce the cash flowvileaand our subsidiaries generate in the
aggregate and may reduce our ability to make Higions to our shareholders.

We are not treated as holding the assets of a TRS receiving any income that the subsidiary e&ather, the stock issued by the TRS to us
is an asset in our hands, and we treat the divelpadl to us, if any, as income. This treatmentaffact our income and asset test calculations, as
described below. Because we do not include thesaase income of TRSs on a look-through basis tard@ning our compliance with the REIT
requirements, we may use such entities to undentaleectly activities that the REIT rules mightetwise preclude us from doing directly or
through pass-through subsidiaries. For examplenas use TRSs to perform services or conduct aietivihat give rise to certain categories of
income or to conduct activities that, if conduchkgdus directly, would be treated in our hands abibited transactions.

The TRS rules limit the deductibility of interestig or accrued by a TRS to its parent REIT to asthat the TRS is subject to an appropriate
level of corporate taxation. Further, the rulesasga 100% excise tax on transactions between aamB8s parent REIT or the REIT's tenants that
are not conducted on an arm's-length basis. Wadrtteat all of our transactions with our TRS, ifawill be conducted on an arm's-length basis.
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Income Test

As a REIT, we must satisfy two gross income regnéets on an annual basis. First, at least 75% o§@ss income for each taxable year,
excluding gross income from sales of inventory eeldr property in "prohibited transactions," diggesof indebtedness and certain hedging
transactions, generally must be derived from "ré&mot® real property,” gains from the sale of resthée assets, interest income derived from mort
loans secured by real property (including certgpes of mortgage-backed securities), dividendsivedgrom other REITs, and specified income
from temporary investments. Second, at least 958upfross income in each taxable year, excludinggjincome from prohibited transactions,
discharge of indebtedness and certain hedgingactings, must be derived from some combinatiomodine that qualifies under the 75% gross
income test described above, as well as otherelidd, interest, and gain from the sale or dispwsitf stock or securities, which need not have any
relation to real property. Income and gain fromaiaerhedging transactions will be excluded fromhbibie numerator and the denominator for
purposes of both the 75% and 95% gross income tests

Rents received by a REIT will qualify as "rentsrfroeal property” in satisfying the gross incomeuiegments described above only if several
conditions are met.

e The amount of rent must not be based in whola part on the income or profits of any personwideer, an amount received or accrued
generally will not be excluded from the term "refitam real property" solely by reason of being libse a fixed percentage or percentages
of gross receipts or sales.

* Rents received from a tenant will not qualify'sents from real property" in satisfying the grassome tests if the REIT, or a direct or
indirect owner of 10% or more of the REIT, direablyconstructively, owns 10% or more of such terfariRelated Party Tenant").
However, rental payments from a taxable REIT suasjdvill qualify as rents from real property eviémve own more than 10% of the total
value or combined voting power of the taxable RElibsidiary if at least 90% of the property is lebgeunrelated tenants and the rent paid
by the taxable REIT subsidiary is substantially panable to the rent paid by the unrelated tenamtsdmparable space.

* Rent attributable to personal property leasetbimection with a lease of real property will gatlify as "rents from real property" if such
rent exceeds 15% of the total rent received urfieldase.

« the REIT generally must not operate or manageptbperty or furnish or render services to tenaxsept through an "independent
contractor" who is adequately compensated and Wwbiom the REIT derives no income, or through a tex&EIT subsidiary. The
"independent contractor” requirement, however, dmtspply to the extent the services providedhgyREIT are "usually or customarily
rendered" in connection with the rental of spaceofcupancy only, and are not otherwise considaettered to the occupant.” In additi
a de minimis rule applies with respect to non-cumstry services. Specifically, if the value of thenrmustomary service income with respect
to a property (valued at no less than 150% of trectcosts of performing such services) is 1%esslof the total income derived from the
property, then all rental income except the nortamary service income will qualify as "rents froeal property.” A taxable REIT
subsidiary may provide services (including noncomgtry services) to a REIT’s tenants without "taigtiany of the rental income received
by the REIT, and will be able to manage or opepat@erties for third parties and generally engagather activities unrelated to real estate.

We do not anticipate receiving rent that is basedhole or in part on the income or profits of gugrson (except by reason of being based
fixed percentage or percentages of gross receifales consistent with the rules described ab&e)also do not anticipate receiving more than
minimis amount of rents from any Related Party Teme rents attributable to personal property ldéaeconnection with real property that will
exceed 15% of the total rents received with resfgestich real property. We may receive certaingygfancome that will not qualify under the 75%
or 95% gross income tests. In particular, dividersdeived from a taxable REIT subsidiary will notjfy under the 75% test. We believe, however,
that the aggregate amount of such items and otiregnalifying income in any taxable year will netuse GLPI to exceed the limits on non-
qualifying income under either the 75% or 95% gliassme tests.

We may directly or indirectly receive distributiofiem TRSs or other corporations that are not RElTgualified REIT subsidiaries. These
distributions generally are treated as dividenaine to the extent of the earnings and profits efdistributing corporation. Such distributions will
generally constitute qualifying income for purposéshe 95% gross income test, but not for purpagéle 75% gross income test. Any dividends
that we receive from another REIT or qualified RElbsidiary, however, will be qualifying income faurposes of both the 95% and 75% gross
income tests.

We believe that we have and will continue to beampliance with these gross income tests. If widdasatisfy one or both of the 75% or 95%
gross income tests for any taxable year, we miygatlify to be taxed as a REIT for such year € are entitled to relief under applicable provision
of the Code. These relief provisions will be gefigravailable if (i) our failure
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to meet these tests was due to reasonable caus®fdde to willful neglect and (ii) following oudentification of the failure to meet the 75% or

95% gross income test for any taxable year, weafdehedule with the IRS setting forth each iterawfgross income for purposes of the 75% or
95% gross income test for such taxable year inrdaroe with Treasury regulations, which have nobgen issued. It is not possible to state wh

we would be entitled to the benefit of these rgbifvisions in all circumstances. If these relisfyisions are inapplicable to a particular set of
circumstances, we will not qualify to be taxed &ET. Even if these relief provisions apply, and retain our status as a REIT, the Code imposes &
tax based upon the amount by which we fail to Batise particular gross income test.

Asset Test

At the close of each calendar quarter, we mustsatiefy four tests relating to the nature of aaseds. First, at least 75% of the value of our
total assets must be represented by some combiradtioeal estate assets,"” cash, cash items, W\&rgment securities, and, under some
circumstances, stock or debt instruments purchagtbchew capital. For this purpose, real estatetasaclude interests in real property and stock of
other corporations that qualify as REITs, as weltame kinds of mortgage-backed securities andgagetloans. Assets that do not qualify for
purposes of the 75% asset test are subject taltlieamal asset tests described below.

Second, the value of any one issuer's securit&sath own may not exceed 5% of the value of ol tdsets.

Third, we may not own more than 10% of any onedsswutstanding securities, as measured by eititerg power or value. The 5% and 10%
asset tests do not apply to securities of TRSgyjaatified REIT subsidiaries and the 10% assetdest not apply to "straight debt" having specified
characteristics and to certain other securitiesritesd below. Solely for purposes of the 10% atesdt the determination of our interest in the &sse
of a partnership or limited liability company in igh we own an interest will be based on our praposte interest in any securities issued by the
partnership or limited liability company, excludifay this purpose certain securities describedhé@ode. The safe harbor under which certain types
of securities are disregarded for purposes of @8 talue limitation includes (1) straight debt sé@s (including straight debt securities that
provides for certain contingent payments); (2) Exan to an individual or an estate; (3) any reatgeement described in Section 467 of the Code,
other than with a "related person"; (4) any obligato pay rents from real property; (5) certainwgéies issued by a State or any political sutsion
thereof, or the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico; (6) security issued by a REIT; and (7) any otherrggesnent that, as determined by the Secret:
the Treasury, is excepted from the definition ekaurity. In addition, for purposes of applying @6 value limitation, (a) a REIT's interest as a
partner in a partnership is not considered a sg¢b) any debt instrument issued by a partnerghipt treated as a security if at least 75% ef th
partnership’s gross income is from sources thatidvqualify for the 75% REIT gross income test, éodany debt instrument issued by a partnership
is not treated as a security to the extent of tBETR interest as a partner in the partnership.

Fourth, the aggregate value of all securities 063 Ehat we hold, together with other non-qualifisdets (such as furniture and equipment or
other tangible personal property, or non-real estaturities) may not, in the aggregate, exceed @3%e value of our total assets.

However, certain relief provisions are availableliow REITs to satisfy the asset requirement®onaintain REIT qualification
notwithstanding certain violations of the asset atietr requirements. For example, if we shouldttagatisfy the asset tests at the end of a calenda
quarter such a failure would not cause us to loseREIT qualification if we (i) satisfied the assests at the close of the preceding calendar guart
and (ii) the discrepancy between the value of sgets and the asset requirements was not whollsrtly caused by an acquisition of non-qualifying
assets, but instead arose from changes in théveetatirket values of our assets. If the conditieaatdibed in (ii) were not satisfied, we still could
avoid disqualification by eliminating any discrepgwithin 30 days after the close of the calendsarter in which it arose or by making use of the
relief provisions described above.

In the case ofle minimisviolations of the 10% and 5% asset tests, a REIJ maintain its qualification despite a violationsafch requiremen
if (i) the value of the assets causing the violatimes not exceed the lesser of 1% of the REITa$ &gsets and $10,000,000 and (ii) the REIT either
disposes of the assets causing the failure wiiRimenths after the last day of the quarter in Wwhitddentifies the failure, or the relevant teate
otherwise satisfied within that time frame.

Even if we did not qualify for the foregoing relipfovisions, one additional provision allows a RElfiich fails one or more of the asset
requirements to nevertheless maintain its REITifjcation if (i) the REIT provides the IRS with @skcription of each asset causing the failure,
(i) the failure is due to reasonable cause andwiltftil neglect, (iii) the REIT pays a tax equalthe greater of (a) $50,000 per failure and (b) th
product of the net income generated by the adsatsaused the failure multiplied by the highegtligpble corporate tax rate (currently 35%) and
(iv) the REIT either disposes of the assets caugiadailure within six months after the last ddythe quarter in which it identifies the failure, o
otherwise satisfies the relevant asset tests witt@ihtime frame.
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We believe that we have been and will continuegtinbcompliance with the asset tests describedeabov

Annual Distribution Requiremen

In order to qualify to be taxed as a REIT, we a&aquired to distribute dividends, other than cagj&h dividends, to our shareholders in an
amount at least equal to:

0] the sum ¢
(@) 90% of our REIT taxable income, computed withogfarel to our net capital gains and the deductiomifiddends paid; ar

(b) 90% of our after tax net income, if any, from fdostire property (as described below); m

(i)  the excess of the sum of specified itemsarfi4cash income over 5% of our REIT taxable incoooeputed without regard to our net
capital gain and the deduction for dividends paid.

We generally must make these distributions in #ixaltle year to which they relate, or in the follogitaxable year if declared before we timely
file our tax return for the year and if paid withlzefore the first regular dividend payment aftectsdeclaration. These distributions will be trelae
received by our shareholders in the year in whiaslk.dn order for distributions to be counted ass§ang the annual distribution requirements for
REITs, and to provide us with a REIT-level tax detibin, the distributions must not be "preferenti@idends.” A dividend is not a preferential
dividend if the distribution is (i) pro rata amoaly outstanding shares of stock within a particalass and (ii) in accordance with any preferences
among different classes of stock as set forth inooganizational documents.

To the extent that we distribute at least 90% |é&sg than 100%, of our REIT taxable income, asstelfly we will be subject to tax at ordinary
corporate tax rates on the retained portion. We ebagt to retain, rather than distribute, somellasfaour net long-term capital gains and pay tax o
such gains. In this case, we could elect for oaredtolders to include their proportionate sharesuoh undistributed long-term capital gains in
income, and to receive a corresponding credittfeirtshare of the tax that we paid. Our sharehsld@uld then increase the adjusted basis of their
stock by the difference between (i) the amounisagital gain dividends that we designated andttiet include in their taxable income, minus
(ii) the tax that we paid on their behalf with respto that income.

To the extent that in the future we may have ablaet operating losses carried forward from piaryears, such losses may reduce the
amount of distributions that we must make in otdezomply with the REIT distribution requirements.

If we fail to distribute during each calendar yatiteast the sum of (i) 85% of our ordinary incdimesuch year, (ii) 95% of our capital gain net
income for such year and (iii) any undistributed tagable income from prior periods, we will be jdb to a non-deductible 4% excise tax on the
excess of such required distribution over the stifa)othe amounts actually distributed, plus (l® #mounts of income we retained and on which we
have paid corporate income tax.

We expect that our REIT taxable income will be lss our cash flow because of depreciation aneratbn-cash charges included in
computing REIT taxable income. Accordingly, we aimiate that we generally will have sufficient casHiquid assets to enable us to satisfy the
distribution requirements described above. Howelvem time to time, we may not have sufficient caslother liquid assets to meet these
distribution requirements due to timing differenbesween the actual receipt of income and actuahpat of deductible expenses, and the inclusion
of income and deduction of expenses in determioingaxable income. In addition, we may decideetain our cash, rather than distribute it, in
order to repay debt, acquire assets, or for otegans. If these timing differences occur, we maydov funds to pay dividends or pay dividends
through the distribution of other property (inclngishares of our stock) in order to meet the thistion requirements, while preserving our cash.

If our taxable income for a particular year is spgently determined to have been understated, webmable to rectify a resultant failure to
meet the distribution requirements for a year byin"deficiency dividends" to shareholders in gtayear, which may be included in our deduction
for dividends paid for the earlier year. In thiseawe may be able to avoid losing REIT qualifimatbr being taxed on amounts distributed as
deficiency dividends, subject to the 4% excisedescribed above. We will be required to pay inteobased on the amount of any deduction taken for
deficiency dividends.

For purposes of the 90% distribution requiremert excise tax described above, any distribution rhagtaid in the taxable year to which they
relate, or in the following taxable year if sucktdbutions are declared in October, November ardbeber of the taxable year, are payable to
shareholders of record on a specified date in anl month, and are actually paid
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before the end of January of the following yearct8distributions are treated as both paid by usraceived by our shareholders on December 31 of
the year in which they are declared.

In addition, at our election, a distribution fotaxable year may be declared before we timelydiiletax return for the year, provided we pay
such distribution with or before our first regutiividend payment after such declaration, and sagimgnt is made during the 12-month period
following the close of such taxable year. Suchriigtions are taxable to our shareholders in tte rewhich paid, even though the distributions
relate to our prior taxable year for purposes ef3@% distribution requirement.

In order for distributions to be counted as satigfythe annual distribution requirements for REI3isd to provide us with a REIT-level tax
deduction, the distributions must not be "prefdetmtividends.” A dividend is not a preferentiabidiend if the distribution is (i) pro rata among al
outstanding shares of stock within a particulassland (ii) in accordance with any preferences gnaifferent classes of stock as set forth in our
organizational documents

We believe that we have satisfied the annual 8istion requirements for the year of our initial RElection, December 31, 2014. Although
intend to satisfy the annual distribution requiratseto continue to qualify as a REIT for the yeadiag December 31, 2015 and thereafter, econt
market, legal, tax or other considerations coutdtlour ability to meet those requirements.

Failure to Qualify

If we fail to satisfy one or more requirements REIT qualification other than the income or asestd, we could avoid disqualification as a
REIT if our failure is due to reasonable cause rotdo willful neglect and we pay a penalty of 8] for each such failure. Relief provisions are
also available for failures of the income tests asskt tests, as described above in "—Income Tasts"—Asset Tests."

If we fail to qualify for taxation as a REIT in atgxable year, and the relief provisions descrieolve do not apply, we would be subject to
tax, including any applicable alternative minimwsm®,ton our taxable income at regular corporatesraiée cannot deduct distributions to shareho
in any year in which we are not a REIT, nor woulkel e required to make distributions in such a yeahis situation, to the extent of current and
accumulated earnings and profits (as determinet f8r federal income tax purposes), distributiansttareholders would be taxable as regular
corporate dividends. Such dividends paid to U.8redfolders that are individuals, trusts and estagsbe taxable at the preferential income taxs
(i.e., the 20% maximum U.S. federal rate) for diedi dividends. In addition, subject to the limitats of the Code, corporate distributes may be
eligible for the dividends received deduction. Wsleve are entitled to relief under specific stagupyovisions, we would also be disqualified from
re-electing to be taxed as a REIT for the four taxgkelars following the year during which we lost gualification. It is not possible to state whetl
in all circumstances, we would be entitled to Stegutory relief.

Legislative or Other Actions Affecting REI

The present U.S. federal income tax treatment dfREhay be modified, possibly with retroactive effeby legislative, judicial or
administrative action at any time. The REIT rules eonstantly under review by persons involvedhilegislative process and by the IRS and the
Treasury which may result in statutory changeselbas revisions to regulations and interpretati@tsanges to the U.S. federal tax laws and
interpretations thereof could adversely affectrarestment in our common stock.

Regulation

The ownership, operation, and management of, amdgion of certain products and services to, ganaing racing facilities are subject to
pervasive regulation. Gaming laws are generallgtagpon declarations of public policy designedrtiigrt gaming consumers and the viability and
integrity of the gaming industry. Gaming laws atsay be designed to protect and maximize state@ral tevenues derived through taxes and
licensing fees imposed on gaming industry participas well as to enhance economic developmentoamgm. To accomplish these public policy
goals, gaming laws establish procedures to enkateérticipants in the gaming industry meet cersé@ndards of character and fitness. In addition,
gaming laws require gaming industry participants to

. ensure that unsuitable individuals and organizatlwave no role in gaming operatic
. establish procedures designed to prevent cheatitidraudulent practice
. establish and maintain responsible accounting jeescind procedure

16




Table of Contents

. maintain effective controls over their finangmctices, including establishment of minimum gahares for internal fiscal affairs and the
safeguarding of assets and revenues;

. maintain systems for reliable record keeg

. file periodic reports with gaming regulatc

. ensure that contracts and financial transactwassommercially reasonable, reflect fair markddte and are armsngth transactions; a
. establish programs to promote responsible gal

These regulations will impact our business in tmpartant ways: (1) our ownership and operatioheftRS Properties and (2) the operations
of our gaming tenants. Our ownership and operaifdhe TRS Properties will subject GLPI and itsadfs and directors to the jurisdiction of the
gaming regulatory agencies in Louisiana and Mal&urther, many gaming and racing regulatory aigsnio the jurisdictions in which our gaming
tenants operate require GLPI and its affiliatesitintain a license as a key business entity orlmrpyf Penn because of its status as landlord.

Our businesses are subject to various federag atat local laws and regulations in addition to iggmegulations. These laws and regulations
include, but are not limited to, restrictions amshditions concerning alcoholic beverages, enviramalenatters, employees, health care, currency
transactions, taxation, zoning and building codesl, marketing and advertising. Such laws and réigakcould change or could be interpreted
differently in the future, or new laws and regudas could be enacted. Material changes, new lawsgorations, or material differences in
interpretations by courts or governmental authesitould adversely affect our operating results.

Insurance

We have comprehensive liability, property and besiinterruption insurance at our TRS Propertiesedards to our properties subject to
"triple-net" leases, the lease agreements requiréemants to have their own comprehensive lighititoperty and business interruption insurance
policies, including protection for our insurablegrests as the landlord.

Environmental Matters

Our properties are subject to environmental lavgsileting, among other things, air emissions, waatendischarges and the handling and
disposal of wastes, including medical wastes. @edgthe properties we own utilize above or undevgd storage tanks to store heating oil for u
the properties. Other properties were built duthngtime that asbestos-containing building matesiare routinely installed in residential and
commercial structures. Our "triple-net” leasesgdik the tenants thereunder to comply with appicabvironmental laws and to indemnify us if
their noncompliance results in losses or claimsresgas, and we expect that any future leasesnaliide the same provisions for other operators
operator's failure to comply could result in fireesl penalties or the requirement to undertake ctiveeactions which may result in significant costs
to the operator and thus adversely affect thelitaltd meet their obligations to us.

Pursuant to U.S. federal, state and local enviraoriahdaws and regulations, a current or previous@ver operator of real property may be
required to investigate, remove and/or remediatdemse of hazardous substances or other regutatitials at, or emanating from, such property.
Further, under certain circumstances, such owmepperators of real property may be held liablegiaperty damage, personal injury and/or natural
resource damage resulting from or arising in cotioeavith such releases. Certain of these laws lhaen interpreted to be joint and several unless
the harm is divisible and there is a reasonables basallocation of responsibility. We also mayI@ble under certain of these laws for damage that
occurred prior to our ownership of a property oa afte where we sent wastes for disposal. Theréatb properly remediate a property may also
adversely affect our ability to lease, sell or réra property or to borrow funds using the propesycollateral.

In connection with the ownership of our currentgedies and any properties that we may acquirkerfuture, we could be legally responsible
for environmental liabilities or costs relatingaaelease of hazardous substances or other regjufeierials at or emanating from such property. In
order to assess the potential for such liabilitg,most likely will engage a consultant to condulitréted environmental assessment of each property
prior to acquisition and oversee our propertieasdoordance with environmental laws. We are not awéany environmental issues that are expectec
to have a material impact on the operations ofcdrgur properties.

Pursuant to the Master Lease and a Separation iatribDtion Agreement between Penn and GLPI, aayility arising from or relating to
environmental liabilities arising from the businessnd operations of Penn's real property holdinigs to the Spin-Off (other than any liability
arising from or relating to the operation or owégpsof the TRS Properties and except to
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the extent first discovered after the end of thmtef the Master Lease) will be retained by PerthRann will indemnify GLPI (and its subsidiaries,
directors, officers, employees and agents andinesther related parties) against any losses arisom or relating to such environmental liabilitie
There can be no assurance that Penn will be alflg¢lycsatisfy its indemnification obligations. Meover, even if we ultimately succeed in recovering
from Penn any amounts for which we are held lialvle may be temporarily required to bear these fgdgéle seeking recovery from Penn.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014 , we had 807 full and paré employees. Substantially all of these emplsyae employed at Hollywood Casino
Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville. Therany believes its relations with its employeesgared.

Some of our employees at Hollywood Casino Permndle currently represented by labor unions. Tlade®ers Entertainment and Allied Tre
Union represents 210 of our employees at Hollyw@adino Perryville under an agreement that expirésbruary 2020. Additionally, Local No. 27
United Food and Commercial Workers and United ltrialsService Transportation Professional and Goremt Workers of North America
represent certain employees under collective baiggiagreements that expire in 2020, neither ottvihepresents more than 50 of our employees at
Hollywood Casino Perryville.

Available Information

For more information about us, visit our websitevatw.glpropinc.com. The contents of our website rmwepart of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Our electronic filings with the SEC (inding all annual reports on Form 10-K, quartedparts on Form 10-Q, and current reports on
Form 8-K, and any amendments to these reportdydimy the exhibits, are available free of chatgetgh our website as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file them withfurnish them to the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risk Factors Relating to Our Spin-Off from Penn
We may be unable to achieve some or all the berdfiait we expect to achieve from the Spin-Off.

We believe that, as a publicly traded company iedepnt from Penn, GLPI will have the ability to pue transactions with other gaming
operators that would not pursue transactions wéthnPas a current competitor, to fund acquisitiofik its equity on significantly more favorable
terms than those that would be available to Pendiviersify into different businesses in which Peama practical matter, could not diversify, sas
hotels, entertainment facilities and office spas®] to pursue certain transactions that Penn oibemwould be disadvantaged by or precluded from
pursuing due to regulatory constraints. Howeverywveg not be able to achieve some or all of the fitsrtbat we expect to achieve as a company
independent from Penn in the time we expect, llat

If the Spin-Off, together with certain related transactionspés not qualify as a transaction that is generatéx-free for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, GLPI could be subject to significant thabilities and, in certain circumstances, GLPI cddibe required to indemnify Penn for materi
taxes pursuant to indemnification obligations undéne Tax Matters Agreement.

Penn has received a private letter ruling fromlR® substantially to the effect that, among othérgs, the SpirGff, together with the require
compliance exchanges and certain related transactidll qualify as a transaction that is gener#dly-free for U.S. federal income tax purposes
under Sections 355 and/or 368(a)(1)(D) of the Qélde "IRS Ruling"). The IRS Ruling does not addresgain requirements for tdree treatment ¢
the Spin-Off under Section 355, and Penn receik@d fts tax advisors a tax opinion substantiallyhte effect that, with respect to such requirements
on which the IRS will not rule, such requiremerdsd been satisfied. The IRS Ruling, and the tariops that Penn received from its tax advisors,
relied on, among other things, certain represenatiassumptions and undertakings, including thelséing to the past and future conduct of GLPI's
business, and the IRS Ruling and the opinions woatde valid if such representations, assumptmsundertakings were incorrect in any material
respect.

Notwithstanding the IRS Ruling and the tax opiniahg IRS could determine the Spin-Off should leatied as a taxable transaction for U.S.
federal income tax purposes if it determines anthefrepresentations, assumptions or undertakiradsatere included in the request for the IRS
Ruling are false or have been violated or if iedisees with the conclusions in the opinions thatat covered by the IRS Ruling.
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Under a Tax Matters Agreement that GLPI enterealwith Penn, GLPI generally is required to indemrienn against any tax resulting from
the Spin-Off to the extent that such tax resultednf(i) an acquisition of all or a portion of thguity securities or assets of GLPI, whether by raerg
or otherwise, (ii) other actions or failures to BgtGLPI, or (iii) any of GLPI's representationsumdertakings being incorrect or violated. GLPI's
indemnification obligations to Penn and its sulasidis, officers and directors will not be limiteg &ny maximum amount. If GLPI is required to
indemnify Penn or such other persons under theristance set forth in the Tax Matters AgreemenRIGhay be subject to substantial liabilities.

GLPI may not be able to engage in desirable strategy capital-raising transactions following the $p-Off. In addition, GLPI could be liable for
adverse tax consequences resulting from engagingignificant strategic or capital-raising transaans.

To preserve the tax-free treatment to Penn of thie-Off, for the two-year period following the Spiff, GLPI may be prohibited, except in
specific circumstances, from: (1) entering into &maysaction pursuant to which all or a portiorGafPI's stock would be acquired, whether by me
or otherwise, (2) issuing equity securities beyoedain thresholds, (3) repurchasing GLPI commonkst(4) ceasing to actively conduct the busi
of operating Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge or Holbps Casino Perryville, or (5) taking or failingtetke any other action that prevents the Spin-
Off and related transactions from being tax-fregede restrictions may limit GLPI's ability to puesstrategic transactions or engage in new business
or other transactions that may maximize the vafuBldPl's business.

The Spin-Off agreements are not the result of negtibns between unrelated third parties.

The agreements that we entered into with Pennnnection with the Spin-Off, including the Separatand Distribution Agreement, Master
Lease, Tax Matters Agreement, Employee Matters émgent and Transition Services Agreement, were fegdtin the context of the Spin-Off
while we were still a whollyawned subsidiary of Penn. Accordingly, during tleeipd in which the terms of those agreements wegotiated, we di
not have an independent board of directors or sagement team independent of Penn. As a resulguglththose agreements are generally intended
to reflect arm's-length terms, the terms of thage@ments may not reflect terms that would haveltezs from arm's-length negotiations between
unaffiliated third parties. Accordingly, there da& no assurance that the terms of these agreemidirie as favorable for GLPI as would have
resulted from negotiations with one or more uneglghird parties.

The historical financial information included in tlis filing may not be a reliable indicator of futureesults.

The historical financial statements included hemimarily consist of the combined historical fircéad data of Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc.
and Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc., which were acquiga subsidiary of GLPI called GLP Holdings, Iremd which operate the TRS Properties. The
financial results for the years ended DecembeRB12, 2011 and 2010 reflect only the operatiorth@fTRS Properties, whereas financial results for
the Company's 2013 fiscal year reflect a full yefaoperations for the businesses in the taxableTREbsidiaries and a partial year from Novembt
2013 to December 31, 2013 for the real estateyentit

The historical financial statements included heoegimot reflect what the business, financial positrr results of operations of GLPI will be in
the future. Prior to the Spin-Off, the busines&aP| was operated by Penn as part of one corporgsmization and not operated as a stand-alone
company. Because GLPI has no significant histonpalrations and did not acquire the real estateestiip and development business of Penn until
immediately prior to the Spin-Off, there are nadikal financial statements for GLPI as it exigtbowing the Spin-Off. Significant changes will
occur in the cost structure, financing and busigesations of GLPI as a result of its operatioma atand-alone company and the entry into
transactions with Penn (and its subsidiaries) lthat not existed historically, including the Madtease.

The ownership by our executive officers and direct@f common shares, options or other equity awaod$2enn may create, or may create the
appearance of, conflicts of interest.

Because of their current or former positions wiémP, substantially all of our executive officers;luding our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer, and certain directors own comnsbrares of Penn, options to purchase common sbBRenn or other Penn equity awards as we
common shares, options to purchase common shadés ather equity awards in GLPI. The individualdings of common shares, options to
purchase common shares or other equity awardsrof &ed GLPI may be significant for some of thessqes compared to their total assets. These
equity interests may create, or appear to creatdlicts of interest when these directors and efficare faced with decisions that could benefit or
affect the equity holders of Penn in ways that dblrenefit or affect us in the same manner.

Peter M. Carlino, our Chairman and Chief Executiv®fficer, and David A. Handler, one of our directoralso serve on the Penn Board
Directors which may create conflicts of interest @for create regulatory obstacles for the Companyitspursuit of additional properties
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Peter M. Carlino serves as Chairman of Penn an@tiagrman and Chief Executive Officer of GLPI. kidétion, David A. Handler, one of our
directors, serves as a director at Penn. Thesdéappéng positions could create, or appear to cremteential conflicts of interest when our or Penn’
management and directors pursue the same corppptetunities, such as greenfield development dppdres, or face decisions that could have
different implications for us and Penn. For exampl#ential conflicts of interest could arise imoection with the negotiation or the resolution of
any dispute between us and Penn (or its subsid)aiégarding the terms of the agreements govethimgeparation and the relationship (e.g. Master
Lease) thereafter. Potential conflicts of inteesild also arise if we and Penn enter into any ceraial arrangements with each other in the future.
We have established a mechanism in our Corporatei@ance Guidelines to address potential conflietsugh the use of an independent director
but there can be no assurance that this procelsonmipletely eliminate conflicts resulting from algpping directors. In addition to potential
conflicts of interest, the overlapping director itios could create obstacles to engaging in cettainsactions in close proximity to existing Penn
properties and there can be no assurance thattimp&hy will be able to overcome such obstacles.

Potential indemnification liabilities of GLPI pursant to the Separation and Distribution Agreementutd materially adversely affect GLP

The Separation and Distribution Agreement betwekRI@nd Penn provides for, among other thingsptivecipal corporate transactions
required to effect the separation, certain condgito the separation and provisions governingetaionship between GLPI and Penn with respe
and resulting from the separation.

Among other things, the Separation and Distribufigmeement provides for indemnification obligatiatesigned to make GLPI financially
responsible for substantially all liabilities thaty result relating to or arising out of its busiself GLPI is required to indemnify Penn under the
circumstances set forth in the Separation andibigion Agreement, GLPI may be subject to substatitibilities.

In connection with the Spi-Off, Penn will indemnify us for certain liabilitis. However, there can be no assurance that theskemnities will be
sufficient to insure us against the full amount @&uch liabilities, or that Penn's ability to satisfiys indemnification obligation will not be impaire:
in the future.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agregnteenn has agreed to indemnify us for certabilitees. However, third parties could seek
to hold us responsible for any of the liabilitibat Penn agreed to retain, and there can be ncaassuthat Penn will be able to fully satisfy its
indemnification obligations. Moreover, even if wmately succeed in recovering from Penn any anetor which we are held liable, we may be
temporarily required to bear these losses whil&isgeecovery from Penn and such recovery coulceleamaterial adverse impact on Penn's fina
condition and ability to pay rent due under the tdakease.

A court could deem the distribution to be a frauduit conveyance and void the transaction or impogbstantial liabilities upon us

A court could deem the distribution of GLPI comnsgirares or certain internal restructuring transastimdertaken by Penn in connection with
the Spin-Off, or the Purging Distribution by GLRJ,be a fraudulent conveyance or transfer. Fraud@enveyances or transfers are defined to
include transfers made or obligations incurred it actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud eotror future creditors or transfers made or
obligations incurred for less than reasonably eajeint value when the debtor was insolvent, ortiadlered the debtor insolvent, inadequately
capitalized or unable to pay its debts as theytmecdue. In such circumstances, a court could V@dransactions or impose substantial liabilities
upon us, which could adversely affect our financ@hdition and our results of operations. Amongeothings, the court could require our
shareholders to return to Penn some or all of tlaees of our common stock issued in the distriloytio return some of the Purging Distribution to
GLPI, or require us to fund liabilities of othermpanies involved in the restructuring transactiimmghe benefit of creditors. Whether a transactson
a fraudulent conveyance or transfer will vary defieg upon the jurisdiction whose law is being apgli

Risk Factors Relating to the Status of GLPI as a RH

If GLPI does not qualify to be taxed as a REIT, @ils to remain qualified as a REIT, GLPI will beubject to U.S. federal income tax as a regu
corporation and could face a substantial tax lialtyl, which would reduce the amount of cash availeldbr distribution to shareholders of GLPI.

GLPI currently operates, and intends to continueperate, in a manner that will allow GLPI to gqfiatp be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, which GLPI currently expeetsdcur commencing with its taxable year beginminglanuary 1, 2014. GLPI received an
opinion from its special tax advisors, Wachtellption, Rosen & Katz and KPMG LLP (collectively thegecial Tax Advisors"), with respect to its
qualification as a REIT in connection with the SQIff. Investors should be aware, however, thatiopis of advisors are not binding on the IRS or
any court. The opinions of Special Tax
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Advisors represent only the view of the Special Balxisors based on their review and analysis astéxg law and on certain representations as to
factual matters and covenants made by GLPI, incfydépresentations relating to the values of GL&&&ets and the sources of GLPI's income. The
opinions are expressed as of the date issued.a&deci Advisors will have no obligation to advis&3 or the holders of GLPI common stock of
subsequent change in the matters stated, reprdsanéssumed or of any subsequent change in aplditzaw. Furthermore, both the validity of the
opinions of Special Tax Advisors and GLPI's quedifion as a REIT will depend on GLPI's satisfactibeertain asset, income, organizational,
distribution, shareholder ownership and other nesguéents on a continuing basis, the results of whidimot be monitored by Special Tax Advisors.
GLPI's ability to satisfy the asset tests depemmsUuGLPI's analysis of the characterization andrfairket values of its assets, some of which ate no
susceptible to a precise determination, and fockvi@BLPI will not obtain independent appraisals.

Penn has received a private letter ruling fromlR® with respect to certain issues relevant to Gl.§ualification as a REIT. In general, the
ruling provides, subject to the terms and condgtioantained therein, that (1) certain of the agsdt® held by GLPI after the Spin-Off and (2) the
methodology for calculating a certain portion dfitreeceived by GLPI pursuant to the Master Leadlenet adversely affect GLPI's qualification as a
REIT. Although GLPI may generally rely upon theimgl no assurance can be given that the IRS wilchallenge GLPI's qualification as a REIT on
the basis of other issues or facts outside theesobfhe ruling.

If GLPI were to fail to qualify to be taxed as alRHEn any taxable year, it would be subject to Uesleral income tax, including any applicable
alternative minimum tax, on its taxable incomeegfular corporate rates, and dividends paid to GhRteholders would not be deductible by GLF
computing its taxable income. Any resulting corpenébility could be substantial and would redtiee amount of cash available for distribution to
its shareholders, which in turn could have an agl/énpact on the value of GLPI common stock. Un&sBl were entitled to relief under certain
Code provisions, GLPI also would be disqualifieshfirre-electing to be taxed as a REIT for the fauable years following the year in which GLPI
failed to qualify to be taxed as a REIT.

Qualifying as a REIT involves highly technical ancomplex provisions of the Code.

Qualification as a REIT involves the applicationhighly technical and complex Code provisions fdiak only limited judicial and
administrative authorities exist. Even a techn@ahadvertent violation could jeopardize GLPI'sIRgualification. GLPI's qualification as a REIT
will depend on its satisfaction of certain assgtpime, organizational, distribution, shareholdenership and other requirements on a continuing
basis. In addition, GLPI's ability to satisfy treguirements to qualify to be taxed as a REIT maedd in part on the actions of third parties over
which it has no control or only limited influence.

GLPI could fail to qualify to be taxed as a REIT ihcome it receives from Penn or its subsidiariesniot treated as qualifying income.

Under applicable provisions of the Code, GLPI wik be treated as a REIT unless it satisfies varmeguirements, including requirements
relating to the sources of its gross income. Resusived or accrued by GLPI from Penn or its subsis will not be treated as qualifying rent for
purposes of these requirements if the Master Lisaset respected as a true lease for U.S. federahie tax purposes and is instead treated as a
service contract, joint venture or some other typarrangement. If the Master Lease is not respezdea true lease for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, GLPI may fail to qualify to be taxed &ET. Furthermore, GLPI's qualification as a RElill depend on GLPI's satisfaction of certain
asset, income, organizational, distribution, shalddr ownership and other requirements on a coimignioasis. GLPI's ability to satisfy the assetdest
depends upon GLPI's analysis of the characterizatiol fair market values of its assets, some o€hvhre not susceptible to a precise determination,
and for which GLPI will not obtain independent agipals.

In addition, subject to certain exceptions, reeteived or accrued by GLPI from Penn or its subsigs will not be treated as qualifying rent
for purposes of these requirements if GLPI or @anamr constructive owner of 10% or more of GLRIck actually or constructively owns 10% or
more of the total combined voting power of all skes of Penn stock entitled to vote or 10% or métheetotal value of all classes of Penn stock.
GLPI's charter provides for restrictions on owngrsind transfer of its shares of stock, includiegtrictions on such ownership or transfer that @oul
cause the rents received or accrued by GLPI fronm Be its subsidiaries to be treated as non-quadifyent for purposes of the REIT gross income
requirements. Nevertheless, there can be no assutlaat such restrictions will be effective in enrsg that rents received or accrued by GLPI from
Penn or its subsidiaries will not be treated adifyirag rent for purposes of REIT qualification neéigements.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for theduced tax rates available for some dividen

The maximum U.S. federal income tax rate applicabiacome from "qualified dividends" payable bySUcorporations to U.S. shareholders
that are individuals, trusts and estates is cugr@®%. Dividends payable by REITs, however, gelhera
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are not eligible for the reduced rates. Althougtsthrules do not adversely affect the taxationEIffR, the more favorable rates applicable to regula
corporate qualified dividends could cause invesidre are individuals, trusts or estates to perciivestments in REITs to be relatively less
attractive than investments in the stocks of nomTRBrporations that pay dividends, which could edely affect the value of the stock of REITs,
including GLPI's stock.

REIT distribution requirements could adversely affeGLPI's ability to execute its business ple

GLPI generally must distribute annually at leasy®6f its REIT taxable income, determined withogaed to the dividends paid deduction and
excluding any net capital gains, in order for GidPfualify to be taxed as a REIT (assuming thataeiother requirements are also satisfied) so that
U.S. federal corporate income tax does not appgatoings that GLPI distributes. To the extent GEPI satisfies this distribution requirement and
qualifies for taxation as a REIT but distributessi¢ghan 100% of its REIT taxable income, determimigdout regard to the dividends paid deduction
and including any net capital gains, GLPI will hibfect to U.S. federal corporate income tax omiigistributed net taxable income. In addition,
GLPI will be subject to a 4% nondeductible exceeif the actual amount that GLPI distributes soshareholders in a calendar year is less than a
minimum amount specified under U.S. federal incoaxdaws. GLPI intends to make distributions tosit®reholders to comply with the REIT
requirements of the Code.

From time to time, GLPI may generate taxable incgmeater than its cash flow as a result of diffeesnin timing between the recognition of
taxable income and the actual receipt of casheeffect of nondeductible capital expenditures,cfeation of reserves or required debt or
amortization payments. If GLPI does not have othieds available in these situations, GLPI coulddspiired to borrow funds on unfavorable terms,
sell assets at disadvantageous prices or distrdoataints that would otherwise be invested in fuhaguisitions to make distributions sufficient to
enable GLPI to pay out enough of its taxable inceongatisfy the REIT distribution requirement andavoid corporate income tax and the 4% excise
tax in a particular year. These alternatives cinddease GLPI's costs or reduce its equity. Thomypdiance with the REIT requirements may hinder
GLPI's ability to grow, which could adversely affé¢ise value of GLPI stock. Restrictions in GLPHdébtedness following the Spin-Off, including
restrictions on GLPI's ability to incur additionatiebtedness or make certain distributions, cotddlpde it from meeting the 90% distribution
requirement. Decreases in funds from operationga@uefinanced expenditures for acquisitions ofpgerties or increases in the number of shares of
GLPI common stock outstanding without commensurateeases in funds from operations each would adeaffect the ability of GLPI to
maintain distributions to its shareholders. Moregotiee failure of Penn to make rental payments utitieMaster Lease would materially impair the
ability of GLPI to make distributions. Consequentlyere can be no assurance that GLPI will be @hfeake distributions at the anticipated
distribution rate or any other rate.

Even if GLPI remains qualified as a REIT, GLPI maface other tax liabilities that reduce its cash ¥lo

Even if GLPI remains qualified for taxation as alREGLPI may be subject to certain U.S. federalfestand local taxes on its income and
assets, including taxes on any undistributed incantestate or local income, property and transfees. For example, GLPI holds certain of its a:
and conducts related activities through TRS suésidiorporations that are subject to federal, statd local corporate-level income taxes as regular
C corporations as well as state and local gamixgstan addition, GLPI may incur a 100% excisedaxransactions with a TRS if they are not
conducted on an arm's-length basis. Any of thesestavould decrease cash available for distributio@LPI shareholders.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause GLPIflarego otherwise attractive acquisition opportur@s or liquidate otherwise attractive
investments.

To qualify to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. fedenalbime tax purposes, GLPI must ensure that, atnti@fteach calendar quarter, at least 75%
of the value of its assets consists of cash, dasfsi government securities and "real estate &¢sstdgefined in the Code), including certain mage
loans and securities. The remainder of GLPI's itnuests (other than government securities, qualiféad estate assets and securities issued by a
TRS) generally cannot include more than 10% ofoilistanding voting securities of any one issuanore than 10% of the total value of the
outstanding securities of any one issuer. In amtjtin general, no more than 5% of the value of [&ZL#Btal assets (other than government securities,
qualified real estate assets and securities idsy@dTRS) can consist of the securities of anyissiger, and no more than 25% of the value of GLPI's
total assets can be represented by securitieseobomore TRSs. If GLPI fails to comply with thasguirements at the end of any calendar quarter, i
must correct the failure within 30 days after the ef the calendar quarter or qualify for certaatgtory relief provisions to avoid losing its REIT
qualification and suffering adverse tax consequenis a result, GLPI may be required to liquidatéooego otherwise attractive investments. These
actions could have the effect of reducing GLPI®ime and amounts available for distribution to G&Rdreholders.

In addition to the asset tests set forth abovguadify to be taxed as a REIT GLPI must continuahyisfy tests concerning, among other thi
the sources of its income, the amounts it distebub GLPI shareholders and the ownership of Gtdeks GLPI may be unable to pursue investm
that would be otherwise advantageous to GLPI ieota satisfy the
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source-of-income or asset-diversification requiretador qualifying as a REIT. Thus, compliance vilie REIT requirements may hinder GLPI's
ability to make certain attractive investments.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit GLPI'skility to hedge effectively and may cause GLPI teir tax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Code substantially li@itPI's ability to hedge its assets and liabilitiesome from certain hedging transactions
that GLPI may enter into to manage risk of interat changes with respect to borrowings made betmade to acquire or carry real estate assets o
from transactions to manage risk of currency flatians with respect to any item of income or ghu satisfy the REIT gross income tests (inclu
gain from the termination of such a transactiorgsdoot constitute "gross income" for purposes efb% or 95% gross income tests that apply to
REITs, provided that certain identification requirents are met. To the extent that GLPI entersattier types of hedging transactions or fails to
properly identify such transaction as a hedgeirtbeme is likely to be treated as nqualifying income for purposes of both of the groeome test:
As a result of these rules, GLPI may be requirdinit its use of advantageous hedging techniguesplement those hedges through a TRS. This
could increase the cost of GLPI's hedging actisiiecause the TRS may be subject to tax on gamgpmse GLPI to greater risks associated with
changes in interest rates that GLPI would otherwiaet to bear. In addition, losses in the TRS galherally not provide any tax benefit, except that
such losses could theoretically be carried badkmvard against past or future taxable income e TRS.

GLPI paid the Purging Distribution in common stocind cash and may pay taxable dividends on GLPI coamnstock in common stock and cash.
GLPI's shareholders may sell shares of GLPI commstiock to pay tax on such dividends, placing downd/aressure on the market price of GL
common stock.

GLPI paid the Purging Distribution in a combinatimincash and GLPI stock. Penn has received a prieéier ruling from the IRS with respect
to certain issues relevant to GLPI's payment ofthiging Distribution in a combination of cash &idP| stock. In general, the ruling provides,
subject to the terms and conditions contained thetteat (1) the Purging Distribution will be tredtas a dividend that will first reduce GLPI's
accumulated earnings and profits (as determinet f8r federal income tax purposes) attributableréoREIT years in satisfaction of the REIT
annual distribution requirement and (2) the amadirsiny GLPI stock received by any GLPI shareholepart of the Purging Distribution will be
considered to equal the amount of cash that ccalé been received instead. In the Purging Disiobug shareholder of GLPI common stock will
be required to report dividend income as a reduhi® Purging Distribution even though GLPI distrid no cash or only nominal amounts of cash to
such shareholder.

GLPI currently intends to pay dividends (other tliag Purging Distribution) in cash only, and nekind. However, if for any taxable year,
GLPI has significant amounts of taxable incomexoess of available cash flow, GLPI may declared#inds in-kind in order to satisfy the REIT
annual distribution requirements. GLPI may disttéa portion of its dividends in the form of itesk or its debt instruments. In either event, a
shareholder of GLPI common stock will be requiredeport dividend income as a result of such distions even though GLPI distributed no cash
or only nominal amounts of cash to such shareholder

The IRS has issued private letter rulings to oREITs (and, with respect to the Purging Distribatand as described above, to Penn) treating
certain distributions that are paid partly in casld partly in stock as taxable dividends that waaltisfy the REIT annual distribution requirement
and qualify for the dividends paid deduction foSBUfederal income tax purposes. Those rulings neaglied upon only by taxpayers to whom they
were issued, but GLPI could request a similar gufiom the IRS. GLPI cannot rely on the privatédetuling Penn received from the IRS, as
described above, with respect to the payment afleinds other than the Purging Distribution. In &iddi the IRS previously issued a revenue
procedure authorizing publicly traded REITs to malextive cash/stock dividends, but that revenoegture does not apply to GLPI's taxable year
beginning on January 1, 2014 and future taxablesyéacordingly, it is unclear whether and to whatent GLPI will be able to make taxable
dividends (other than the Purging Distribution) glalg in-kind.

If GLPI made any taxable dividend payable in casth @mmon stock, taxable shareholders receiving dividends will be required to inclur
the full amount of the dividend as ordinary incotmé¢he extent of GLPI's current and accumulatedirgs and profits, as determined for U.S. fed
income tax purposes. As a result, shareholderslraagquired to pay income tax with respect to glicidends in excess of the cash dividends
received. If a U.S. shareholder sells the GLPIlstbat it receives as a dividend in order to pay tax, the sales proceeds may be less than the
amount included in income with respect to the divid, depending on the market price of the stotkeatime of the sale. Furthermore, with respe
certain non-U.S. shareholders, GLPI may be requoedthhold federal income tax with respect totsdividends, including in respect of all or a
portion of such dividend that is payable in GLRIcht If, in any taxable dividend payable in cast &1L PI stock, a significant number of GLPI
shareholders determine to sell shares of GLPI stookder to pay taxes owed on dividends, it mayibeved as economically equivalent to a
dividend reduction and put downward pressure onrtagket price of GLPI stock.
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Even if GLPI qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, GLRbuld be subject to tax on any unrealized net k-in gains in the assets held before electing to
be treated as a REIT.

GLPI owns appreciated assets that were held bgarfidration before GLPI elected to be treated REA and were acquired by GLPI in a
transaction in which the adjusted tax basis ofatbsets in GLPI's hands is determined by referentieetadjusted tax basis of the assets in the hands
of the C corporation. If GLPI disposes of any sappreciated assets during the ten-year periodwWollp GLPI's acquisition of the assets from the C
corporation (i.e., during the ten-year period fallog GLPI's qualification as a REIT), GLPI will lseibject to tax at the highest corporate tax rates o
any gain from such assets to the extent of thessxokthe fair market value of the assets on the tthat they were acquired by GLPI (i.e., at theeti
that GLPI became a REIT) over the adjusted taxshafssuch assets on such date, which are refesras builtin gains. GLPI would be subject to t
tax liability even if it qualifies and maintainsistatus as a REIT. Any recognized built-in gaith sgtain its character as ordinary income or clpit
gain and will be taken into account in determinRIgIT taxable income and GLPI's distribution reqoiemt. Any tax on the recognized built-in gain
will reduce REIT taxable income. GLPI may choosetoasell in a taxable transaction appreciatedtassmight otherwise sell during the ten-year
period in which the built-in gain tax applies irder to avoid the built-in gain tax. However, theam be no assurances that such a taxable tramsactio
will not occur. If GLPI sells such assets in a tararansaction, the amount of corporate tax tHa®IGvill pay will vary depending on the actual
amount of net built-in gain or loss present in thassets as of the time GLPI became a REIT. Theuaihod tax could be significant.

Risk Factors Relating to Our Business following th&pin-Off

We are dependent on Penn (including its subsidiadientil we substantially diversify our portfoli@nd an event that has a material adverse effect
on Penn's business, financial position or resulté @perations could have a material adverse effestaur business, financial position or results of
operations.

A subsidiary of Penn is the lessee of substantallgf our properties pursuant to the Master Less accounts for a significant portion of our
revenues. Additionally, because the Master Leaadriple-net lease, we depend on Penn to papsllrance, taxes, utilities and maintenance and
repair expenses in connection with these leasquepiies and to indemnify, defend and hold us hasifeom and against various claims, litigation
and liabilities arising in connection with its bngss. There can be no assurance that Penn willshdfigient assets, income and access to finarto
enable it to satisfy its payment obligations uritherMaster Lease. The inability or unwillingnesg$einn to meet its subsidiary's rent obligations and
other obligations under the Master Lease could rizditeadversely affect our business, financialifios or results of operations, including our atyi
to pay dividends to our shareholders as requireddimtain our status as a REIT. For these reaffofsnn were to experience a material adverse
effect on its gaming business, financial positiomesults of operations, our business, financiaitm or results of operations could also be
materially adversely affected.

Due to our dependence on rental payments from Rediits tenant subsidiary as our main source @mees, we may be limited in our ability
to enforce our rights under the Master Lease ¢tenminate the lease with respect to a particulapgrty. Failure by Penn's tenant subsidiary to
comply with the terms of the Master Lease or to plymwvith the gaming regulations to which the leapeaperties are subject could require us to find
another lessee for such leased property and toeitd be a decrease or cessation of rental payrbgrigenn. In such event, we may be unable to
locate a suitable lessee at similar rental rated all, which would have the effect of significignteducing our rental revenues.

Our pursuit of investments in, and acquisitions development of, additional properties may be unsessful or fail to meet our expectations.

We operate in a highly competitive industry andefaompetition from other REITS, investment compsnigivate equity and hedge fund
investors, sovereign funds, lenders, gaming conggaamd other investors, some of whom are significéerger and have greater resources and |
costs of capital. Increased competition will makeore challenging to identify and successfullyitajze on acquisition opportunities that meet our
investment objectives. If we cannot identify andgiase a sufficient quantity of gaming propertied ather properties at favorable prices or if we
unable to finance acquisitions on commercially fabbe terms, our business, financial position sults of operations could be materially adversely
affected. Additionally, the fact that we must distite 90% of our net taxable income in order tonten our qualification as a REIT may limit our
ability to rely upon rental payments from our lehpeoperties or subsequently acquired propertiesder to finance acquisitions. As a result, iftdeb
or equity financing is not available on acceptdblens, further acquisitions might be limited ortailed. Furthermore, fluctuations in the price af o
common stock may impact our ability to finance éiddal acquisitions through the issuance of comstogk and/or cause significant dilution.

Investments in and acquisitions of gaming propsried other properties we might seek to acquiraleigks associated with real estate
investments generally, including that the investtsgrerformance will fail to meet expectations ttiie cost estimates for necessary property
improvements will prove inaccurate or that the t#naperator or manager will underperform.
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Real estate development projects present othes, lis&luding construction delays or cost overrunag increase expenses, the inability to obtain
required zoning, occupancy and other governmepiaicavals and permits on a timely basis, and thermeace of significant development costs prior
to completion of the project.

We are dependent on the gaming industry and maysbsceptible to the risks associated with it, whiuld materially adversely affect our
business, financial position or results of operatis.

As the owner of gaming facilities, we are impadbgdhe risks associated with the gaming industher€&fore, our success is to some degree
dependent on the gaming industry, which could heestly affected by economic conditions in generl@dnges in consumer trends and preferences
and other factors over which we and our tenants mavcontrol. As we are subject to risks inhererduibstantial investments in a single industry, a
decrease in the gaming business would likely hayeater adverse effect on our revenues than dwreed a more diversified real estate portfolio,
particularly because a component of the rent utideMaster Lease is based, over time, on the pedoce of the gaming facilities operated by Penn
on our properties.

The gaming industry is characterized by an increpsuimber of gaming facilities with an increasinbigh degree of competition among a
large number of participants, including riverboasioos, dockside casinos, land-based casinos, lotteoy, sweepstakes and poker machines not
located in casinos, Native American gaming andrdibrens of gaming in the U.S. Furthermore, compatifrom internet lotteries, sweepstakes, and
other internet wagering gaming services, whichvalloeir customers to wager on a wide variety ofrépg events and play Las Vegas-style casino
games from home or in non-casino settings, cowdrtdcustomers from our properties and thus adiyeesgect our business. Such internet wagering
services are often illegal under federal law bigrate exclusively in certain states and from ov&sdecations, and are accessible to certain doenesti
gamblers. Currently, there are proposals that wiagdlize internet poker and other varieties oéinet gaming in a number of states and at the
federal level. Several states, including Nevaday Nersey and Delaware, have enacted legislatidiogring intrastate internet gaming and internet
gaming operations have begun in these states. Biquaaf internet gaming in other jurisdictions (foéggal and illegal) could further compete with
our traditional operations, which could have aneadg impact on our business and result of opemation

The operations of our facilities are subject tawdisions or reduced patronage as a result of seveather conditions, natural disasters and
casualty events. Because many of our facilitiedarated on or adjacent to bodies of water, theysabject to risks in addition to those associated
with land-based facilities, including loss of see/due to casualty, forces of nature, mechanidakéa extended or extraordinary maintenance, flood
hurricane or other severe weather conditions. Agamment of the rent under the Master Lease is based, time, on the performance of the gaming
facilities operated by Penn on our properties; eqoently, a casualty that leads to the loss obfisecasino facility subject to the Master Leagesit
extended period may negatively impact our revenues.

We face extensive regulation from gaming and othliegulatory authorities.

The ownership, operation, and management of gaamdgacing facilities are subject to pervasive l&iipn. These regulations impact both
ownership and operation of the TRS Properties haaperations of our gaming tenants. Our ownerahipoperation of the TRS Properties subject
GLPI and its officers and directors to the jurigidin of the gaming regulatory agencies in Louisiand Maryland. Further, many gaming and racing
regulatory agencies in the jurisdictions in whi@nR operates require GLPI and its affiliates tontzn a license as a key business entity or supplie
of Penn because of GLPI's status as landlord.

In many jurisdictions, gaming laws can require @erbf our shareholders to file an applicationjrhestigated, and qualify or have his, her or
its suitability determined by gaming authoritiean@ng authorities have very broad discretion iredatning whether an applicant should be deemed
suitable. Subject to certain administrative proaegdequirements, the gaming regulators have tlteoaity to deny any application or limit,
condition, restrict, revoke or suspend any licensgistration, finding of suitability or approval; fine any person licensed, registered or found
suitable or approved, for any cause deemed realsobglthe gaming authorities.

Many jurisdictions also require any person who &egubeneficial ownership of more than a certairc@etage of voting securities of a gaming
company and, in some jurisdictions, non-voting siées, typically 5%, to report the acquisitiongaming authorities, and gaming authorities may
require such holders to apply for qualificationadinding of suitability, subject to limited excéuis for "institutional investors" that hold a coamy'
voting securities for investment purposes only. 8gumnisdictions may also limit the number of gamiisgnses in which a person may hold an
ownership or a controlling interest.

Additionally, substantially all material loans, &, sales of securities and similar financingstations by GLPI and its subsidiaries must be
reported to and in some cases approved by gamthgrities. Neither GLPI nor any of its subsidiarieay make a public offering of securities
without the prior approval of certain gaming autties. Changes in control through
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merger, consolidation, stock or asset acquisitioreagement or consulting agreements, or otheavessubject to receipt of prior approval of
gaming authorities. Entities seeking to acquiretimdof GLPI or one of its subsidiaries must satighming authorities with respect to a variety of
stringent standards prior to assuming control.

Required regulatory approvals can delay or prohibiansfers of our gaming properties, which couldsét in periods in which we are unable
receive rent for such properties.

The tenants of our gaming properties are operatiogaming facilities, which operators must be lisedt under applicable state law. Prior to the
transfer of gaming facilities, the new operatoreyatly must become licensed under state law. Iretleat that the Master Lease or any future lease
agreement we will enter into is terminated or eepiand a new tenant is found, any delays in theteeant receiving regulatory approvals from the
applicable state government agencies, or the ihatol receive such approvals, may prolong theqaeduring which we are unable to collect the
applicable rent.

Our charter restricts the ownership and transfer ofir outstanding stock, which may have the effe€delaying, deferring or preventing a
transaction or change of control of our company.

In order for GLPI to qualify to be taxed as a REtdf more than 50% in value of its outstanding sbaf stock may be owned, actually or
constructively, by five or fewer individuals at atijme during the last half of each taxable yeaeratte first year for which GLPI elects to qualify
be taxed as a REIT. Additionally, at least 100 pessmust beneficially own GLPI stock during at te285 days of a taxable year (other than the first
taxable year for which GLPI elects to be taxed BEHT). GLPI's charter, with certain exceptionsthawmizes the Board of Directors to take such
actions as are necessary and desirable to preS&REs qualification as a REIT. GLPI's charter gisovides that, subject to certain exceptions
exempted by the Board of Directors, no person nemeficially or constructively own more than 7% alwe or in number, whichever is more
restrictive, of GLPI's outstanding shares of alssles and series of stock. The constructive owipensles are complex and may cause shares of stocl
owned directly or constructively by a group of tethindividuals or entities to be constructivelyr@d by one individual or entity. These ownership
limits could delay or prevent a transaction or argje in control of GLPI that might involve a premigprice for shares of GLPI stock or otherwise be
in the best interests of GLPI shareholders. Theiattipn of less than 7% of our outstanding stogkah individual or entity could cause that
individual or entity to own beneficially or consttively in excess of 7% in value of our outstandétgck, and thus violate our charter's ownership
limit. Our charter prohibits any person from own#ttares of our stock that would result in our béuigsely held" under Section 856(h) of the Cc
Any attempt to own or transfer shares of our siackiolation of these restrictions may result ie thansfer being automatically void. GLPI's charter
also provides that shares of GLPI's capital stacjused or held in excess of the ownership limit i transferred to a trust for the benefit of a
designated charitable beneficiary, and that anggrewho acquires shares of GLPI's capital stockdlation of the ownership limit will not be
entitled to any dividends on the shares or beledttb vote the shares or receive any proceeds thersubsequent sale of the shares in excess of the
lesser of the market price on the day the shares ir@nsferred to the trust or the amount realfrenh the sale. GLPI or its designee will have the
right to purchase the shares from the trusteesit#iculated price as well. A transfer of shae&loPI's capital stock in violation of the limit mde
void under certain circumstances. GLPI's 7% owriprigimitation may have the effect of delaying, deiieg or preventing a change in control of
GLPI, including an extraordinary transaction (sasha merger, tender offer or sale of all or sultisthnall of our assets) that might provide a
premium price for GLPI's shareholders. To assisP{3h complying with applicable gaming laws, ouader also provides that capital stock of Gl
that is owned or controlled by an unsuitable pexwoan affiliate of an unsuitable person will banisferred to a trust for the benefit of a desighate
charitable beneficiary, and that any such unsiétalerson or affiliate will not be entitled to anyidends on the shares or be entitled to vote the
shares or receive any proceeds from the subsegalkentf the shares in excess of the lesser ofrtbe paid by the unsuitable person or affiliate for
the shares or the amount realized from the sakadh case less a discount in a percentage (UD#b)1to be determined by our Board of Director
its sole and absolute discretion. The shares allditionally be redeemable by GLPI, out of fundgaley available for that redemption, to the extent
required by the gaming authorities making the aeteation of unsuitability or to the extent detereuirto be necessary or advisable by our Board of
Directors, at a redemption price equal to the lesgé) the market price on the date of the redgompnotice, (ii) the market price on the redemptio
date, or (iii) the actual amount paid for the skdrg the owner thereof, in each case less a dis@oanpercentage (up to 100%) to be determined by
our Board of Directors in its sole and absoluterigon.

Pennsylvania law and provisions in our charter afaylaws may delay or prevent takeover attempts lrgltharties and therefore inhibit GLPI's
shareholders from realizing a premium on their stac

GLPI's charter and bylaws contain, and PennsylMamiecontains, provisions that are intended tordetercive takeover practices and
inadequate takeover bids and to encourage prospettuirors to negotiate with GLPI's Board of Diogs rather than to attempt a hostile takeover.
GLPI's charter and bylaws, among other thingsdijpt the Board of Directors, without further actiof the shareholders, to issue and fix the terms
of preferred stock, which may have rights senidhtise of the common stock; (ii) establish certalmance notice procedures for shareholder
proposals, and require all director candidatesetoeisgommended by the nominating committee of ther@of Directors; (iii) classify our Board of
Directors into
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three separate classes with staggered terms;r@vjde that a director may only be removed by dhalders for cause and upon the vote of 75% of
the shares entitled to vote; (v) not permit dimmtination by shareholders of nominees for elediotme Board of Directors, but instead permit
shareholders to recommend potential nominees todimpensation and governance committee; (vi) reqghiareholders to have beneficially owne
least 1% of the outstanding GLPI common stock @deoto recommend a person for nomination for edactd the Board of Directors, or to present a
shareholder proposal, for action at a shareholdeeting; and (vii) provide for supermajority appabrvequirements for amending or repealing cel
provisions in our charter and in order to approveendment or repeal of any provision of our bglélwat has not been proposed by our Board of
Directors.

In addition, specific anti-takeover provisions ierAsylvania law could make it more difficult fothard party to attempt a hostile takeover.
These provisions require (i) approval of certaamsactions by a majority of the voting stock ottan that held by the potential acquirer; (ii) the
acquisition at "fair value" of all the outstandisigares not held by an acquirer of 20% or morg;difive-year moratorium on certain "business
combination” transactions with an "interested shalder;" (iv) the loss by interested shareholdéitheir voting rights over "control shares;" (vEeth
disgorgement of profits realized by an interesteatsholder from certain dispositions of GLPI shaaesl (vi) severance payments for certain
employees and prohibiting termination of certaimolacontracts.

GLPI's believes these provisions will protect haieholders from coercive or otherwise unfair taledactics by requiring potential acquirers
to negotiate with GLPI's Board of Directors anddogviding GLPI's Board of Directors with more tineassess any acquisition proposal. These
provisions are not intended to make GLPI immunenftakeovers or to prevent a transaction from ogogriHowever, these provisions will apply
even if the offer may be considered beneficial taps shareholders and could delay or prevent ansitign that GLPI's Board of Directors
determines is not in the best interests of GLPEsEhprovisions may also prevent or discourage ptteta remove and replace incumbent directors.

Our management team, including chairman and chiefexutive officer, Peter M. Carlino, and chief finamial officer, William J. Clifford, has
limited experience operating a REIT.

The requirements for qualifying as a REIT are higbthnical and complex. Our management team, direduichairman and chief executive
officer, Peter M. Carlino, and chief financial a#r, William J. Clifford, has limited experiencedgamplying with the income, asset and other
limitations imposed by the REIT provisions of thede. Any failure to comply with those provisionsaiimely manner could prevent GLPI from
qualifying as a REIT or could force GLPI to pay ypected taxes and penalties. In such event, GhBt';:come would be reduced and GLPI could
incur a loss, which could materially harm its besis, financial position or results of operationsaddition, there is no assurance that their past
experience with the acquisition, development asgakition of gaming facilities will be sufficierd £nable them to successfully manage GLPI's
portfolio of properties as required by its businglss or the REIT provisions of the Code.

If we lose our key management personnel, we maylmable to successfully manage our business arfuex@ our objectives

Our success depends in large part upon the leagenstl performance of our executive management,tparticularly Peter M. Carlino, our
chief executive officer, and William J. Cliffordupchief financial officer. If we lose the servicglsMessrs. Carlino or Clifford, we may not be atd
successfully manage our business or achieve oumdassobjectives. Furthermore, with the exceptibthe Company's Senior Vice President of
Corporate Development, the Company does not hayermmployment agreements in place with its executiamagement team at this time.

We may experience uninsured or underinsured losselich could result in a significant loss of the pdal we have invested in a property,
decrease anticipated future revenues or cause usitorr unanticipated expense.

While the Master Lease requires, and new leaseeagets are expected to require, that compreheimsiueance and hazard insurance be
maintained by the tenants, a tenant's failure togdp could lead to an uninsured or underinsured &gl there can be no assurance that we will be
able to recover such uninsured or underinsured atadtom such tenant. Futher, there are certaiestyyf losses, generally of a catastrophic nature,
such as earthquakes, hurricanes and floods, thabmaninsurable or not economically insurableutasce coverage may not be sufficient to pay
full current market value or current replacemergtad a loss. Inflation, changes in building coded ordinances, environmental considerations, and
other factors also might make it infeasible to ins@irance proceeds to replace the property aftdr property has been damaged or destroyed. Unde
such circumstances, the insurance proceeds receilgd not be adequate to restore the economidiposiith respect to such property.

If we experience a loss that is uninsured or tkeeeds our policy coverage limits, we could losedhpital invested in the damaged properties
as well as the anticipated future cash flows froose properties. In addition, if the damaged prigewere subject to recourse indebtedness, we
could continue to be liable for the indebtednesmdf/these properties were irreparably damaged.
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In addition, even if damage to our properties igezed by insurance, a disruption of our businesse@ by a casualty event may result in the
loss of business or tenants. The business intéoruptsurance we carry may not fully compensatéoushe loss of business or tenants due to an
interruption caused by a casualty event. Furtli@né of our tenants has insurance but is underélsthat tenant may be unable to satisfy its
payment obligations under its lease with us.

A disruption in the financial markets may make @mndifficult to evaluate the stability, net assatsl capitalization of insurance companies
any insurer's ability to meet its claim paymentigdtions. A failure of an insurance company to mpitgments to us upon an event of loss covert
an insurance policy could adversely affect our hess, financial condition and results of operations

The price of our common stock may fluctuate sigicéintly.

Our stock price may fluctuate in response to a remebevents and factors, such as variations imadipg results, changes in market interest
rates, actions by various regulatory agencies agidlatures, operating competition, market pero@gtiprogress with respect to potential
acquisitions, changes in financial estimates andmenendations by securities analysts, the actibrating agencies, the operating and stock price
performance of other companies that investors negyrdcomparable to us, and news reports relatitrgmols in our markets or general economic
conditions.

Environmental compliance costs and liabilities assated with real estate properties owned by us mmterially impair the value of thos
investments.

As an owner of real property, we are subject taoverfederal, state and local environmental andtthhead safety laws and regulations.
Although we will not operate or manage most of piaperty, we may be held primarily or jointly arelerally liable for costs relating to the
investigation and clean-up of any property fromathihere has been a release or threatened releasegqulated material as well as other affected
properties, regardless of whether we knew of oseduhe release.

In addition to these costs, which are typically lmited by law or regulation and could exceed pheperty's value, we could be liable for
certain other costs, including governmental fined iajuries to persons, property or natural resesir€&urther, some environmental laws create a lien
on the contaminated site in favor of the governni@ntamages and the costs the government incwsnnection with such contamination.

Although we intend to require our operators anémgs to undertake to indemnify us for certain esrwinental liabilities, including
environmental liabilities they cause, the amourgwafh liabilities could exceed the financial ailif the tenant or operator to indemnify us. The
presence of contamination or the failure to remediantamination may adversely affect our abilitygell or lease the real estate or to borrow using
the real estate as collateral.

Risks Related to Our Capital Structure
We may have future capital needs and may not beedblobtain additional financing on acceptable tesm

As of December 31, 2014 , we had indebtedness.6f$dllion , with an additional $441.3 million alable for borrowing under our revolving
credit facility. We may incur additional indebtedseén the future to refinance our existing indebtess$ or to finance newly-acquired properties. Any
significant additional indebtedness could requisalbstantial portion of our cash flow to make ieggrand principal payments due on our
indebtedness. Greater demands on our cash resonageeduce funds available to us to pay dividendske capital expenditures and acquisition
carry out other aspects of our business strategyeased indebtedness can also limit our abiligdjast rapidly to changing market conditions, make
us more vulnerable to general adverse economicralidtry conditions and create competitive disathges for us compared to other companies
with relatively lower debt levels and/or borrowiogsts. Increased future debt service obligationg linét our operational flexibility, including our
ability to acquire properties, finance or refinamee properties, contribute properties to jointtwees or sell properties as needed.

We may be unable to obtain additional financindreancing on favorable terms or our operating désl may be insufficient to satisfy our
financial obligations under indebtedness outstapétiom time to time (if any). Among other thingsgtabsence of an investment grade credit rating
or any credit rating downgrade could increase marfcing costs and could limit our access to fifrmgpsources. If financing is not available when
needed, or is available on unfavorable terms, we lmeaunable to develop new or enhance our exigtiogerties, complete acquisitions or otherwise
take advantage of business opportunities or respmodmpetitive pressures, any of which could haweaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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We may be subject to significant dilution causedthg additional issuance of equity securities.

Subsequent to our Spin-Off from Penn, our abilitehgage in significant equity issuances has heetet and restricted in order to preserve
the tax-free nature of the Spin-Off. If and wheulitidnal funds are raised through the issuanceyaitg securities, our shareholders may experience
significant dilution. Additionally, sales of subsetal amounts of our common stock in the public keafollowing the Spin-Off, or the perception that
such sales could occur, could adversely affechiheket price of our common stock, may make it nafcult for our shareholders to sell their GL
common stock at a time and price that they deemoapipte and could impair our future ability tosaicapital through an offering of our equity
securities.

An increase in market interest rates could increasgr interest costs on existing and future debt aoould adversely affect our stock pric

If interest rates increase, so could our interestcfor any new debt and our variable rate deligations. This increased cost could make the
financing of any acquisition more costly, as wall@wer our current period earnings. Rising interates could limit our ability to refinance exisli
debt when it matures or cause us to pay higherdsteates upon refinancing. In addition, an insegia interest rates could decrease the acceds thir
parties have to credit, thereby decreasing the abtbey are willing to pay for our assets and cqasatly limiting our ability to reposition our
portfolio promptly in response to changes in ecoicon other conditions.

Further, the dividend yield on our common stocka g&rcentage of the price of such common stodkjnfluence the price of such common
stock. Thus, an increase in market interest ratslead prospective purchasers of our common gtwekpect a higher dividend yield, which would
adversely affect the market price of our commoglsto

Covenants in our debt agreements may limit our ogéwnal flexibility, and a covenant breach or defdwcould materially adversely affect our
business, financial position or results of operatis.

The agreements governing our indebtedness coniatproary covenants, including restrictions on duility to grant liens on our assets, incur
indebtedness, sell assets, make investments, eirgagguisitions, mergers or consolidations andgeyain dividends and other restricted payments.
We have to comply with the following financial cavants: a maximum total debt to total asset valtie o 60% (subject to increase to 65% for
specified periods in connection with certain acigjioiss), a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio @62, a maximum senior secured debt to total
asset value ratio of 40% and a maximum unsecurettdeinencumbered asset value ratio of 60%. Tresgdctions may limit our operational
flexibility. Covenants that limit our operationdéxibility as well as defaults under our debt instents could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position or results of operatio

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Rental Properties

As of December 31, 2014 , all but one of the Comgsat9 rental properties were leased to a subgidiaPenn under the Master Lease, a
"triple-net" operating lease with an initial terld years with no purchase option, followed byrfbtyear renewal options (exercisable by Penn) on
the same terms and conditions. The Casino Quesa Isalso a "triple-net" operating lease with tegimilar to those of the Master Lease.

In addition, see Item 1 for further information @éning to our rental properties.
TRS Properties
Hollywood Casino Baton Rou

Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge is a dockside rivetlmaaino located on approximately 20.1 acres, whielown, on the east bank of the
Mississippi River in the East Baton Rouge Downtdwavelopment District. The property site serveshasdockside embarkation for Hollywood
Casino Baton Rouge and features a two-story bujldivie also own approximately 4.8 acres of land @hatused primarily for offices, warehousing,
and parking, and approximately 4 acres of adjaleent which features a railroad underpass that ges/unimpeded access to the casino property.
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Hollywood Casino Perryvills

We own 36.4 acres of land in Perryville, Marylankdere Hollywood Casino Perryville is located. Theperty is located directly off Interstate
95 in Cecil County, Maryland just 35 miles northeafsBaltimore and 70 miles from Washington, D.C.

See Item 1 for further information pertaining ta GRS properties.
Corporate Office

Pursuant to our Transition Services Agreement ®Rihn, we currently occupy office space in Penngarate office buildings in Wyomissing,
Pennsylvania. During the current year, construatmmmenced on a new corporate headquarters buil@irgbuilding site is located in Wyomissil
Pennsylvania. We expect to move into the new bugjdin 2015.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On May 14, 2014, the Company announced that iredt@to an agreement with CCR to acquire The MeadRacetrack and Casino locate!
Washington, Pennsylvania, a suburb of PittsburghnBylvania. The agreement provides that closinlgeoacquisition is subject to, among other
things, the accuracy of CCR’s representations &ncbimpliance with the covenants set forth in thyeement, as well as the approval of the
Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board and PennsyMRaiging Commission. On October 27, 2014, the Comfiited/a lawsuit in the Southern
District of New York against CCR alleging, amongetthings, fraud, breach of the agreement anctchrefthe related consulting agreement ent
into at the same time. The lawsuit was subsequestiifed in New York state court on January 7, 2@dr procedural reasons. The Company is
seeking a declaratory judgment that CCR has bresttigeagreements, return of $10 million paid punsta a related consulting agreement and an
unspecified amount of additional damages. The Compall further evaluate and consider all other egties available to it, including termination
of the agreements.

Although the Company intends to pursue its clailgemusly, there can be no assurances that the @ayngill prevail on any of the claims in
the action, or, if the Company does prevail on onmore of the claims, of the amount of recovest thay be awarded to the Company for such
claim(s). In addition, the timing and resolutiontlbé claims set forth in the lawsuit are unprediletaand the Company is not able to currently ptedic
any effect this suit may have on closing of thesestion.

The Company is subject to various legal and aditnatise proceedings relating to personal injuresaployment matters, commercial
transactions and other matters arising in the nbcowrse of business. The Company does not belietehe final outcome of these matters will i
a material adverse effect on the Company's coretelitffinancial position or results of operatiomsa¢idition, the Company maintains what it beli¢
is adequate insurance coverage to further mitidiegteisks of such proceedings. However, such paioge can be costly, time consuming and
unpredictable and, therefore, no assurance caivee that the final outcome of such proceedings m@ymaterially impact the Company's
consolidated financial condition or results of ggEms. Further, no assurance can be given thairtoeint or scope of existing insurance coverage
will be sufficient to cover losses arising from bunatters.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RE LATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol "GLPI." The followirapte sets forth for the periods

indicated the high and low closing prices per slud@ur common stock as reported on the NASDAQ @l&elect Market and cash dividends per
share for the same periods.

Dividends per

High Low Share
2014
First Quarter $ 50.4: $ 33.9¢ $ 12.3¢ @
Second Quarter 38.3: 32.4] 0.52
Third Quarter 35.8¢ 30.9( 0.52
Fourth Quarter 32.61 28.1¢ 0.9:®
2013%
Fourth Quarter $ 50.82 $ 41.2C $ —

The closing sale price per share of our commorkstocthe NASDAQ Global Select Market on February 2015, was $33.79. As of February
20, 2015, there were approximately 457 holdergobrd of our common stock.

®QOur stock began trading on the NASDAQ Global Seldatket on October 14, 2013.

@Includes the February 18, 2014 Purging Distributishich totaled $1.05 billion or $11.84 per comnshrare and was comprised of cash and
GLPI common stock, to distribute the accumulatediegs and profits related to the real propertyetssand attributable to any pre-REIT years,
including any earnings and profits allocated to GinRconnection with the Spin-Off.

®Includes one-time dividends of $0.40 per commonmeshelated to distributions to ensure the Compapy@priately allocated its historical
earnings and profits relative to the separatiomfRenn, in response to the Pre-Filing Agreementestgd from the Internal Revenue Service and
distributed 100% of its taxable income for the 2Q#4r.

Dividend Policy

The Company's annual dividend is greater than oaldg at least 90% of its REIT taxable income nraanual basis, determined without
regard to the dividends paid deduction and exclydimy net capital gains. U.S. federal income taxdanerally requires that a REIT annually
distribute at least 90% of its REIT taxable inconvéhout regard to the deduction for dividends paid excluding net capital gains, and that it pay
regular corporate rates to the extent that it aliyndastributes less than 100% of its taxable ineotfRor purposes of determining its cash distrilmgjo
GLPI's Adjusted Funds From Operations is calcul&tedtarting with The National Association of R&atate Investment Trusts' ("NAREIT")
definition of "funds from operations," which is netome (computed in accordance with generally pteckaccounting principles ("GAAP")),
excluding (gains) or losses from sales of propany real estate depreciation. The NAREIT definiiebadjusted to exclude the effect of stock based
compensation expense, debt issuance costs amioriizaid other depreciation expense reduced by erante capital expenditures.

On February 3, 2015, the Company declared a requkaterly cash dividend of $0.545 per share, whighayable on March 27, 2015 to
shareholders of record as of March 10, 2015. Ceattadle for distribution to GLPI shareholders &rigted from the rental payments under its real
estate leases and the income of the TRS PropeMiadistributions will be made by GLPI at the distion of its Board of Directors and will depend
on the financial position, results of operatiorestcflows, capital requirements, debt covenangdjagble laws and other factors as the Board of
Directors of GLPI deems relevant. See Note 11 ¢cctinsolidated financial statements for furtheaitiebn dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial apémting data for the five-year period ended Deeamth, 2014 is derived from our
consolidated financial statements. The selectedalmated financial and operating data should ke ie conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto, "Management's Dieoussd Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft®©perations" and the other financial
information included herein.

Year Ended December 31,

20149 20130®@ 2012% 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share data)

Income statement data:

Net revenues $ 635,94¢ $ 242.12¢ % 210,64: $ 231,88 % 143,19¢
Total operating expenses 332,56: 181,54 166,97! 179,37: 112,06
Income from operations 303,38: 60,58 43,66¢ 52,51t 31,13
Total other expenses 114,58t 23,45¢ 6,31¢ 6,95¢ 4,874
Income from operations before income taxes 188,79 37,12¢ 37,35( 45, 55¢ 26,257
Taxes on income 3,41: 17,29¢ 14,43: 18,87t 10,92%
Net income $ 185,38: $ 19,83( $ 22,91¢ % 26,68: $ 15,33(
Per share data:
Basic earnings per common share $ 165 $ 0.1¢ % 021 % 022 $ 0.1
Diluted earnings per common share $ 15¢ $ 017 $ 0.2C $ 02: $ 0.1z
Weighted shares outstanding—Ba$ic 112,03 110,61 110,58: 110,58: 110,58:
Weighted shares outstanding—Dilut&d 117,58t¢ 115,86! 115,60 115,60 115,60:
Other data:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 273,25¢ $ 80,63: $ 26,74 $ 56,84( $ 29,08:
Net cash used in investing activities (317,319 (16,275 (4,810 (8,177 (58,987)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (205,18%) 206,30: (24,51%) (50,43¢) 41,86¢
Depreciation 106,84 28,92 14,09( 14,56¢ 10,80¢
Interest expense 117,03( 19,25« — — —
Interest expense on debt obligation to Penn Naltiona

Gaming, Inc® — — — — 582
Capital expenditure® 142,76¢ 16,42¢ 5,19( 8,28¢ 59,05¢
Balance sheet data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,97 $ 285,22: $ 14,56: $ 17,14¢  $ 18,91:
Real estate investments, net 2,180,12. 2,010,30: — — —
Total assets 2,564,58 2,609,23! 267,07! 261,34: 254,20t
Total debt 2,609,48 2,350,001 — — —
Intercompany note with Penn National Gaming, ffic. — — — — 90C
Shareholders' equity (124,73¢) 142,42¢ 236,33( 219,91 215,38t¢
Property Data:
Number of rental properties owned at year end 19 17 — — —
Rentable square feet at year end 6,97( 6,34< — — —
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@ Financial results for the Company's 2014 fiscak ye#lect the first full year of operations for batperating segments. GLPI was spun-off
from Penn on November 1, 2013. See Note 1 to theatmlated financial statements for additional dket&or 2010 through 2012, the
selected historical financial data sets forth tis¢onical operations of Louisiana Casino Cruisas, and Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc., which
were acquired by a subsidiary of GLPI as part ef$pin-Off.

@ Hollywood Casino Perryville faced increased contfetiand its results have been negatively impabtethe opening of a casino comple:
the Arundel Mills mall in Anne Arundel, Marylandh& Anne Arundel casino opened on June 6, 2012agigioximately 3,200 slot
machines and significantly increased its slot maelufferings by mid-September 2012 to approximadelp0 slot machines. In addition, a
new riverboat casino and hotel in Baton Rouge, iania opened on September 1, 2012. The openifgsafiterboat casino has had an
adverse effect on the financial results of Hollywd@asino Baton Rouge.

® Basic and diluted earnings per common share andwii@ge number of common shares outstanding@eadmber 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010 were retrospectively restated to equal thebauraf GLPI basic and diluted shares outstandirteaSpin-Off. The share counts were
also adjusted to reflect the impact of the sha®sdd as part of the Purging Distribution. See Ndtethe consolidated financial statements
for further details.

@ Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge had an intercompartg from Penn due to Penn's acquisition of the ptgpk January 2011, Hollywood
Casino Baton Rouge fully repaid this obligatiorP&nn. Interest expense was assessed on this rsei@ @a Penn's estimated incremental
borrowing costs. All interest expense was incuard settled through intercompany charges from PBare continuing basis.

® The higher level of capital expenditures in 2014 wwemarily due to the construction of Hollywoodr@iag at Dayton Raceway and
Hollywood Gaming at Mahoning Valley Race Coursechibpened to the public on August 28, 2014 ande®eaiper 17, 2014, respectively.
The higher level of capital expenditures in 201G wemarily due to the construction of Hollywoods@® Perryville which opened to the
public on September 27, 2010.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Our Operations

GLPI is a self-administered and self-managed Pdwaisia REIT. GLPI was incorporated in PennsylvamiagFebruary 13, 2013, as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Penn. On November 1,2M®enn contributed to GLPI, through a series w@frimal corporate restructurings, substantially
all of the assets and liabilities associated wihriPs real property interests and real estate demednt business, as well as the assets and liedbidif
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casiearille, which are referred to as the "TRS Prdiper” and then spun-off GLPI to holders
of Penn's common and preferred stock in a taxdigteibution. We intend to elect on our U.S. fedémaome tax return for our taxable year
beginning on January 1, 2014 to be treated as & BRid we, together with an indirectly wholly-ownadbsidiary of the Company, GLP
Holdings, Inc., intend to jointly elect to treatcbeof GLP Holdings, Inc., Louisiana Casino Cruidas, and Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc. as a "taxable
REIT subsidiary" effective on the first day of tfiest taxable year of GLPI as a REIT. As a resiitthe Spin-Off, GLPI owns substantially all of
Penn's former real property assets and leaseshasikof those assets to Penn for use by its sabigdj under the Master Lease, and GLPI also own:
and operates the TRS Properties through its TR& afkets and liabilities of GLPI were recordedhair trespective historical carrying values at the
time of the Spin-Off.

Prior to the Spin-Off, GLPI and Penn entered in®eparation and Distribution Agreement settinghfoine mechanics of the Spin-Off,
certain organizational matters and other ongoirgyations of Penn and GLPI. Penn and GLPI or thespective subsidiaries, as applicable, also
entered into a number of other agreements pritre&pin-Off to provide a framework for the restwing and for the relationships between GLPI
and Penn after the Spin-Off.

GLPI's primary business consists of acquiring,riziag, and owning real estate property to be le&sgadming operators in “triple net" le:
arrangements. "Triple net" leases are leases inhwthe lessee pays rent to the lessor, as well &xe@s, insurance, and maintenance expenses that
arise from the use of the property. As of Decendigr2014 , GLPI's portfolio consisted of 21 gamamgl related facilities, including the TRS
Properties and the real property associated withalB8ing and related facilities operated by Pennthadeal property associated with the Casino
Queen in East St. Louis,
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lllinois. These facilities are geographically disiéied across 12 states and contain approximatélynillion of rentable square feet. As of
December 31, 2014 , our properties were 100% oedupi

We expect to grow our portfolio by pursuing oppaities to acquire additional gaming facilities éa$e to gaming operators under prudent
terms, which may or may not include Penn. Additignave believe we have the ability to leverage ¢xpertise our management team has devel
over the years to secure additional avenues farthroeyond the gaming industry. Accordingly, weicipate we will be able to effect strategic
acquisitions unrelated to the gaming industry al ageother acquisitions that may prove complenmrim GLPI's gaming facilities.

In connection with the Spin-Off, Penn allocatedaiteumulated earnings and profits (as determinet 8. federal income tax purposes) for
periods prior to the consummation of the Spin-Qffieen Penn and GLPI. In connection with its ebecto be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal
income tax purposes for the year ending Decembe2@®14 , GLPI declared a special dividend to ireholders to distribute any accumulated
earnings and profits relating to the real propadyets and attributable to any pre-REIT yearsydiicy any earnings and profits allocated to GLPI in
connection with the Spin-Off, to comply with certd®EIT qualification requirements (the "Purging tbution"). The Purging Distribution, which
was paid on February 18, 2014, totaled $1.05 billind was comprised of cash and GLPI common studttitionally, on December 19, 2014, we
made a one-time distribution of $37.0 million t@aetholders in order to confirm we appropriatelpedited our historical earnings and profits relative
to the separation from Penn, in response to thd-Hrey Agreement requested from the IRS. See Ndtéo the consolidated financial statements for
further details on the Purging Distribution and tligtribution related to the Pre-Filing Agreement.

As of December 31, 2014 , the majority of our eageiare the result of the rental revenue fromehed of our properties to a subsidiary of
Penn pursuant to the Master Lease. The Master lisas#riple-net" operating lease with an initietm of 15 years, with no purchase option,
followed by four 5 year renewal options (exerclsahy Penn) on the same terms and conditions. @ttestructure under the Master Lease includes &
fixed component, a portion of which is subject moegnual 2% escalator if certain rent coverage thtiesholds are met, and a component that is
based on the performance of the facilities, whechdjusted, subject to certain floors (i) evergfixears by an amount equal to 4% of the average
change to net revenues of all facilities under\fasster Lease (other than Hollywood Casino Colundng Hollywood Casino Toledo) during the
preceding five years , and (ii) monthly by an antaegqual to 20% of the change in net revenues olyi#olbd Casino Columbus and Hollywood
Casino Toledo during the preceding month. In additd rent, the tenant is required to pay the ¥aithg: (1) all facility maintenance, (2) all insui
required in connection with the leased propertiesthe business conducted on the leased propdB)esxes levied on or with respect to the leased
properties (other than taxes on the income ofahsdr) and (4) all utilities and other servicesessary or appropriate for the leased propertiestss
business conducted on the leased properties. abim@&Queen property is leased back to a thirg mgrérator on a "triple net" basis, with an initial
term of 15 years, followed by four 5 year renewgtians. The terms and conditions are similar tofaster Lease.

Additionally, in accordance with ASC 605, "ReverRecognition” ("ASC 605"), the Company records rexefor the real estate taxes paid
by its tenants on the leased properties with asettfhg expense in general and administrative eseo@iithin the consolidated statement of income as
the Company has concluded it is the primary obligor

Gaming revenue generated by our TRS Propertiesrigedi primarily from video lottery gaming reveraed to a lesser extent, table game
and poker revenue, which is highly dependent upervblume and spending levels of customers at &8 Properties. Other TRS revenues are
derived from our dining, retail, and certain othacillary activities.

Our Competitive Strengths
We believe the following competitive strengths witintribute significantly to our success:
Geographically Diverse Property Portfolio

As of December 31, 2014 , our portfolio consiste8Iogaming and related facilities. Our portfolioneprises approximately 7.2 million
of property square footage and approximately 3g@#8s of owned and leased land and is broadly sifiest by location across 12 states. Our
geographic diversification will limit the effect afdecline in any one regional market on our oV@efformance.

Financially Secure Tenan

As of December 31, 2014 , substantially all of @@mpany's real estate properties were leased twlysowned subsidiary of Penn, and
majority of the Company's rental revenues werevadrirom the Master Lease. Penn is a leading, sified, multi-jurisdictional owner and manager
of gaming and paninutuel properties, and an established gaming peovidgth strong financial performance. Penn is aliplybtraded company that
subject to the informational filing requirements of
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the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetiisarequired to file periodic reports on Form 1Gid Form 10-Q with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Penn's net revenues wereé$ib6 for the year ended December 31, 2014, ah@ $illion for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Long-Term, Triple-Net Lease Structure

Our real estate properties are leased under "miptéoperating leases guaranteed by our tenatisimiiial terms of 15 years (in addition to
four 5 year renewals at the tenants' option), psto which the tenant is responsible for alllfgcimaintenance, insurance required in connection
with the leased properties and the business coedwctt the leased properties, taxes levied on ¢r negpect to the leased properties and all uslitie
and other services necessary or appropriate fdettsed properties and the business conductededadbked properties.

Flexible UPREIT Structur

We have the flexibility to operate through an unflarpartnership, commonly referred to as an UPR&Efticture, in which substantially all
of our properties and assets are held by GLP Qapitay subsidiaries of GLP Capital. Conductingibass through GLP Capital allows us flexibility
in the manner in which we structure and acquir@erties. In particular, an UPREIT structure enabketo acquire additional properties from sellers
in exchange for limited partnership units, whicb\pdes property owners the opportunity to deferttheconsequences that would otherwise arise
from a sale of their real properties and othertadseus. As a result, this structure potentialgyrfacilitate our acquisition of assets in a mdfieient
manner and may allow us to acquire assets thaivtiner would otherwise be unwilling to sell becaas&ax considerations. We believe that this
flexibility will provide us an advantage in seekifugure acquisitions.

Experienced and Committed Management T

Although our management team has limited experigmoperating a REIT, it has extensive gaming a&al estate experience. Peter M.
Carlino, chief executive officer of GLPI, has mdhhan 30 years of experience in the acquisitiondsalopment of gaming facilities and other real
estate projects. William J. Clifford, chief finaatbfficer of GLPI, is a finance professional witiore than 30 years of experience in the gaming
industry, including four years of gaming regulaterperience, sixteen years of casino property djpess and thirteen years of corporate experience.
Through years of public company experience, ouragament team also has extensive experience aaéstimdebt and equity capital markets to
fund growth and maintain a flexible capital struetu

Segment Information

Consistent with how our Chief Operating Decisionkiglareviews and assesses our financial performanedave two reportable segments,
GLP Capital and the TRS Properties. The GLP Capfadrtable segment consists of the leased repepsoand represents the majority of our
business. The TRS Properties reportable segmeststef Hollywood Casino Perryville and Hollywo@esino Baton Rouge.

Executive Summary

When reviewing the Company's financial resulthdidd be noted that financial results for the Cony®2014 fiscal year reflect a full year
of operations for both operating segments, whefiragcial results for the Company's 2013 fiscalryeflect a full year of operations for the
businesses in the taxable REIT subsidiaries aratteapyear from November 1, 2013 to December 813or the real estate entity. Financial results
for the Company's 2012 fiscal year reflect only ¢iperations of the Company's taxable REIT subsatiar

Financial Highlights

We reported net revenues and income from operatib635.9 million and $303.4 million , respectiyefor the year ended December 31,
2014 , compared to $242.1 million and $60.6 millisespectively, for the year ended December 31320The major factors affecting our results
the year ended December 31, 2014 , as comparée year ended December 31, 2013, were:

* Rental revenue of $481.8 million and $76.6 miili respectively, for the years ended Decembe2@14 and 2013 . Rental revenue for the
years endeDecember 31, 2014 and 2013 included real estaés @ix$50.5 million and $7.6 million , respectivdlinder ASC 605,
"Revenue Recognition," we record revenue for tla estate taxes paid by our tenants with an offgptixpense in real estate taxes within
our consolidated statement of income as we haveluded we are the primary obligor under our "tripkt" operating leases. Rental reve
was significantly lower
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in the prior year, as compared to the current gearto only two months of rental revenue recognitiothe prior year.

General and administrative expenses increaséd $8illion for the year ended December 31, 20gdmarily resulting from $56.9 million

of general and administrative expenses for our Ghpital segment for the year ended December 34 20f from $19.7 million in the

prior year as a result of a full year of operation2014. General and administrative expensesudoGi P Capital segment included
compensation expense of $10.6 million , stock baseapensation charges of $30.9 million , rent espeor those leases assigned to GLPI
as part of the Spin-Off of $2.8 million , and fdesoutside services, including transition serviaed legal of $9.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Stock-based compensation chiamgesr GLP Capital segment for the year endedeDdxer 31, 2014 include
approximately $2.4 million of expense related t® $0.40 one-time dividend discussed below.

Increased depreciation expense of $77.9 milfionthe year ended December 31, 2014 , compar#tktprior year, primarily due to a full
year of depreciation expense on the real propadgta transferred to GLPI as part of the -Off. We also recorded depreciation expense of
approximately $2.9 million related to the assetyu@ed in the January 2014 Casino Queen transaction

Increased interest expense of $97.8 milliortlieryear ended December 31, 2014 , compared {ritreyear. The increase in interest
expense related to our fixed and variable ratedvdngs entered into in connection with the Spin-@ffl additional variable rate borrowings
during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Net income increased $165.6 million for the year ended December 31, 204glcompared to the prior year, primarily duthtovariances
explained above.

Recent Developmer

On December 19, 2014, the Company made a oreedistribution of $0.40 per common share to entweCompany appropriately
allocated its historical earnings and profits rig&ato the separation from Penn, in response t@tkeiling Agreement requested from the
IRS and to ensure the Company distributed 100%sdékable income for the 2014 year.

Segment Developments

The following are recent developments that havedradill have an impact on us by segment:

GLP Capital

On May 14, 2014, the Company announced thattéred into an agreement with CCR to acquire Thadde/s Racetrack and Casino
located in Washington, Pennsylvania, a suburb $iRirgh, Pennsylvania. The agreement providestbsing of the acquisition is subject
to, among other things, the accuracy of CCR’s mgw&ations and its compliance with the covenaritiosih in the agreement, as well as the
approval of the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board Rennsylvania Racing Commission. On October @¥42the Company filed a
lawsuit in the Southern District of New York agai@CR alleging, among other things, fraud, breddhe agreement and breach of the
related consulting agreement entered into at thregame. The lawsuit was subsequently re-filed @awiNvork state court on January 7, 2015
for procedural reasons. The Company is seekingla@ory judgment that CCR has breached the agmenreturn of $10 million paid
pursuant to a related consulting agreement andhgpegified amount of additional damages. The Compalh further evaluate and consic

all other remedies available to it, including temation of the agreements.

Although the Company intends to pursue its clailgemusly, there can be no assurances that the @oynpill prevail on any of the claims
in the action, or, if the Company does prevail ae or more of the claims, of the amount of recovkag may be awarded to the Company
for such claim(s). In addition, the timing and fesion of the claims set forth in the lawsuit arguedictable and the Company is not able to
currently predict any effect this suit may havectosing of the transaction.

Operations at both Hollywood Casino Mahoningl&aRace Course and Hollywood Casino at Dayton ®Rageour two joint development
properties with Penn commenced during the yearc&eBgeember 31, 2014. In June 2012, Penn annouhaéd had filed applications with
the Ohio Lottery Commission for Video Lottery Sakegent Licenses for its Ohio racetracks, and with ®hio State Racing Commission
permission to relocate the racetracks.
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In connection with the Spin-Off, Penn transferdegse properties to us and we received the appteggprovals from the Ohio regulatory
bodies to participate in the development of the rewetracks. Operations at Hollywood Gaming at Medg Valley Race Course
commenced on September 17, 2014. The new facilityadnoning Valley Race Course is a thoroughbrecktrgith 866 video lottery
terminals and is located on approximately 193 aicréise Centrepointe Business Park near the irtgogeof Interstate 80 and Ohio Route
46. Hollywood Gaming at Dayton Raceway openedatsrsi to the public on August 28, 2014 and is adsiedbred track with 984 video
lottery terminals and is located on approximated® acres on the site of an abandoned Delphi Autemptant near Wagner Ford and
Needmore roads in North Dayton. GLPI's share ofithéget for these two projects was limited solelydal estate construction costs which
were budgeted at $100.0 million and $89.5 millionthe Mahoning Valley Race Course and Dayton Ragdwacilities, respectively. At
December 31, 2014 the budgeted amount for eackqtrioad been paid or accrued in full. Both faeititivere added to the Master Lease
upon commencement of operations.

Operations at the Argosy Casino Sioux City cdagehe end of July 2014, as the result of a gutiithe lowa Racing and Gaming
Commission ("IRGC"). Penn challenged the deniatsofiaming license renewal by the IRGC but wasnately ordered to cease operations
by the lowa Supreme Court. The closure of the Sifrx property resulted in reduced rental reveniu®206 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and will result in reduced remta¢nue of $6.2 million on an annual go forwardi®alhe real property assets
associated with the Sioux City property were falgpreciated at the closure date and were subséyseld to a third party.

On December 9, 2013, GLPI announced that itdradred into an agreement to acquire the realkeassiets associated with the Casino
Queen in East St. Louis, Illinois. The casino adgheent land cover approximately 67 acres and dek157 room hotel and a 38,000
square foot casino. The transaction closed in Jsr@14. See Note 5 to the consolidated finant&kesments for further details.

TRS Properties

Hollywood Casino Perryville continued to facedaidnal competition, led by the August 26, 20140jng of the Horseshoe Casino
Baltimore, located in downtown Baltimore. In adaiitiMaryland Live!, at the Arundel Mills mall in AerArundel, Maryland, which opened
on June 6, 2012, added table games on April 113,24id a 52 table poker room in late August 201BtHer, in early 2015, Horseshoe
Casino Baltimore and Maryland Live! received appilde add additional table games. Both facilitiasdnand will continue to negatively
impact Hollywood Casino Perryville's results of oiens.

Furthermore, in November 2012, voters approegislation authorizing a sixth casino in Prince gets County and the ability to add table
games to Maryland's existing and planned casinles.new law also changes the tax rate casino opsnady the state, varying from casino
to casino, allows all casinos in Maryland to bero@é hours per day for the entire year, and peroaiténos to directly purchase slot
machines in exchange for gaming tax reductionsleTgémes were opened at our Perryville, Marylardifiaon March 5, 2013. We expect
Hollywood Casino Perryville's tax rate to decrefiisen 67 to 61 percent when the facility directlyrghases its slot machines in April 2015.
The option for an additional 5 percent tax redutt®possible in 2019 if an independent commissigrees. In December 2013, the license
for the sixth casino in Prince George's County grasited. The proposed $1.2 billion casino resdntckvis expected to open in the second
half of 2016 will adversely impact Hollywood CasiRerryville's financial results.

In Louisiana, a new riverboat casino and hopareed on September 1, 2012 in Baton Rouge. Thdarapehthis riverboat casino has and
will continue to have an adverse effect on therfaial results of Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge.

Critical Accounting Estimates

We make certain judgments and use certain estiraagtassumptions when applying accounting prinsipi¢he preparation of our

consolidated financial statements. The nature@gstimates and assumptions are material due teuwéls of subjectivity and judgment necessary to
account for highly uncertain factors or the susbdjiy of such factors to change. We have ideastifthe accounting for income taxes, real estate
investments, and goodwill and other intangible &sas critical accounting estimates, as they arerthst important to our financial statement
presentation and require difficult, subjective andplex judgments.

We believe the current assumptions and other ceretidns used to estimate amounts reflected irconsolidated financial statements are

appropriate. However, if actual experience diffieosn the assumptions and other considerations imsestimating amounts reflected in our
consolidated financial statements, the resultirenges could have a material adverse
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effect on our consolidated results of operatiord; ancertain situations, could have a materialais® effect on our consolidated financial condition

The development and selection of the critical aotiog estimates, and the related disclosures, haga reviewed with the Audit Commiti
of our Board of Directors.

Income Taxe

We intend to elect on our U.S. federal income &xnn for our taxable year beginning on Janua014 to be treated as a REIT and we,
together with an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiafythe Company, GLP Holdings, Inc., intend to jbirelect to treat each of GLP Holdings, Inc.,
Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. and Penn Cecil Mag] Inc. as a "taxable REIT subsidiary" effectiwethe first day of the first taxable year of GLPI
as a REIT. We intend to continue to be organizetitaroperate in a manner that will permit us tolifpas a REIT. To qualify as a REIT, we must
meet certain organizational and operational requérgs, including a requirement to distribute as1€9% of our annual REIT taxable income to
shareholders determined without regard to the divild paid deduction and excluding any net capitisl, gneet the various other requirements
imposed by the Code relating to matters such asatipg results, asset holdings, distribution leyvelsd diversity of stock ownership. As a REIT, we
generally will not be subject to federal income texincome that we distribute as dividends to dxarsholders. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any
taxable year, we will be subject to U.S. federabime tax, including any applicable alternative minim tax, on our taxable income at regular
corporate income tax rates, and dividends paiditasbareholders would not be deductible by us mmating taxable income. Any resulting
corporate liability could be substantial and cawldterially and adversely affect our net income iagidcash available for distribution to shareholders
Unless we were entitled to relief under certain €ptbvisions, we also would be disqualified frorrelecting to be taxed as a REIT for the four
taxable years following the year in which we faitedyualify to be taxed as a REIT. It is not poksib state whether in all circumstances we would
be entitled to this statutory relief.

Our TRS Properties are able to engage in activiéisslting in income that would be not qualifyimgome for a REIT. As a result, certain
activities of the Company which occur within our §Rroperties are subject to federal and state indaxes.

Real Estate Investmer

Real estate investments that we received in commmegith the Spin-Off were contributed to us at ®srhistorical carrying amount. We
record the acquisition of real estate at costuigiclg acquisition and closing costs. The cost opprties developed by GLPI include costs of
construction, property taxes, interest and othacalianeous costs incurred during the developmenibgb until the project is substantially complete
and available for occupancy. We consider the pesfddture benefit of the asset to determine therapriate useful lives. Depreciation is computed
using a straight-line method over the estimatedulifiges of the buildings and building improvemegnfdditionally, the amortization of real estate
assets subject to capital leases is included wittérdepreciation line item of the Company's cadatéd statements of earnings.

We continually monitor events and circumstancesctbald indicate that the carrying amount of o iestate investments may not be
recoverable or realized. When indicators of pogtnpairment suggest that the carrying value fad estate investment may not be recoverable, we
estimate the fair value of the investment by calting the undiscounted future cash flows from tbe and eventual disposition of the investment.
This amount is compared to the asset's carryingevdl we determine the carrying amount is not vecable, we would recognize an impairment
charge equivalent to the amount required to rethieearrying value of the asset to its estimated/due, calculated in accordance with GAAP fair
value provisions. We group our real estate investaby tenant in evaluating impairment. In assestie recoverability of the carrying value, we
must make assumptions regarding future cash flomdsother factors. Factors considered in perforntiigassessment include current operating
results, market and other applicable trends ariduakvalues, as well as the effect of obsolescethemand, competition and other factors. If these
estimates or the related assumptions change iiutine, we may be required to record an impairnesg.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2014 , we had $75.5 million indwil and $9.6 million in other intangible asset#hin our consolidated balance sheets,
resulting from the contribution of Hollywood CasiBaton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville inmection with the Spin-Off. Our goodwill
resides on the books of our Hollywood Casino B&ounge subsidiary, while the other intangible assgtesents a gaming license on the books of
our Hollywood Casino Perryville subsidiary. Bottbsidiaries are members of the TRS Properties selganehare considered separate reporting units
under ASC 350, "Intangibles - Goodwill and Othe¢ R$C 350"). Goodwill is tested at the reportingtueivel, which is an operating segment or one
level below an operating segment for which discfigi@ncial information is available.
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Under ASC 350, we are required to test goodwillifiogpairment at least annually and whenever eventircumstances indicate that it is m
likely than not that goodwill may be impaired. Wavie elected to perform our annual goodwill impainirtest as of October 1 of each year. ASC
prescribes a two-step goodwill impairment test,fite step which involves the determination of fh& value of each reporting unit and its
comparison to the carrying amount. If the carryangount exceeds the fair value in step 1, then&tathe impairment test is performed to deterr
the implied value of goodwill. If the implied valwé goodwill is less than the goodwill allocatedthe reporting unit, an impairment loss is
recognized.

In accordance with ASC 350, we consider the Hollgd/€asino Perryville gaming license an indefinited intangible asset that does not
require amortization based on our future expeaiatto operate this casino indefinitely as wellresgaming industry's historical experience in
renewing these intangible assets at minimal cot vérious state gaming commissions. Rather, tha@rggalicense is tested annually, or more
frequently if indicators of impairment exist, fanpairment by comparing the fair value of the reedrdsset to its carrying amount. If the carrying
amount of the indefinite-life intangible asset eed® its fair value, an impairment loss is recogritéollywood Casino Perryville's gaming license
will expire in September 2025, fifteen years frdm tasino's opening date. We expect to expensecamty related to the gaming license renewal as
incurred.

We assessed the fair value of our gaming licenisgy tise Greenfield Method under the income appro&bk Greenfield Method estimates
the fair value of the gaming license assuming wit Auwcasino with similar unity to that of the etiwy facility. The method assumes a theoretical
start-up company going into business without asgtssother than the intangible asset being valieduch the value of the license is a function of
the following items:

* Projected revenues and operating cash fl

* Theoretical construction costs and durai

»  Preopening expense

» Discounting that reflects the level of risk asstadawith receiving future cash flows attributaliettie license; ar
* Remaining useful life of the licen:

The evaluation of goodwill and indefinite-lived amgible assets requires the use of estimates &ltaut operating results to determine the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit anditidefinitedived intangible assets. We must make various apians and estimates in performing
impairment testing. The implied fair value inclugestimates of future cash flows that are baseeg¢asanable and supportable assumptions which
represent our best estimates of the cash flowscteg¢o result from the use of the assets. Chaingestimates, increases in our cost of capital,
reductions in transaction multiples, changes irraijggy and capital expenditure assumptions or egfiin of alternative assumptions and definitions
could produce significantly different results. Feteash flow estimates are, by their nature, stibeand actual results may differ materially from
our estimates. If our ongoing estimates of futwehcflows are not met, we may have to record additiimpairment charges in future accounting
periods. Our estimates of cash flows are baseti@nurrent regulatory and economic climates, atagalecent operating information and budgets.
These estimates could be negatively impacted bygdsin federal, state or local regulations, ecaoaownturns, or other events.

Forecasted cash flows can be significantly impabtethe local economy in which our subsidiariesrafee For example, increases in
unemployment rates can result in decreased custaittions and/or lower customer spend per visiaddition, new legislation which approves
gaming in nearby jurisdictions or further expandming in jurisdictions can result in increased cetitipn for the property. This generally has a
negative effect on profitability once competitoecbme established, as a certain level of cannétadiz occurs absent an overall increase in custome!
visitations. Lastly, increases in gaming taxes appd by state regulatory bodies can negatively ehfraecasted cash flows.

Assumptions and estimates about future cash fleeldeare complex and subjective. They are sendibwihanges in underlying assumpti
and can be affected by a variety of factors, iniclgexternal factors, such as industry, geopoligeal economic trends, and internal factors, ssch a
changes in our business strategy, which may restozapital and resources to different or new dppéies which management believes will
enhance our overall value but may be to the detiraEour existing operations.

We determined the fair value of our goodwill andniiag license as of October 1, 2014 utilizing theeasted cash flow methods described
above and compared these values to the carrying wdlthe assets on our balance sheet. In detergiine fair value of each asset, we incorporated
recent operating trends of both TRS propertiesyedbas the expected impact of the recent openingeoHorseshoe Casino Baltimore in August
2014 and the anticipated opening of new casinaiimcE George's County during the second half o628 Hollywood Casino Perryville into our
current year projections. After
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consideration of these facts, the fair value ohlastsets exceeded their carrying amounts, and@stober 1, 2014, our goodwill and gaming license
were not impaired.

Results of Operations
The following are the most important factors arehtts that contribute or will contribute to our cgtérg performance:

» The fact that a wholly-owned subsidiary of P&nthe lessee of substantially all of our properpersuant to the Master Lease and accounts
for a significant portion of our revenues. We exgeqyrow our portfolio by pursuing opportunitiesacquire additional gaming facilities to
lease to gaming operators under prudent termshwhiy or may not include Penn.

e The fact that the rules dealing with U.S. fetlereome taxation are constantly under review brspes involved in the legislative process
and by the IRS and the U.S. Department of the Tiga€hanges to the tax laws or interpretationsetbie with or without retroactive

application, could materially and adversely afféti| investors or GLPI.

e The risks related to economic conditions and tifecebf such conditions on consumer spending fisule and gaming activities, which m
negatively impact our gaming tenants and operators.

The consolidated results of operations for the yeaded December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 are suzechaelow:

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Revenues
Rental $ 431,28( $ 638,95 $ —
Real estate taxes paid by tenants 50,53¢ 7,60z —
Total rental revenue 481,81 76,55’ —
Gaming 148,28 159,35: 202,58:
Food, beverage and other 11,62: 12,357 15,63¢
Total revenues 641,71¢ 248,26t 218,21¢
Less promotional allowances (5,779 (6,137) (7,579
Net revenues 635,94! 242,12¢ 210,64
Operating expenses
Gaming 82,99 89,36" 113,11
Food, beverage and other 9,73¢ 10,77* 13,11¢
Real estate taxes 52,15« 9,22( 1,592
General and administrative 80,83¢ 43,26: 25,06¢
Depreciation 106,84: 28,92: 14,09(
Total operating expenses 332,56: 181,54 166,97
Income from operations $§ 30338 % 60,58: $ 43,66¢
Certain information regarding our results of opers by segment for the years ended December 3%, 22013 and 2012 is summarized
below:
Net Revenues Income from Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
GLP Capital $ 481,82 $ 76,55 — $ 279,84t $ 34,33 —
TRS Properties 154,12 165,57: 210,64 23,53t 26,24¢ 43,66¢
Total $ 63594! $ 242,12¢ $ 210,64. $ 303,380 $ 6058. $ 43,66¢
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Adjusted EBITDA, FFO and AFFO

Funds From Operations ("FFO"), Adjusted Funds F@perations ("AFFO") and Adjusted EBITDA are non-GRAnancial measures used
by the Company as performance measures for benkhgargainst the Comparg/peers and as internal measures of business ioggpatformance
The Company believes FFO, AFFO and Adjusted EBITiDévide a meaningful perspective of the underlyapgrating performance of the
Company’s current business. This is especially sinee these measures exclude real estate depr@at we believe that real estate values
fluctuate based on market conditions rather thagmedgating in value ratably on a straight-line basier time.

FFO is a non-GAAP financial measure that is consid@ supplemental measure for the real estatetirydand a supplement to GAAP
measures. The National Association of Real Estatestment Trusts defines FFO as net income (cordpataccordance with GAAP), excluding
(gains) or losses from sales of property and re@lte depreciation. We have defined AFFO as FFQéixg stock based compensation expense,
issuance costs amortization, and other depreciatidimced by maintenance capital expenditures. lifinaé have defined Adjusted EBITDA as net
income excluding interest, taxes on income, deptieci, and (gains) or losses from sales of propemgnagement fees, and stock based

compensation expense.

FFO, AFFO and Adjusted EBITDA are not recognizetnteunder GAAP. Because certain companies do hatlete FFO, AFFO and
Adjusted EBITDA in the same way and certain ott@npanies may not perform such calculation, thosasomes as used by other companies may
not be consistent with the way the Company caleslatich measures and should not be consideretasmtiie measures of operating profit or net
income. The Company’s presentation of these messiaes not replace the presentation of the Compdimgncial results in accordance with

GAAP.

The reconciliation of the Company’s net income B&AP to FFO, AFFO, and Adjusted EBITDA for the ye@&nded December 31, 2014 ,

2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

Net income

Losses (gains) from dispositions of property
Real estate depreciation

Funds from operations

Other depreciation

Amortization of debt issuance co$is
Stock based compensation
Maintenance CAPEX

Adjusted funds from operations
Interest, net

Management fees

Income tax expense

Maintenance CAPEX

Amortization of debt issuance co$is

Adjusted EBITDA

®Such amortization is a non-cash component incluéuterest, net.
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2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

185,38: $ 19,83( $ 22,91¢
10 (39) (142)
92,75( 14,89¢ —
278,14: $ 34,687 $ 22,771
14,09: 14,027 14,09(
8,057 70C —
12,25¢ 1,56¢€ —
(3,539) (4,230) (3,260)
309,01: $ 46,75( $ 33,607
114,58t¢ 19,25 2
— 4,20t 6,32(
3,41: 17,29¢ 14,43
3,53¢ 4,23( 3,26(
(8,057 (700) —
422,49 $ 91,03: $ 57,61¢
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The reconciliation of each segment’s net incomeG&AP to FFO, AFFO, and Adjusted EBITDA for the yeanded December 31, 2014 ,
2013 and 2012 is as follows:

GLP Capital @ TRS Properties
Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013 2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Net income $ 177,15 $ 6,61: $ 8,221 $ 13,21¢ 22,91¢
(Gains) losses from dispositions of property (149 — 15¢ (39 (142)
Real estate depreciation 92,75( 14,89¢ — — —
Funds from operations $ 269,75¢ $ 2150¢ $ 8,38¢ $ 13,17¢ 22,77
Other depreciation 1,832 — 12,26: 14,027 14,09(
Debt issuance costs amortizatién 8,057 70C — — —
Stock based compensation 12,25¢ 1,56¢ — — —
Maintenance CAPEX — — (3,53¢) (4,230 (3,260
Adjusted funds from operations $ 291,90 $ 23,77¢  $ 17,10¢ $ 22,97¢ 33,601
Interest, ne® 104,18( 19,25 10,40¢ 1) 2
Management fees — — — 4,207 6,32(
Income tax (benefit) expense (1,489 8,467 4,90z 8,82¢ 14,43
Maintenance CAPEX — — 3,53¢ 4.23( 3,26(
Debt issuance costs amortizati®n (8,057 (700 — — —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 386,53¢ $ 50,79* $ 3595 $ 40,231 57,61¢

@ GLP Capital operations commenced November 1, 20t8mnection with the Spi@ff.

@ Interest expense, net for the GLP Capital segnsemti of an intercompany interest elimination od.@1million for the year ended
December 31, 2014 .

®Such amortization is a non-cash component incluéuterest, net.

2014 Compared with 2013

FFO, AFFO, and Adjusted EBITDA, for our GLP Cap#agment were $269.8 million , $291.9 million &386.5 million, respectively, fc
the year ended December 31, 2014 . The increasdsOn AFFO and Adjusted EBITDA from the year en@etember 31, 2013 were primarily due
to a full year of real estate operations in 201 gared to only two months of real estate operatior2913.

Net income for our TRS Properties segment decrelag&®.0 million for the year ended December 31,£20as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013, primarily due to additional petition in the Perryville market and increasedrapeg pressure at both of our TRS properties,
as well as interest expense in the year ended Desedi, 2014 . FFO for our TRS Properties segmecateased by $4.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014 , as compared to the year endeentber 31, 2013, primarily due to the decreasetiincome described above. AFFO for our
TRS Properties segment decreased by $5.9 milliothioyear ended December 31, 2014 , as compatbe tear ended December 31, 2013,
primarily due to the decrease described above gfisaw a decrease of $1.7 million in depreciatigpesse at Hollywood Casino Perryville for the
year endeiDecember 31, 2014 , due to certain equipment paechat opening now being fully depreciated. Adid€¥EBITDA for our TRS
Properties segment decreased $4.3 million for &z gnded December 31, 2014 , as compared to éhegded December 31, 2013 , primarily due
to the decrease described above, as well as lewes fand the elimination of management fees iyd¢he ended December 31, 2014 .

2013 Compared with 2012

FFO, AFFO and Adjusted EBITDA for our GLP Capitabsent were $21.5 million, $23.8 million and $5M#@lion, respectively, for the
year ended December 31, 2013 due to the-Off, which occurred on November 1, 2013.
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Net income and FFO for our TRS Properties segmeeredsed by $9.7 million and $9.6 million, respetsi for the year ended

December 31, 2013, as compared to the year endeshier 31, 2012, primarily due to additional coritjmet which negatively impacted Hollywor
Casino Perryville and Hollywood Casino Baton Routgmely the partial opening of a casino complethatArundel Mills mall in Anne Arundel,
Maryland in June 2012 and its second phase opémimgd-September 2012 and the opening of a newlrdest casino and hotel in Baton Rouge,
Louisiana on September 1, 2012, respectively. Wiais partially offset by reduced income taxes prilyaiue to reduced earnings as well as reduced
management fees primarily due to reduced net revand the management agreement with Penn ternmgratiNovember 1, 2013 in connection
with the Spin-Off. AFFO for our TRS Properties segidecreased by $10.6 million for the year endedenber 31, 2013, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to the @serin FFO described previously and increased srante capital expenditures. Adjusted
EBITDA for our TRS Properties segment decreasefiliy4 million for the year ended December 31, 2@%3;ompared to the year ended
December 31, 2012, primarily due to the additiamahpetition described above.

Revenues

Revenues for the years ended December 31, 201¥B,&@ 2012 were as follows (in thousands):

Percentage
Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013 Variance Variance
Total rental revenue 481,81 $ 76,557 $ 405,25 529.2%
Gaming 148,28: 159,35: (11,069 (6.9)%
Food, beverage and other 11,62: 12,357 (736€) (6.0)%
Total Revenues 641,71t 248,26t 393,45: 158.£ %
Less promotional allowances (5,773 (6,137) 364 5.2 %
Net revenues 635,94 $ 242,12¢ % 393,81¢ 162.6%

Percentage
Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 Variance Variance
Total rental revenue 76,55 $ — 3 76,557 N/A
Gaming 159,35: 202,58: (43,229 (21.9%
Food, beverage and other 12,357 15,63¢ (3,279 (21.0%
Total Revenues 248,26t 218,21t 30,05( 13.€%
Less promotional allowances (6,137) (7,579 1,43¢ 19.C%
Net revenues 242,12¢ % 210,64: $ 31,48¢ 14.€ %

Total rental revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , rental ircoas $481.8 million for our GLP Capital segmaerttich included $50.5 million of
revenue for the real estate taxes paid by our teranthe leased properties. For the year endedrbiger 31, 2013 , rental income was $76.6 million
for our GLP Capital segment, which included $7iBiom of revenue for the real estate taxes paidbytenants on the leased properties. Rental
revenue increased from 2013 to 2014 due to a &dr pf real estate operations in 2014, comparedliotwo months of real estate operations in
2013. In accordance with ASC 605, the Companydsired to present the real estate taxes paid lignnts on the leased properties as revenue witl
an offsetting expense on its consolidated statewferperations, as the Company has concludedheiprimary obligor.

Gaming revenue

2014 Compared to 2013

Gaming revenue for our TRS Properties segment deeceby $11.1 million , or 6.9% , for the year ehBecember 31, 2014 , as compared
to the year ended December 31, 2013, due to dedtegaming revenues of $6.1 million at Hollywooi@a Baton Rouge and $5.0 million at
Hollywood Casino Perryville, resulting from addital competition in the Perryville market and inae@ operating pressure at both of our TRS

properties.
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2013 Compared with 2012

Gaming revenue for our TRS Properties segment deedeby $43.2 million, or 21.3%, to $159.4 milliar2013, primarily due to decreased
gaming revenue at Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge amilgndue to the opening of a new riverboat casind hotel in Baton Rouge, Louisiana on
September 1, 2012, as well as to a lesser extentaged gaming revenue at Hollywood Casino Peheyptimarily due to the impact from the partial
opening of a casino complex at the Arundel MilldlimaAnne Arundel, Maryland in June 2012 and ksand phase opening in mikptember 201.
which was partially offset by the introduction abte games at Hollywood Casino Perryville in Ma2€i 3.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the years ended Decemb@024,, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousgnds

Percentage
Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013 Variance Variance
Gaming $ 82,99 % 89,360 $ (6,372 (7.1)%
Food, beverage and other 9,73¢ 10,77t (1,047 (9.7%
Real estate taxes 52,15¢ 9,22( 42,93¢ 465.71 %
General and administrative 80,83¢ 43,26: 37,57 86.€ %
Depreciation 106,84« 28,92: 77,92( 269.£%
Total operating expenses $ 332,56 $ 181,54 $ 151,01t 83.2%

Percentage
Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 Variance Variance
Gaming $ 89,367 $ 113,11: $ (23,749 (21.0%
Food, beverage and other 10,77t 13,11« (2,339 (17.8%
Real estate taxes 9,22( 1,59: 7,62¢ 479.1%
General and administrative 43,26: 25,06¢ 18,19« 72.€%
Depreciation 28,92 14,09( 14,83: 105.: %
Total operating expenses $ 18154 § 166,971 § 14,57: 8.7%

Gaming expense
2014 Compared with 2013

Gaming expense for our TRS Properties segment asededy $6.4 million , or 7.1% , for the year enBedember 31, 2014 , as compared
to the year ended December 31, 2013, primarilytdukecreases of $1.6 million and $3.2 million pexgtively in gaming and admission taxes at
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casiearf/ille, resulting from a reduction in taxablengiag revenue.

2013 Compared with 2012
Gaming expense for our TRS Properties segment aseteby $23.7 million, or 21.0%, to $89.4 millien2013, primarily due to an overall
decrease in gaming and admission taxes resultimy flecreased taxable gaming revenue mentioned abdi@lywood Casino Baton Rouge and

Hollywood Casino Perryville. Additionally, HollywabCasino Baton Rouge had, to a lesser extent, as®dgpayroll and marketing costs due to
realignment of costs associated with lower busidessand.

Real estate taxes
2014 Compared with 2013

Real estate taxes increased by $42.9 million 66t#% , for the year ended December 31, 2014 ompared to the year ended
December 31, 2013primarily due to a full year of real estate tapagl by our tenants on the leased properties il Capital segment. Althou

this amount is paid by our tenants, we are requogmesent this amount in both revenues and expienginancial reporting purposes under ASC
605.
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2013 Compared with 2012

Real estate taxes increased by $7.6 million, or@89to $9.2 million in 2013, primarily due to arpal year of the real estate taxes paid by
our tenant on the leased properties under the Mastese in our GLP Capital segment.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expenses include iterols as compensation costs (including stock basegbensation awards), professional
services, rent expense, and costs associated ewgiapment activities. In addition, Penn providesPGwith certain administrative and support
services on a transitional basis pursuant to aitian services agreement executed in connectitimtive Spin-Off. The fees charged to GLPI for
transition services furnished pursuant to this egrent are determined based on fixed percentadesrof's internal costs which percentages are
intended to approximate the actual cost incurre®dyn in providing the transition services to Gid®lthe relevant period. At December 31, 2014,
most of these services had been terminated.

2014 Compared with 2013

General and administrative expenses increased b $3illion , or 86.9% , for the year ended Decen8f 2014 , as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013, primarily resulting figemeral and administrative expenses for our GLRt@8lagegment of $56.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014 as a result of a full geaperations in 2014. General and administratigeases for our GLP Capital segment included
compensation expense of $10.6 million , stock basatbensation charges of $30.9 million , rent espebr those leases assigned to GLPI as part o
the Spin-Off of $2.8 million (see Note 9 to the solidated financial statements for further inforimaton assigned leases), and fees for outside
services, including transition services and led&@%3 million . Stock-based compensation chargesfir GLP Capital segment for the year ended
December 31, 2014 include approximately $2.4 nmilldd expense related to the $0.40 one-time dividend

2013 Compared with 2012

General and administrative expenses increased & $illion, or 72.6%, to $43.3 million in 2013, iarily due to general and
administrative expenses for our GLP Capital segroéifi9.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2primarily due to legal, consulting and
other fees related to the Spbiff transaction of $13.5 million for the year end@ecember 31, 2013, as well as compensation expigrdeding stocl
based compensation charges for the amortizatiomm@&cognized compensation on Penn equity awardsblyeGLPI employees at the time of the
Spin-Off, of $4.7 million, rent expense for thosades assigned to GLPI as part of the Spin-Ofbef fillion, and transition services fees of
$0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Depreciation expense
2014 Compared with 2013

Depreciation expense increased by $77.9 million269.4% , to $106.8 million for the year ended®uaber 31, 2014 , as compared to the
year endeDecember 31, 2013 , primarily due to a full yeadepreciation related to the real property assetsterred to GLPI as part of the Spin-

Off. We also recorded depreciation expense of@pprately $2.9 million related to the assets acgplin the January 2014 Casino Queen
transaction.

2013 Compared with 2012

Depreciation expense increased by $14.8 millior,0&r.3%, to $28.9 million in 2013, primarily duette real property assets transferred to
GLPI as part of the Spin-Off in our GLP Capital segnt.

Other income (expenses)

Other income (expenses) for the years ended Dece3db2014 , 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in samals):

Percentage
Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013 Variance Variance
Interest expense $ (117,03) $ (19,259 $ (97,77¢) (507.§%
Interest income 2,44 1 2,44: 244,300.1 %
Management fee — (4,209 4,20: 100.(%
Total other expenses $ (114,58) $ (23,450 $ (91,130 (388.5%
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Percentage
Year Ended December 31, 2013 2012 Variance Variance
Interest expense $ (19,259 $ —  $ (19,259 N/A
Interest income 1 2 (D] (50.0%
Management fee (4,209 (6,320 2,115 33.E%
Total other expenses $ (23,450 $ (6319 $ (17,139 (271.9%

Interest expense
2014 Compared with 2013

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , interestneseprelated to our fixed and variable rate bomg&iwas $117.0 million , as compared
to $19.3 million in the year ended December 31 320hterest expense increased due a full yeartefést expense on both our fixed and variable
rate borrowings entered into in connection with $én-Off and additional variable rate borrowingsidg the year ended December 31, 2014.

2013 Compared with 2012

For the year ended December 31, 2013, interesherpeas $19.3 million and related to our fixed aadable rate borrowings entered into
in connection with the Spin-Off in our GLP Capitgigment. We had no interest expense for the yekedebecember 31, 2012.

Management fee
2014 Compared with 2013

Management fees decreased by $4.2 million , foy#ae ended December 31, 2014 , as compared etieended December 31, 2018ue
to the management agreement with Penn terminatingowember 1, 2013 in connection with the Spin-Off.

2013 Compared with 2012

Management fees decreased by $2.1 million, or 33t8%4.2 million in 2013, primarily due to reduceelt revenue at Hollywood Casino
Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville for ylear ended December 31, 2013, as compared tothresponding period in the prior year, as
well as the management agreement with Penn terimgnab November 1, 2013 in connection with the Spih

Taxes
2014 Compared to 2013

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , we haahrie tax expense of approximately $3.4 millionmpared to income tax expense of
$17.3 million during the year ended December 3132@ur intended election to be taxed as REIT tortaxable year beginning on January 1, 2014
contributed to our significant decrease in incomedxpense in 2014 as compared to the correspopdiigd in the prior year. Our effective tax rate
(income taxes as a percentage of income from dpasabefore income taxes) was 1.8% for the yeae@mecember 31, 2014 , as compared to
46.6% for the year ended December 31, 2013 , diiyesur REIT election. As a REIT, we will no londes required to pay federal corporate income
tax on earnings from operation of the REIT thatdist¢ributed to our shareholders. We will contitade required to pay federal and state corporate
income taxes on the earnings of our TRS Properties.

2013 Compared with 2012

Our effective tax rate increased to 46.6% for tearyended December 31, 2013, as compared to 386¢tefyear ended December 31,
2012, primarily due to the Company incurring nomhaietible Spin-Off costs for the year ended Decen®ieR013.

Our projected annual effective tax rate can vaoynfperiod to period depending on, among other factbe geographic and business mix of
our earnings and the level of our tax credits. &ernbf these and other factors, including our st pre-tax earnings, are taken into account in
assessing our ability to realize our net defereadassets.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity and capital resms are cash flow from operations, borrowings flamks, and proceeds from the issuance
of debt and equity securities.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $213illion , $80.6 million and $26.7 million durirtge years ended December 31, 2014 ,
2013 and 2012 , respectively. The increase in as provided by operating activities of $192.6 ianill for the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to the corresponding period in the pré@aryvas primarily comprised of an increase in cashipts from customers/tenants of $393.9
million, partially offset by an increase in cashdo suppliers and vendors of $66.3 million, acr@ase in cash paid to employees of $24.6 milkon,
net increase of $1.7 million related to cash paiddxes and intercompany federal and state indam&ansfers with Penn by our TRS Properties
prior to the Spin-Off, and an increase in cash faidnterest of $108.6 million. The increase isltaeceipts collected from our customers/tenants fo
the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to thesponding period in the prior year was primadilie to an increase of $405.3 million in rental
income, partially offset by a decrease of $11.4iomlin our TRS Properties’ net revenues due taaiigg pressure and competition in their
respective markets. The increases in our cashosgfand inflows are primarily driven by twelve miasiof real estate operations in 2014, compared
to only two months of real estate operations in201

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $31illion , $16.3 million and $4.8 million , resgaely, for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012. The increase in net cashinsedesting activities of $301.0 million for thyear ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
corresponding period in the prior year was primyadile to a $140.7 million payment associated with€asino Queen asset acquisition, along with
the $43.0 million five year term loan to Casino @ugless $9.0 million of principal payments, aslwaslincreased capital expenditures of $126.3
million primarily related to construction spendta two recently opened Ohio facilities for theyended December 31, 2014 .

Financing activities used net cash of $205.2 mmltiring the year ended December 31, 2014 andded$206.3 million of net cash
during the year ended December 31, 2013 . Duriagy#far ended December 31, 2012 , financing ae$vitsed cash of $24.5 million . Net cash used
in financing activities for the year ended Decentkitr2014 included dividend payments of $494.1iamll partially offset by proceeds from the
issuance of long-term debt, net of repayments enrath€ing costs of $259.6 million and proceeds fetatk option exercises of $29.9 million . Net
cash provided by financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2013 included proceeds fronssbance of long-term debt, net of issuance
costs of $2,301.9 million, partially offset by tbash distribution to Penn in connection with théenSpff of $2,090.0 million.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures are accounted for as eithgtatgroject or capital maintenance (replacemerpenditures. Capital project
expenditures are for fixed asset additions thaaesmn existing facility or create a new faciliBapital maintenance expenditures are expenditores t
replace existing fixed assets with a useful lifeager than one year that are obsolete, worn owb dwnger cost effective to repair.

Capital project expenditures totaled $139.2 millifwr the year ended December 31, 2@hd primarily consisted of $71.3 million and $6
million for the real estate related constructiostsmf the Mahoning Valley Race Course and the @aRRaceway, respectively.

Operations at both Hollywood Casino Mahoning ValRgce Course and Hollywood Casino at Dayton Raceauaytwo joint development
properties with Penn commenced during the yearc&eBdeember 31, 2014. In June 2012, Penn annouhaed had filed applications with the Ohio
Lottery Commission for Video Lottery Sales Agentémses for its Ohio racetracks, and with the OltddeSRacing Commission for permission to
relocate the racetracks. In connection with then&pif, Penn transferred these properties to usnandeceived the appropriate approvals from the
Ohio regulatory bodies to participate in the depeient of the new racetracks. Operations at Hollydv@aming at Mahoning Valley Race Course
commenced on September 17, 2014. The new facilit§afnoning Valley Race Course is a thoroughbrecktwith 866 video lottery terminals and is
located on approximately 193 acres in the CentrgpdBusiness Park near the intersection of Inter&a and Ohio Route 46. Hollywood Gaming at
Dayton Raceway opened its doors to the public oguati28, 2014 and is a standardbred track withva@2o lottery terminals and is located on
approximately 120 acres on the site of an abandbedhi Automotive plant near Wagner Ford and Neaxdnmoads in North Dayton. GLPI's share
of the budget for these two projects is limitedebpto real estate construction costs, which adgbted at $100.0 million and $89.5 million for the
Mahoning Valley Race Course and Dayton Racewayitiasj respectively. At December 31, 2014 the lridd amount for each project had been
paid or accrued in full. Both facilities were addedhe Master Lease upon commencement of opegation
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During the year ended December 31, 2014 , we sggprbximately $3.5 million for capital maintenaregenditures. The majority of the
capital maintenance expenditures were for slot imnashand slot machine equipment at our TRS Pragsei@ur tenants are responsible for capital
maintenance expenditures at our leased properties.

Debt
Senior Unsecured Credit Facility

The Company participates in a one billion Creditiiig, consisting of a $700 million revolving crigdiacility and a $300 milliofiTerm Loan
A facility. The Credit Facility matures on Octol8, 2018. At December 31, 2014 , the Credit Fadidd a gross outstanding balance of $558
million , consisting of the $300 million Term Lod&nfacility and $258 million of borrowings under thevolving credit facility. Additionally, at
December 31, 2014 , the Company was contingentlgatkd under letters of credit issued pursuatihéosenior unsecured credit facility with face
amounts aggregating approximately $0.7 millionsuténg in $441.3 million of available borrowingpzrcity under the revolving credit facility as of
December 31, 2014 .

The Credit Facility contains customary covenanss, tamong other things, restrict, subject to cergaiceptions, the ability of GLPI and its
subsidiaries, to grant liens on their assets, imagbtedness, sell assets, make investments, eingagquisitions, mergers or consolidations or pay
certain dividends and other restricted payments. Ctedit Facility contains the following financ@dvenants, which are measured quarterly on a
trailing four-quarter basis: a maximum total debt to total agsleie ratio, a maximum senior secured debt to agaét value ratio, a maximum rati
certain recourse debt to unencumbered asset vatlia minimum fixed charge coverage ratio. In additiGLP!I is required to maintain a minimum
tangible net worth. GLPI is required to maintamstatus as a REIT on and after the effective afats election to be treated as a REIT, which
election GLPI intends to make on its U.S. fedemabime tax return for its 2014 fiscal year. GLPpésmitted to pay dividends to its shareholders as
may be required in order to maintain REIT statubject to the absence of payment or bankruptcyultsfeGLPI is also permitted to make other
dividends and distributions subject to pro formanptiance with the financial covenants and the abser defaults. The Credit Facility also contains
certain customary affirmative covenants and evehtiefault. Such events of default include the oemnce of a change of control and termination of
the Master Lease (subject to certain replacemghtg). The occurrence and continuance of an evfetgfault under the Credit Facility will enable
the lenders under the Credit Facility to acceletia¢eloans, and terminate the commitments, theeund

Senior Unsecured Notes

At December 31, 2014 , the Company had $550 mibhietstanding of 4.375% senior unsecured notes imgton November 1, 2018 (the
"2018 Notes"), $1,000 million outstanding of 4.875@&tior unsecured notes maturing on November 1) g82 "2020 Notes") and $500 million
outstanding of 5.375% senior unsecured notes matam November 1, 2023 (the "2023 Notes"). Inteoastach of the 2018 Notes, 2020 Notes and
2023 Notes, (collectively the "Notes") is payal@ensannually on May 1 and November 1 of each year.

The Company may redeem the Notes of any serigsydirae, and from time to time, at a redemptiorc@mf 100% of the principal amount of
the Notes redeemed, plus a "make-whole" redemptiemium described in the indenture governing th&ebldogether with accrued and unpaid
interest to, but not including, the redemption dateept that if Notes of a series are redeemeat wer days prior to their maturity, the rederapti
price will be 100%of the principal amount of the Notes redeemed,ttegewith accrued and unpaid interest to, but noluiding, the redemption da
If GLPI experiences a change of control accompahied decline in the credit rating of the Notesgfarticular series, the Company will be required
to give holders of the Notes of such series theodppity to sell their Notes of such series atiagpequal to 101% of the principal amount of the
Notes of such series, together with accrued andidripterest to, but not including, the repurchéate. The Notes also are subject to mande
redemption requirements imposed by gaming lawsregdlations.

The Notes were issued by GLP Capital, L.P. and GinRncing Il, Inc., (the "Issuers") two wholly-owthsubsidiaries of GLPI and are
guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by GLPIgTéntees of GLPI are full and unconditional. Na¢es are the Issuers' senior unsecured
obligations and rangari passuin right of payment with all of the Issuers' serimdebtedness, including the Credit Facility, aadisr in right of
payment to all of the Issuers' subordinated indbiges, without giving effect to collateral arrangeis. See Note 18 for additional financial
information on the parent guarantor and subsidi&syers of the Notes.

The Notes contain covenants limiting the Companayliity to: incur additional debt and use theiretsgo secure debt; merge or consolidate
with another company; and make certain amendmeritetMaster Lease. The Notes also require the @oynfw maintain a specified ratio of
unencumbered assets to unsecured debt. These otsvana subject to a number of important and dicanit limitations, qualifications and
exceptions.
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At December 31, 2014 , the Company was in compdiamith all required covenants under the CreditIfgcnd the Notes.

Capital Lease

The Company assumed the capital lease obligatiaterkto certain assets at its Aurora, lllinoisgady. GLPI recorded the asset and liability
associated with the capital lease on its balaneetsiihe original term of the capital lease wage&rs and it will terminate in 2026.

Outlook

Based on our current level of operations and grateid earnings, we believe that cash generateddparations and cash on hand, together
with amounts available under our senior unsecureditcfacility, will be adequate to meet our aritied debt service requirements, capital
expenditures, working capital needs and dividengirements. In addition, we expect the majoritypof future growth to come from acquisitions of
gaming and other properties at reasonable valuatmtease to third parties. If we consummate figanit acquisitions in the future, our cash
requirements may increase significantly and we ddikely need to raise additional proceeds throagiombination of either common equity and/or
debt offerings. Our future operating performance auar ability to service or refinance our debt wi#l subject to future economic conditions and to
financial, business and other factors, many of tiaie beyond our control. See "Risk Factors-Risigiied to Our Capital Structure" of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of the ridited to our capital structure.
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Commitments and Contingencies
Contractual Cash Obligations

The following table presents our contractual olil@s at December 31, 2014 :

Payments Due By Period

Total 2015 2016 - 2017 2018 - 2019 2020 and After
(in thousands)

Senior unsecured credit facility

Principal $ 558,00 $ — 3 — % 558,00 $ —

Interest? 78,51( 20,32; 42,07¢ 16,107 —
4.375% senior subordinated notes

Principal 550,00 — — 550,00t —

Interest 96,25! 24,06: 48,12¢ 24,06 —
4.875% senior subordinated notes

Principal 1,000,00:! — — — 1,000,00!

Interest 292,50( 48,75( 97,50( 97,50( 48,75(
5.375% senior subordinated notes

Principal 500,00 — — — 500,00(

Interest 241,87! 26,87¢ 53,75( 53,75( 107,50(
Capital lease obligations 1,487 81 22¢ 231 94¢
Purchase obligations 1,824 1,80¢ 20 — —
Operating leases 51,52 1,52¢ 3,05¢ 2,62( 44 32(
Other liabilities reflected in the Company's

consolidated balance sheéts 625 62¢ — — —

Total $ 3,37259 $ 124,05. $ 244,75( % 1,302,27 $ 1,701,51

@ The interest rates associated with the variabkegamponents of our senior unsecured credit faclié estimated, reflected of forward

LIBOR curves plus the spread over LIBOR of 150 §asiints which became effective in the first quaofe2014. The contractual amounts to
be paid on our variable rate obligations are affigédty changes in market interest rates and changes spreads which are based on our
leverage ratios. Future changes in such ratiosimphct the contractual amounts to be paid.

@ Primarily represents liabilities associated wittvaed programs at our TRS Properties that can beeradd for free play, merchandise or
services.

Other Commercial Commitments

The following table presents our material commémimmitments as of December 31, 2014 for the Yalhgy future periods:

Total Amounts

Committed 2015 2016 - 2017 2018 - 2019 2020 and After
(in thousands)
Letters of Credit? $ 744 $ 744 — — —
Total $ 744 % 744 — — _
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@ The available balance under the revolving creditipo of our senior unsecured credit facility islueed by outstanding letters of cre

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as ofnlere31, 2014 and 2013 .

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

We face market risk exposure in the form of interate risk. These market risks arise from our dédligations. We have no international
operations. Our exposure to foreign currency flatans is not significant to our financial conditior results of operations.

GLPI's primary market risk exposure is interesermask with respect to its indebtedness of $2,6081bon at December 31, 2014 .
Furthermore, $2,050.0 million of our obligationg éine senior unsecured notes that have fixed sitesges with maturity dates ranging from four to
nine years. An increase in interest rates couldenta& financing of any acquisition by GLPI morettoas well as increase the costs of its variable
rate debt obligations. Rising interest rates calsd limit GLPI’s ability to refinance its debt winé matures or cause GLPI to pay higher interest
rates upon refinancing and increase interest expensefinanced indebtedness. GLPI may managesdgd) interest rate risks related to its
borrowings by means of interest rate swap agreesn&itP| also expects to manage its exposure teeistteate risk by maintaining a mix of fixed :
variable rates for its indebtedness. However, tB&TRrovisions of the Code substantially limit GL4bility to hedge its assets and liabilities.

The table below provides information at December2Bil4 about our financial instruments that aresiiee to changes in interest rates. For
debt obligations, the table presents notional artsonmaturing in each fiscal year and the relatedylted-average interest rates by maturity dates.
Notional amounts are used to calculate the contahgiayments to be exchanged by maturity date lameveighte-average interest rates are base
implied forward LIBOR rates at December 31, 2014 .

Fair Value at
12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 Thereafter Total 12/31/2014
(in thousands)
Long-term debt:
Fixed rate $ — 3 — 3 — 3 550,00( $ — $ 1,500,000 $ 2,050,000 $ 2,091,00!
Average interest rate 4.38% 5.04%
Variable rate $ — % — % — % 558,00( $ — % — % 558,000 $ 535,01(
Average interest rat8 3.81%
@ Estimated rate, reflective of forward LIBOR plug tspread over LIBOR applicable to variable-ratedsing.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarie

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Irtt Sabsidiaries as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statsmé&income, changes in shareholders' equityditefand cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2014. Our aullitsiacluded the financial statement scheduledistethe index at Item 15(a). These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibilityeo€ompany’'s management. Our responsibility ixpoess an opinion on these financial statements
and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBigqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdintecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles usédignificant estimates made by management, dsawelvaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provideagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢donsolidated financial position of Gaming
and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries aeBwer 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidatettseduheir operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Dece®ih014, in conformity with U.S. generally actpaccounting principles. Also, in our opini
the related financial statement schedule, whenidered in relation to the basic financial stateradaken as a whole, presents fairly, in all materia
respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), Gaming and
Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ inteowaitrol over financial reporting as of December Z114, based on criteria established in Internal

Control-Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cosaion (2013 framework) and our report
dated February 27, 2015 expressed an unqualifiedoopthereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 27, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarie

We have audited Gaming and Leisure Properties aimd.Subsidiaries' internal control over financadorting as of December 31, 2014,
based on criteria established in Internal Controitegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Smimg Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria)mB®& and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidianesiagement is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportjrand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefrial control over financial reporting includedtire
accompanying Management's Report on Internal Cboer Financial Reporting. Our responsibility dsexpress an opinion on the company's
internal control over financial reporting basedaom audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting OversightiB8q&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethatietfenternal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our anditided obtaining an understanding of internaltc@rover financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiadune design and operating effectiveness oftiratecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repagtis a process designed to provide reasonablesssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettifansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perapiaation of financial statements in accordanck génerally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company eirgbnade only in accordance with authorizationsiahagement and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regardingmptien or timely detection of unauthorized acqiosit use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procesunay deteriorate.

In our opinion, Gaming and Leisure Properties, &mdd Subsidiaries maintained, in all material respeeffective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, basgethe COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Gaming and Leisure Propertiesatrd Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 an8, 20 the related consolidated statements of

income, changes in shareholders' equity (defaityl cash flows for each of the three years in theogd ended December 31, 2014 of Gaming and
Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries and epont dated February 27, 2015 expressed an unigdatipinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 27, 2015
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(amounts in thousands, except share and per sharatzh)

Assets
Real estate investments, net

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarige

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Property and equipment, used in operations, net

Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses

Deferred tax assets, current
Other current assets
Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortizafi®9,327 and $1,270 at December 31, 2014 and

2013, respectively
Loan receivable
Deferred tax assets, non-current
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued interest

Accrued salaries and wages

Gaming, property, and other taxes

Income taxes

Current maturities of long-term debt

Other current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current maturities

Deferred tax liabilities, non-current
Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 9)

Shareholders’ (deficit) equity

Common stock ($.01 par value, 550,000,000 share®ared, 112,981,088 and 88,659,448 shares iss

at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively)

Additional paid-in capital
Retained (deficit) earnings
Total shareholders’ (deficit) equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ (deficit) equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finkstei'ements.
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December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

$ 2,180,12. $ 2,010,30.
134,02 139,12:

35,97: 285,22

7,90( 5,98:

2,01¢ 2,22¢

45,25 17,36

75,52 75,52

9,571 9,571

39,12¢ 46,87

34,00 —

67¢ —

382 17,04

$ 2,564,58 $ 2,609,23'
$ 4,40¢ $ 21,39
5,33¢ 13,78:

17,52¢ 18,05¢

12,58 10,33’

22,74 18,78¢

— 17,25¢

81 —

15,78¢ 12,91

2,609,401 2,350,001

1,44¢ 4,28:

2,689,31 2,466,81!

1,13( 887

888,86( 3,651
(1,014,72) 137,89:
(124,73f) 142,42

$ 2,564,58 $ 2,609,23!
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarie

Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012
Revenues
Rental $ 431,28( 68,95¢ $ —
Real estate taxes paid by tenants 50,53¢ 7,60z —
Total rental revenue 481,81 76,55 —
Gaming 148,28 159,35: 202,58:
Food, beverage and other 11,62 12,357 15,63t
Total revenues 641,71¢ 248,26t 218,21t
Less promotional allowances (5,779 (6,137) (7,579
Net revenues 635,94! 242,12¢ 210,64«
Operating expenses
Gaming 82,99t 89,367 113,11:
Food, beverage and other 9,73¢ 10,77¢ 13,11«
Real estate taxes 52,15¢ 9,22( 1,59
General and administrative 80,83¢ 43,26: 25,06¢
Depreciation 106,84 28,92: 14,09(
Total operating expenses 332,56: 181,54 166,97!
Income from operations 303,38! 60,58: 43,66¢
Other income (expenses)
Interest expense (117,030 (29,25 —
Interest income 2,44+ 1 2
Management fees — (4,207%) (6,320
Total other expenses (114,586 (23,45¢) (6,31%)
Income before income taxes 188,79 37,12¢ 37,35(
Income tax expense 3,41: 17,29¢ 14,43:
Net income $ 185,38 19,83( $ 22,91¢
Earnings per common share:
Basic earnings per common share $ 1.6 0.1¢ $ 0.21
Diluted earnings per common share $ 1.5¢ 017 $ 0.2C

See accompanying nhotes to the consolidated finksteitements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarie

Consolidated Statements of Changes in ShareholderSquity (Deficit)

(in thousands, except share data)

Balance, December 31, 2011
Cash contribution to parent
Net income

Balance, December 31, 2012

Contributions to Penn National Gaming, Inc., ptm
Spin-Off

Real estate assets and liabilities contributeditBIG
from Penn National Gaming, Inc. (See Note 1)

Cash contribution to Penn National Gaming, Inc.
connection with Spin-Off

Stock option activity
Restricted stock activity
Net income

Balance, December 31, 2013
Stock option activity
Restricted stock activity

Dividends paid, including the Purging Distribution
($14.32 per common share)

Distribution in connection with tax matter agreemn
Net income

Balance, December 31, 2014

Common Stock Additional Retained Total

Paid-In Earnings Shareholders’

Shares Amount Capital (Deficit) Equity (Deficit)
—  $ — $ 77,85¢ $ 142,05¢ $ 219,91:
— — (6,500) — (6,500)
— — — 22,91¢ 22,91¢
— — 71,35¢ 164,97- 236,33(
— — (3,38)) (46,919 (50,300)
88,601,63 88¢€ 2,022,68 — 2,023,57.
— — (2,090,00)) — (2,090,00)
57,81: 1 2,621 — 2,62z
— — 374 — 374
— — — 19,83( 19,83(
88,659,44 887 3,651 137,89: 142,42
2,184,98I 21 38,64¢ — 38,66¢
156,83¢ 2 3,51¢ — 3,521
21,979,82 22C 843,67 (1,338,00) (494,104
— — (63F) — (63F)
— — — 185,38 185,38
112,981,08 $ 1,13C $ 888,86( $ (1,014,72) $ (124,730

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finksteitements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarie
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012
Operating activities
Net income $ 185,38« $ 19,83( $ 22,91¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigen by operating activities:
Depreciation 106,84 28,92 14,09(
Amortization of debt issuance costs 8,057 1,27( —
Losses (gains) on dispositions of property 10 (39) (142)
Deferred income taxes (3,305 (5,64¢) (88)
Stock-based compensation 12,25¢ 1,56¢ —
(Increase) decrease,
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (10,60) (88E) 1,51
Other assets (1,660 (662) —
Increase (decrease),
Accounts payable (1,650 2,63¢ (260)
Accrued expenses (8,444 7,99¢ (45€)
Accrued interest (527) 17,21¢ —
Accrued salaries and wages 2,24 2,131 (399
Gaming, pari-mutuel, property and other taxes 527 @ (250
Income taxes (18,759 5,71¢ (10,167)
Other current and noncurrent liabilities 2,871 582 (26)
Net cash provided by operating activities 273,25¢ 80,63: 26,74«
Investing activities
Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements (139,23) (12,199 (1,930
Capital maintenance expenditures (3,539 (4,230 (3,260
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 18C 153 38C
Funding of loan receivable (43,000 — —
Principal payments on loan receivable 9,00(¢ — —
Acquisition of real estate (140,73() — —
Net cash used in investing activities (317,319 (16,27Y (4,810
Financing activities
Net advances to Penn National Gaming, Inc. — (6,982 (24,519
Cash contributions to Penn National Gaming, In@dnnection with Spin-Off — (2,090,001 —
Dividends paid, including the Purging Distribution (494,109 — —
Proceeds from exercise of options 29,93: 1,431 —
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 291,95( 2,350,001 —
Financing costs (30€) (48,14°) —
Payments of long-term debt (32,029 — —
Distribution in connection with 2013 Pre-Spin taatter agreement (635) — —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (205,189 206,30: (24,51%)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivakent (249,249 270,65¢ (2,584
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 285,22: 14,56: 17,14¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 35970 § 28522 § 14,56:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiiements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Business and Basis of Presentation

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. ("GLPI") isH-administered and self-managed Pennsylvaniaagtate investment trust ("REIT").
GLPI (together with its subsidiaries, the "Comparwas incorporated on February 13, 2013, as a ydwolined subsidiary of Penn National Gami
Inc. ("Penn”). On November 1, 2013, Penn contriduteGLPI, through a series of internal corporat&nucturings, substantially all of the assets and
liabilities associated with Penn’s real properterasts and real estate development business |laaswibe assets and liabilities of Hollywood Casin
Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville, wheeh referred to as the "TRS Properties,” and tpan-eff GLPI to holders of Penn's common
and preferred stock in a tax-free distribution (tBpin-Off"). The Company intends to elect on itsitdd States ("U.S.") federal income tax return for
its taxable year beginning on January 1, 2014 todsed as a REIT and the Company, together withdirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, GLP Holdings, Inc., intend to jointly eléztreat each of GLP Holdings, Inc., Louisianai@a Cruises, Inc. and Penn Cecil
Maryland, Inc. as a "taxable REIT subsidiary" (&9") effective on the first day of the first taxalylear of GLPI as a REIT. As a result of the Spin-
Off, GLPI owns substantially all of Penn’s formeat property assets and leases back most of tisgsésdo Penn for use by its subsidiaries, under a
master lease, a "triple-net" operating lease witingial term of 15 years with no purchase optifatlowed by four 5 year renewal options
(exercisable by Penn) on the same terms and conslifthe "Master Lease"), and GLPI also owns amdaips the TRS Properties through an ind
wholly-owned subsidiary, GLP Holdings, Inc.

Prior to the Spin-Off, GLPI and Penn entered in®eparation and Distribution Agreement settingifoine mechanics of the Spin-Off,
certain organizational matters and other ongoirgations of Penn and GLPI. Penn and GLPI or thespective subsidiaries, as applicable, also
entered into a number of other agreements pritre&pin-Off to provide a framework for the restwing and for the relationships between GLPI
and Penn after the Spin-Off.

GLPI's primary business consists of acquiring, ficiag, and owning real estate property to be lea&sgaming operators in "triple net"
lease arrangements. As of December 31, 2014 , Glgeltfolio consisted of 21 gaming and relatedlités, which included the TRS Properties, the
real property associated with 18 gaming and reltgeitities operated by Penn and the real propasgociated with the Casino Queen in East St.
Louis, lllinois. These facilities are geographigaiversified across 12 states and contain appnaseély 7.0 million of rentable square feet. As of
December 31, 2014 , the Company's properties wiesloccupied. GLPI expects to grow its portfoliogaysuing opportunities to acquire
additional gaming facilities to lease to gamingrapers under prudent terms, which may or may ndtigde Penn.

In connection with the Spin-Off, Penn allocatedaiteumulated earnings and profits (as determinet 8. federal income tax purposes) for
periods prior to the consummation of the Spin-Qffeen Penn and GLPI. In connection with its ebecto be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, GLPI declared a special dinde its shareholders to distribute any accumdlatenings and profits relating to the real
property assets and attributable to any pre-REHBrgéncluding any earnings and profits allocate@LPI in connection with the Spin-Off, to
comply with certain REIT qualification requiremeiftise "Purging Distribution"). The Purging Distrifian, which was paid on February 18, 2014,
totaled approximately $1.05 billion and was conmgulief cash and GLPI common stock. Additionally Detember 19, 2014, the Company made a
one-time distribution of $37.0 million to shareheild in order to confirm the Company appropriatdéllycated its historical earnings and profits
relative to the separation from Penn, in respoodkd Pre-Filing Agreement requested from the I8 Note 11 for further details on the Purging
Distribution and the distribution related to thefiling Agreement.

The assets and liabilities of GLPI were recordetth@ir respective historical carrying values attihee of the Spin-Off in accordance with
the provisions of Financial Accounting Standardsu8Bio("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("3 505-60, "Spinoffs and Reverse
Spinoffs."” The assets and liabilities contributedsi_P1 from Penn were as follows (in thousands):
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Prepaid expenses $ 2,76¢
Current deferred income tax assets 4,35¢
Property and equipment, net 2,024,57.
Other assets 16,24¢
Accrued expenses (5,656
Other current liabilities (12,219
Deferred income tax liabilities (6,499

Net contribution $ 2,023,57:

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith GAAP requires management to make estimamesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdhge of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses for the reporériggs. Actual results may differ from those estesa

2. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of GLPI and its subsidiaries. All signifiténtercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

When reviewing the Company's financial resulthdidd be noted that financial results for the Cony®2014 fiscal year reflect a full year
of operations for both operating segments, whefiraacial results for the Company's 2013 fiscalryredlect a full year of operations for the
businesses in the TRS and a partial year from Noeerh, 2013 to December 31, 2013 for the real estatity. Financial results for the Company's
2012 fiscal year reflect only the operations of @@mpany's TRS.

3. New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards@d&FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update (JASNo. 2014-09Revenue froi
Contracts with Customers (Topic 64BASU 2014-09"). This new standard will replaceallrent U.S. GAAP guidance on this topic and eteté
all industry-specific guidance. ASU 2014-09 prowa@eunified model to determine when and how revésuecognized. The core principle is that a
company should recognize revenue to depict thefieaof promised goods or services to customeasiiamount that reflects the consideration for
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchafmyehose goods or services. This guidance wikktfective for annual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2016 and can be applied eiéteyspectively to each period presented or as alative-effect adjustment as of the date of
adoption. The Company is evaluating the impactdofpéing this new accounting standard on its finalnstatements and internal revenue recognition
policies.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-@&gesentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) Broperty, Plant, and Equipment (Topic
360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disales of Disposals of Components of an Erfti§§U 2014 -08"). This new standard raises the
threshold for a disposal to qualify as a discorgthoperation and requires new disclosures for tisttontinued operations and certain other disp
that do not meet the definition of a discontinupération. Under the new guidance, only disposglesenting a strategic shift that will have a major
effect on operations and financial results shoelgtesented as discontinued operations. ASU 208 #&-effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after December 15, 2014. Early adoption is perwhittet only for disposals that have not been regdrtereviously issued financial statements. The
impact of the adoption of ASU 2014-08 on the Conyfmresults of operations, financial position, clislivs and disclosures will be based on the
Company’s future disposal activity.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all cash balances and higjlig investments with original maturities of tlerenonths or less to be cash and cash
equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a numlb@perators, tenants, or obligors related to them@any's investments are engaged in
similar business activities, or activities in ttzere geographic region, or have similar economitufea that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations, including those to the @amy, to be similarly affected by changes in ecaoaronditions. As of December 31, 2014 ,
substantially all of the Company's real estate @rigs were
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leased to Penn and approximately 97% of the Conipaegtal revenues were derived from the Mastesé.eRevenues from Penn are reported in the
Company's GLP Capital, L.P. reportable segmentnfea publicly traded company that is subjechminformational filing requirements of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, aretdjisred to file periodic reports on Form 10-K d&am 10-Q with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Penn's net revenues were $2.6 bilbotthie year ended December 31, 2014 and $2.9rbfilioeach of the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 . Other than the Company's tenameadration, management believes the Company'safiortfias reasonably diversified by
geographical location and did not contain any offigmificant concentrations of credit risk. As océ&mber 31, 2014 , the Company's portfolio of 19
leased properties and the TRS properties was dieerby location across 12 states.

Financial instruments that subject the Companyreditrisk consist of cash and cash equivalenty@atuts receivable and loans receivable.

The Company's policy is to limit the amount of étekposure to any one financial institution andgal investments with financial
institutions evaluated as being creditworthy, oshiort-term money market and tax-free bond fundgshvare exposed to minimal interest rate and
credit risk. At times, the Company has bank depasid overnight repurchase agreements that exededafly-insured limits.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses consist of expenditures for g@mttsr than inventories) or services before thedgae used or the services are received.
These amounts are deferred and charged to opesatiotine benefits are realized and primarily con$iprepayments for insurance and other
contracts that will be expensed during the subsaqgesar. It also includes property taxes that weiel in advance. Other current assets are items
expected to be realized within twelve months oftihance sheet date and primarily consists of adsaeceivable, deposits, food and beverage
inventory and deferred compensation plan assetsN®& 9 for further details). Other assets aréatts that are long-term in nature.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions are usedtimate the fair value of each class of finanaiatiuments for which it is practicable to
estimate:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The fair value of the Company’s cash and cash aedprivs approximates the carrying value of the Camisacash and cash equivalents, due
to the short maturity of the cash equivalents.

Deferred Compensation Plan Assets and Corresporidatdgjlities

The Company's deferred compensation plan assetsstofiopen-ended mutual funds and as such thedhie measurement of the assets is
considered a Level 1 measurement as defined uncEyuiiting Standards Code ("ASC") 820 "Fair Valueasle@ements and Disclosures." Deferred
compensation plan assets are included within atheent assets on the consolidated balance slzfesred compensation liabilities approximate
plan's assets and are included with current ligdslion the consolidated balance sheets. The dliféer between the Company's deferred compensatio
plan assets and liabilities at both December 31420d 2013s related to timing differences between the fugdifiassets held at the plan trustee
the actual contributions from eligible employeeshpensation.

Loan Receivable

The fair value of the loan receivable approximdbescarrying value of the Company's loan receiviamecollection on the outstanding loan
balance is reasonably assured.

Long-term Debt

The fair value of the senior unsecured notes anibsansecured credit facility is estimated basedjooted prices in active markets and as
such is a Level 1 measurement.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s findriastruments are as follows (in thousands):
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December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3597 $ 3597 $ 28522. $ 285,22:
Deferred compensation plan assets 14,28( 14,28( 12,68¢ 12,68¢
Loan receivable 34,00( 34,00( — —
Financial liabilities:
Deferred compensation plan liabilities 14,36¢ 14,36¢ 12,78: 12,78:
Long-term debt:
Senior unsecured credit facility 558,00( 535,01 300,00( 294,75l
Senior unsecured notes 2,050,001 2,091,001 2,050,001 2,058,75!

Real Estate Investments

The Company records the acquisition of real estssets at cost, including acquisition and closogjsc The cost of properties developed by
the Company include costs of construction, propertgs, interest and other miscellaneous costsredauring the development period until the
project is substantially complete and availabledocupancy. The Company considers the period afdutenefit of the asset to determine the
appropriate useful lives. Depreciation is computeithg a straight-line method over the estimatedulifiges of the buildings and building
improvements which are generally between 10 toegty. Additionally, the amortization of real estassets subject to capital leases is included
within the depreciation line item of the Compargossolidated statements of earnings.

The Company continually monitors events and cirdamses that could indicate that the carrying amodiits real estate investments may
not be recoverable or realized. When indicatongodéntial impairment suggest that the carrying ealfia real estate investment may not be
recoverable, the Company estimates the fair valtieeoinvestment by calculating the undiscountedriicash flows from the use and eventual
disposition of the investment. This amount is coragdo the asset's carrying value. If the Compaatgrthines the carrying amount is not
recoverable, it would recognize an impairment chaguivalent to the amount required to reduce @neying value of the asset to its estimated fair
value, calculated in accordance with GAAP fair eafuovisions. The Company groups its real estatestments by tenant in evaluating impairment.
In assessing the recoverability of the carryingigathe Company must make assumptions regardingefaash flows and other factors. The factors
considered by the Company in performing this asseasinclude current operating results, market@thdr applicable trends and residual values, as
well as the effect of obsolescence, demand, cotigpetind other factors. If these estimates or ¢feted assumptions change in the future, the
Company may be required to record an impairmerst los

Property and Equipment Used in Operations

Property and equipment are stated at cost, lessradgated depreciation and represent assets ustn ijompany's TRS operations and
certain corporate assets. Maintenance and repaitséither add materially to the value of the aseeappreciably prolong its useful life are cheatg
to expense as incurred. Gains or losses on thesdibpf property and equipment are included indétermination of income.

Depreciation of property and equipment is recongiidg the straight-line method over the followirsggimated useful lives:

Land improvements 15 year:
Building and improvements 5to 31 year
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 3 to 31 year

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over theteshad the estimated useful life of the improvementhe related lease term. The
estimated useful lives are determined based onahee of the assets as well as the Company'sntwoperating strategy.

The Company reviews the carrying value of its progpand equipment for possible impairment whenewents or changes in circumstan
indicate that the carrying value of an asset mayeraecoverable based upon the estimated undisabfuture cash flows expected to result from its
use and eventual disposition. If the Company ddtersithe carrying amount is not recoverable, itld@acognize an impairment charge equivalent
to the amount required to reduce the carrying vafube asset to its estimated fair value, caledan accordance with GAAP fair value provisions.
In estimating expected future cash flows for deteimg whether an asset is impaired, assets arggrbat the individual property level. In assessing
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the recoverability of the carrying value of progesind equipment, the Company must make assumptgasding future cash flows and other fact
The factors considered by the Company in perforrhigassessment include current operating resunlisket and other applicable trends and
residual values, as well as the effect of obsolesEedemand, competition and other factors. Ifalestimates or the related assumptions change
future, the Company may be required to record grairment loss for these assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At both December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Compady$ia.5 million of goodwill and $9.6 million of athintangible assets within its
consolidated balance sheets, resulting from thé&ibotion of Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Halyod Casino Perryville in connection with
the Spin-Off. The Company's goodwill resides ontibeks of its Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge subsidiavhile the other intangible asset
represents a gaming license on the books of itg/#tobd Casino Perryville subsidiary. Both subsidiarare members of the TRS Properties segmen
and are considered separate reporting units ungér 260, "Intangibles - Goodwill and Other" ("ASQ03p Goodwill is tested at the reporting unit
level, which is an operating segment or one leed\w an operating segment for which discrete fir@rinformation is available.

Under ASC 350, the Company is required to test gdlbtbr impairment at least annually and whenegeents or circumstances indicate
that it is more likely than not that goodwill mag tmpaired. The Company has elected to performnitaial goodwill impairment test as of October 1
of each year. ASC 350 prescribes a two-step gobamflairment test, the first step which involves thetermination of the fair value of each
reporting unit and its comparison to the carryingpant. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair @alustep 1, then step 2 of the impairment test is
performed to determine the implied value of gootwiitthe implied value of goodwill is less tharetiyoodwill allocated to the reporting unit, an
impairment loss is recognized.

In accordance with ASC 350, the Company considerdallywood Casino Perryville gaming license addfinite-lived intangible asset that
does not require amortization based on the Compéuyire expectations to operate this casino initefy as well as the gaming industry's historical
experience in renewing these intangible assetsratmal cost with various state gaming commissid®ather, the Company's gaming license is tested
annually, or more frequently if indicators of impagent exist, for impairment by comparing the faifue of the recorded asset to its carrying amount.
If the carrying amount of the indefinite-life inigible asset exceeds its fair value, an impairmesg Is recognized. Hollywood Casino Perryville's
gaming license will expire in September 2025, éftg/ears from the casino's opening date. The Coyngepects to expense any costs related to the
gaming license renewal as incurred.

We assessed the fair value of our gaming licenisgy tise Greenfield Method under the income appro&bk Greenfield Method estimates
the fair value of the gaming license assuming tbm@any built a casino with similar unity to thattbé existing facility. The method assumes a
theoretical start-up company going into businesbaut any assets other than the intangible as#gg balued. As such the value of the license is a
function of the following items:

e Projected revenues and operating cash fl

* Theoretical construction costs and durai

*  Preopening expense

« Discounting that reflects the level of risk asstaglawith receiving future cash flows attributaldetiie license; ar
« Remaining useful life of the licer

The evaluation of goodwill and indefinite-lived &mgible assets requires the use of estimates &ltane operating results to determine the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit anditigefinite-lived intangible assets. The Company hmiake various assumptions and estimates in
performing its impairment testing. The implied fa@lue includes estimates of future cash flows #inatbased on reasonable and supportable
assumptions which represent the Company's bestast of the cash flows expected to result fromuieeof the assets. Changes in estimates,
increases in the Company's cost of capital, rednstin transaction multiples, changes in operadimg) capital expenditure assumptions or application
of alternative assumptions and definitions couladpice significantly different results. Future clskv estimates are, by their nature, subjective and
actual results may differ materially from the Comya estimates. If the Company's ongoing estimaitésture cash flows are not met, the Company
may have to record additional impairment chargdature accounting periods. The Company's estinateash flows are based on the current
regulatory and economic climates, as well as regpetating information and budgets. These estin@tekl be negatively impacted by changes in
federal, state or local regulations, economic dowrg, or other events.

Forecasted cash flows can be significantly impabtethe local economy in which the Company's sulsis operate. For example,
increases in unemployment rates can result in deetecustomer visitations and/or lower customer
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spend per visit. In addition, new legislation whagproves gaming in nearby jurisdictions or furtbepands gaming in jurisdictions can result in
increased competition for the property. This gelhetes a negative effect on profitability once quetitors become established, as a certain level of
cannibalization occurs absent an overall increaseistomer visitations. Lastly, increases in gantaxgs approved by state regulatory bodies can
negatively impact forecasted cash flows.

Assumptions and estimates about future cash fleeldeare complex and subjective. They are sendibiwdanges in underlying assumpti
and can be affected by a variety of factors, iniclg@xternal factors, such as industry, geopoligecal economic trends, and internal factors, sisch a
changes in the Company's business strategy, whighreallocate capital and resources to differemtesy opportunities which management believes
will enhance the Company's overall value but magokthe detriment of its existing operations.

The Company determined the fair value of its godicamd gaming license as of October 1, 2014 ukitizihe forecasted cash flow methods
described above and compared these values to ityinggvalue of the assets on its balance sheetetermining the fair value of each asset, the
Company incorporated recent operating trends df B&S properties, as well as the expected impattteofecent opening of the Horseshoe Casino
Baltimore in August 2014 and the anticipated opgmihinew casino in Prince George's County durirgséhcond half of 2016 on Hollywood Casino
Perryville into its current year projections. Aftnsideration of these facts, the fair value dhlassets exceeded their carrying amounts, anfl as o
October 1, 2014, the Company's goodwill and garticense were not impaired.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs that are incurred by the Coynipaconnection with the issuance of debt are defeand amortized to interest expense
over the contractual term of the underlying inddhtss.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income and ladiraton-owner changes in shareholders’ equity duiperiod. The Company did not
have any non-owner changes in shareholders’ efprithe years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 ah® &0d comprehensive income for the years
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was eqntwal net income for those time periods.

Income Taxes

The TRS Properties are able to engage in activigigglting in income that would not be qualifyimgome for a REIT. As a result, certain
activities of the Company which occur within its SRroperties are subject to federal and state indanes.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740, "Income Taxes" ("ASC 740"). Under@340, deferred tax assets
liabilities are determined based on the differerisgveen the financial statement carrying amoumdsthe tax bases of existing assets and liabilities
and are measured at the prevailing enacted tax ttade will be in effect when these differencessattled or realized. ASC 740 also requires that
deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation atlogvif it is more likely than not that some partar all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The realizability of the deferred taxetasss evaluated by assessing the valuation allogvand by adjusting the amount of the allowance, if
any, as necessary. The factors used to asseskdlitgolod of realization are the forecast of futtagable income.

ASC 740 also creates a single model to addresstairdyg in tax positions, and clarifies the accangtfor uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an enterprise's financial statemiepizrescribing the minimum recognition thresholdvuaposition is required to meet before being
recognized in an enterprise's financial stateméinédso provides guidance on derecognition, measent, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and titaoors The Company did not have any uncertain w@sitons for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 .

The Company is required under ASC 740 to discltssadcounting policy for classifying interest arahglties, the amount of interest and
penalties charged to expense each period, as svéleacumulative amounts recorded in the conselilbalance sheets. If and when they occur, the
Company will classify any income tax-related peralind interest accrued related to unrecognizebeaefits in taxes on income within the
consolidated statements of income. During the gaded December 31, 2014 , the Company recogniz&th$lisand of penalties and interest, net of
deferred income taxes. During the years ended Deee81, 2013 and 2012 , the Company did not rezegamy interest and penalties, net of
deferred income taxes.

The Company intends to elect on its U.S. federrime tax return for its taxable year beginning amuary 1, 2014 to be treated as a REIT
and the Company, together with an indirectly whallyned subsidiary of the Company, GLP Holdings,,limtend to jointly elect to treat each of
GLP Holdings, Inc., Louisiana Casino Cruises, brtd Penn Cecil
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Maryland, Inc. as a "taxable REIT subsidiary" efifez on the first day of the first taxable yeaiGlfPI as a REIT. The Company intends to continue
to be organized and to operate in a manner thapeiimit the Company to qualify as a REIT. To giyadis a REIT, the Company must meet certain
organizational and operational requirements, inolgié requirement to distribute at least 96fAts annual REIT taxable income to sharehold&ssa
REIT, the Company generally will not be subjecfdderal income tax on income that it distributesli@glends to its shareholders. If the Company
fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeanyill be subject to U.S. federal income tax, inchgliany applicable alternative minimum tax, on its
taxable income at regular corporate income tasrated dividends paid to its shareholders wouldoeadeductible by the Company in computing
taxable income. Any resulting corporate liabiligutd be substantial and could materially and adblgraffect the Company's net income and net
available for distribution to shareholders. Unldgs Company was entitled to relief under certaterimal Revenue Code provisions, the Company
would be disqualified from re-electing to be taxesda REIT for the 4 taxable years following theryigavhich it failed to qualify to be taxed as a
REIT.

Revenue Recognition and Promaotional Allowances

The Company recognizes rental revenue from tenemadsiding rental abatements, lease incentivescanttactually fixed increases
attributable to operating leases, on a straighgtiasis over the term of the related leases whitactability is reasonably assured. Contingentaknt
income is recognized once the lessee achievep#uified target. Recognition of rental income comoes when control of the facility has been
transferred to the tenant.

As of December 31, 2014, all but one of the Corgjsareal estate investment properties were leas@dsubsidiary of Penn under the
Master Lease. The obligations under the Masterd.aas guaranteed by Penn and by most Penn sulesdiaat occupy and operate the facilities
leased under the Master Lease. A default by Peits subsidiaries with regard to any facility wihuse a default with regard to the Master Lease. In
January 2014, GLPI completed the asset acquisifi@asino Queen in East St. Louis, Illinois. GLBbsequently leased the property back to Casino
Queen on a "triple net" basis on terms similahtuse in the Master Lease.

The rent structure under the Master Lease with Reslndes a fixed component, a portion of whickubject to an annual 2% escalator if
certain rent coverage ratio thresholds are metaazwmponent that is based on the performanceedatilities, which is adjusted, subject to certain
floors (i) every five years by an amount equad6 of the average change to net revenues of dlitifee under the Master Lease (other than
Hollywood Casino Columbus and Hollywood Casino Toleduring the preceding five years , and (ii) nibyby an amount equal to 20% of the
change in net revenues of Hollywood Casino ColumangsHollywood Casino Toledo during the precediranth. In addition to rent, all properties
under the Master Lease with Penn are requiredytahgafollowing: (1) all facility maintenance, (3)l insurance required in connection with the
leased properties and the business conducted deabed properties, (3) taxes levied on or witpeesto the leased properties (other than taxes on
the income of the lessor) and (4) all utilities arider services necessary or appropriate for tmeld properties and the business conducted on the
leased properties.

The rent structure under the Casino Queen leaséradtides a fixed component, a portion of whickubject to an annual 2% escalator if
certain rent coverage ratio thresholds are metaacwmponent that is based on the performanceedatility, which is reset every five years to a
fixed amount equal to the greater of (i) the anrmmabunt of non-fixed rent applicable for the legsar immediately preceding such rent reset year
and (ii) an amount equal to 4% of the average dmmetaevenues of the facility for the trailing éiyear period. Similar to Master Lease, the teisant
responsible for all executory charges describederabove paragraph.

As of December 31, 2014 , the future minimum reimabme from the Company's properties under nomaable operating leases was as
follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2015 $ 405,74
2016 405,74
2017 406,24
2018 398,62:
2019 360,51°
Thereafter 3,188,42.
Total $ 5,165,29.
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For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201®| @tognized $40.5 million and $6.7 million , resfively, in contingent rental
income from Hollywood Casino Columbus and Hollywdoasino Toledo related to clause (ii) in the paapbrabove. The expected future minimum
rental income from these properties, as well aptrdon of the rent based on the performance ebther facilities under the Master Lease that is
reset in Year 5 (November 1, 2018) of the leaseerctuded from the table above as they are coresidewntingent rental income under ASC 840
"Leases."

Additionally, in accordance with ASC 605, "ReverRecognition," the Company records revenue for #a¢ eéstate taxes paid by its tenants
on the leased properties with an offsetting exp@mseal estate taxes within the consolidated state of income as the Company has concluded it is
the primary obligor.

Gaming revenue generated by the TRS Propertiedyr@insists of video lottery gaming revenue and tesser extent, table game and
poker revenue. Video lottery gaming revenue isafpgregate net difference between gaming wins asgkfowith liabilities recognized for funds
deposited by customers before gaming play occarstitket-in, ticket-out" coupons in the custormigrgssession, and for accruals related to the
anticipated payout of progressive jackpots. Pragvesslot machines, which contain base jackpotsititaease at a progressive rate based on the
number of coins played, are charged to revenulkeaarhount of the jackpots increases. Table gaméngaevenue is the aggregate of table drop
adjusted for the change in aggregate table chipnitory. Table drop is the total dollar amount @& turrency, coins, chips, tokens, outstanding
counter checks (markers), and front money thatearmved from the live gaming tables. Additionaftypd and beverage revenue is recognized as
services are performed.

The following table discloses the components of iggmevenue within the consolidated statementaadme for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 :

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Video lottery $ 12757 $ 138,80 $ 189,80¢
Table game 19,12( 18,09¢ 11,89:
Poker 1,591 2,45; 882
Total gaming revenue, net of cash incentives $ 148,28 $ 159,35 $ 202,58:

Gaming revenue is recognized net of certain salantives in accordance with ASC 605-50, "ReveneeoBnition— Customer Payments
and Incentives." The Company records certain sagEntives and points earned in point-loyalty pesgs as a reduction of revenue.

The retail value of food and beverage and othefices furnished to guests without charge is indllitegross revenues and then deducte
promotional allowances. The amounts included immional allowances for the years ended Decembge2@®14 , 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Food and beverage $ 573: $ 597C $ 6,80¢
Other 41 167 767
Total promotional allowances $ 577: $ 6,137 $ 7,578

The estimated cost of providing such complimenganyices, which is primarily included in food, beage, and other expense, for the years
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 are asvill

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Food and beverage $ 2,766 $ 2907 $ 3,31¢
Other 15 86 384
Total cost of complimentary services $ 2,781 % 2,99: $ 3,70¢
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Gaming and Admission Taxes

For the TRS Properties, the Company is subjecatoigg and admission taxes based on gross gamiegues in the jurisdictions in which
it operates. The Company primarily recognizes gagnax expense based on the statutorily requireckepéage of revenue that is required to be paid
to state and local jurisdictions in the states wheagering occurs. At Hollywood Casino Baton Roulge,gaming and admission tax is based on
graduated tax rates. At Hollywood Casino Perryuiie gaming and admission tax rate is flat. The @amy records gaming and admission taxes at
the Companys estimated effective gaming tax rate for the yeamsidering estimated taxable gaming revenuelamdpplicable rates. Such estims
are adjusted each interim period. If gaming andission tax rates change during the year, such dwae applied prospectively in the
determination of gaming tax expense in future intgreriods. For the years ended December 31, 20043 and 2012 , these expenses, which are
primarily recorded within gaming expense in thesmidated statements of income, totaled $66.8 onil)i$71.6 million and $94.9 million ,
respectively.

Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates earnings per share ("ER&gdordance with ASC 260, "Earnings Per Sharesid#aPS is computed by dividing
net income applicable to common stock by the weigtgtverage number of common shares outstandinggitivé period, excluding net income
attributable to participating securities (unvestestricted stock awards). Diluted EPS reflectsatiditional dilution for all potentially-dilutive
securities such as stock options, unvested resirgtiares and unvested performance-based ressiwess. Basic and diluted EPS for the year endec
December 31, 2012 were retroactively restatedhiemumber of GLPI basic and diluted shares outgtgrichmediately following the Spi®ff and tc
include the shares issued as part of the purgstglalition dividend paid to its shareholders tdritisite any accumulated earnings and profits medati
to the real property assets and attributable toppeyREIT years.

The following table reconciles the weighted-averageamon shares outstanding used in the calculafibasic EPS to the weightederage
common shares outstanding used in the calculafidilded EPS for the years ended December 31, 2@D43 and 2012 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Determination of shares:

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 112,03 110,61° 110,58:
Assumed conversion of dilutive employee stock-baseards 5,34( 4,92¢ 4,70%
Assumed conversion of restricted stock 20¢ 324 31¢
Assumed conversion of performance-based restrgtteak awards — — —
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 117,58t 115,86! 115,60

The following table presents the calculation ofibasd diluted EPS for the Company’s common stacklie years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 :

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Calculation of basic EPS:

Net income $ 18538 $ 19,83( % 22,91¢
Less: Net income allocated to participating semsit (772) (75) (86)
Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 184,61 $ 19,75 % 22,83:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 112,03 110,61 110,58:
Basic EPS $ 168 $ 0.1t % 0.21
Calculation of diluted EPS:

Net income $ 18538 $ 19,83( $ 22,91¢
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 117,58t 115,86! 115,60:
Diluted EPS $ 15¢ $ 017 $ 0.2C
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Options to purchase 17,917 shares were outstaudirigg the year ended December 31, 2014 but waridoded in the computation of
diluted EPS because of being antidilutive. Thereewm outstanding options to purchase shares ofrmmstock during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 that were not includélde computation of diluted EPS because of beimiglitutive. Performance-based restricted
stock awards were excluded from the computatiatilofed EPS for the year ended December 31, 20&duse at the end of the reporting period no
contingent shares were issuable based upon the tdrthe awards.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company's 2013 Long Term Incentive Compensdlan (the "2013 Plan") provides for the Companigsoie stock options (incentive
and/or non-qualified), stock appreciation rightSARs"), restricted stock awards, including perfonocebased restricted stock awards, phantom ¢
units ("PSUs") and other equity or cash based asMarémployees. Any director, employee or consukhall be eligible to receive such awards.

The Company accounts for stock compensation un& AL8, "Compensation - Stock Compensation,” wiecfuires the Company to
expense the cost of employee services receivexchma@ge for an award of equity instruments basetthemgrant-date fair value of the award. This
expense is recognized ratably over the requisiti@écgeperiod following the date of grant. The fa@lue for stock options is estimated at the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing modéle fair value of the Company's time-based restlistock awards is equivalent to the closing
stock price on the day of grant. The Company @dia third party valuation firm to measure the ¥aiue of performance-based restricted stock
awards at grant date using the Monte Carlo model.

Additionally, the cash-settled PSUs entitle empésy/to receive cash based on the fair value of tmpany’s common stock on the vesting
date. These PSUs are accounted for as liability@dsvand are re-measured at fair value each reggoériod until they become vested with
compensation expense being recognized over thésitegservice period in accordance with ASC 718-8lympensation-Stock Compensation,
Awards Classified as Liabilities."

In addition, the Company’s cash-settled SARs aceatted for as liability awards. The fair valuettedse awards is calculated during each
reporting period and estimated using the Black-&shoption pricing model.

In connection with the Spin-Off, each outstandipgian and cash settled SAR with respect to Penmoomstock outstanding on the
distribution date was converted into two awardsadjusted Penn option and a GLPI option, or, incdee of the SARs, an adjusted Penn SAR and a
GLPI SAR. The adjustment preserved the aggregsiasit value of the options and SARs. Additionalty connection with the Spin-Off, holders of
outstanding restricted stock and PSUs with resipeeenn common stock became entitled to an addit&imare of restricted stock or PSU with
respect to GLPI common stock for each share of Pesirnicted stock or PSU held.

The adjusted options and SARs, as well as theicesirstock awards and PSUs, otherwise remain sutgjéheir original terms, except that
for purposes of the adjusted Penn awards (incluidimetermining exercisability and the post-terntiimra exercise period), continued service with
GLPI following the distribution date shall be deehw®ntinued service with Penn; and for purposab@®fGLPI awards (including in determining
exercisability and the post-termination exercisequf}, continued service with Penn following thetdbution date shall be deemed continued service
with GLPI.

The unrecognized compensation relating to both RadnGLPI's stock options, SARSs, restricted stostrals, performance-based restricted
stock awards and PSUs held by GLPI employees wilifortized to expense over the awards’ remainestjng periods.

See Note 12 for further information related to steck-based compensation.
Segment Information

Consistent with how the Company’s Chief OperatiregiBion Maker reviews and assesses the Compangsdial performance, the
Company has two reportable segments, GLP Capital,(a wholly-owned subsidiary of GLPI through whiGLPI owns substantially all of its real
estate assets) ("GLP Capital") and the TRS Praseriihe GLP Capital reportable segment considfsedieased real property and represents the

majority of the Company’s business. The TRS Pragereportable segment consists of Hollywood CaBiewyville and Hollywood Casino Baton
Rouge. See Note 13 for further information withpexs to the Company’s segments.
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Statements of Cash Flows

The Company has presented the consolidated statewferash flows using the indirect method, whit¥oives the reconciliation of net
income to net cash flow from operating activities.

Certain Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is dependent on Penn (including itsididries), who is the lessee of substantiallypithe Company's properties pursuant to
the Master Lease and accounts for a significartigroof its revenues. The inability or unwillingrsesf Penn to meet its subsidiary's rent obligations
and other obligations under the Master Lease cmalttrially adversely affect the Company's busin@sancial position or results of operations,
including the Company's ability to pay dividendstsoshareholders as required to maintain its statua REIT. For these reasons, if Penn were to
experience a material adverse effect on its gamirsiness, financial position or results of opersjdhe Company's business, financial position or
results of operations could also be materially eskly affected.

The Company's operations are also dependent oaritswued licensing by state gaming commissioritsajaming tenants and operators.
The loss of a license could have an adverse affe@iture results of operations. Additionally, Biempany is dependent on the local market in w
its gaming tenants and operators operate for dfisigmt number of its patrons and revenues. If @coic conditions in these areas deteriorate or
additional gaming licenses are awarded in thes&etgrthe Company's results of operations coulddversely affected. Furthermore, the Company
is dependent upon a stable gaming tax structutlgeifocations that its gaming tenants and operajoesate in. Any change in the tax structure could
have an adverse effect on future results of opeTsti

5. Acquisitions

In January 2014, the Company completed the asqatsition of the real property associated with @asino Queen in East St. Louis, Illin
for $140.7 million , including transaction fees8f.7 million . Simultaneously with the acquisiti@BLPI also provided Casino Queen with a $43
million , five year term loan at 7% interest, pr@ypble at any time, which, together with the satepeds, completely refinanced and retired all of
Casino Queen’s outstanding long-term debt obligatid\s of December 31, 2014 , principal and intgpagments reduced the balance of this loan to
$34.0 million . Commencing on March 31, 2015, Casueen is obligated to make mandatory principginEnts on the loan on the last day of each
calendar year quarter equal to 1.25% of the origo@n balance. The collectability of the remainiagn balance is reasonably assured, and it is
recorded at carrying value which approximatesyalue. Interest income related to the loan is ediin interest income within the Company's
consolidated statement of income in the perioceoéipt. GLPI leased the property back to CasinceQua a "triple net" basis on terms similar to
those in the Master Lease and will result in apjnately $14 million in annual rent. The lease hasnitial term of 15 years , and the tenant has an
option to renew it at the same terms and conditionfour successive five year periods.

On May 14, 2014, the Company announced that iredt@to an agreement with Cannery Casino Restv@ (LCCR") to acquire The
Meadows Racetrack and Casino located in Washinf§tennsylvania, a suburb of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvanie agreement provides that closing of
the acquisition is subject to, among other thitigs,accuracy of CCR’s representations and its ciamq with the covenants set forth in the
agreement, as well as the approval of the Pennsigi@aming Control Board and Pennsylvania Racingn@ission. On October 27, 2014, the
Company filed a lawsuit in the Southern DistrictNew York against CCR alleging, among other thirigajd, breach of the agreement and breac
the related consulting agreement entered intoeaséime time. The lawsuit was subsequently re-iilédew York state court on January 7, 2015 for
procedural reasons. The Company is seeking a @satgrjudgment that CCR has breached the agreemetusn of $10 million paid pursuant to a
related consulting agreement and an unspecifieduatrad additional damages. The Company will furteealuate and consider all other remedies
available to it, including termination of the agmesnts.

Although the Company intends to pursue its clailgsnously, there can be no assurances that the &wynpill prevail on any of the claims
in the action, or, if the Company does prevail ae or more of the claims, of the amount of recowkay may be awarded to the Company for such
claim(s). In addition, the timing and resolutiontlbé claims set forth in the lawsuit are unprediletaand the Company is not able to currently ptedic
any effect this suit may have on closing of thesestion.

6. Real Estate Investments

Real estate investments, net, represents investritef® rental properties and the corporate heatiysabuilding and is summarized as
follows:
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December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)
Land and improvements $ 454.18: $ 382,58:
Building and improvements 2,288,66: 2,050,53.
Construction in progress 2,57¢ 61,67
Total real estate investments 2,745,42. 2,494,79.
Less accumulated depreciation (565,29) (484,481
Real estate investments, net $ 218012 $ 2,010,30

The decrease in construction in progress and ceilateease in building and improvements is prinyadile to the Hollywood Gaming at
Dayton Raceway and Hollywood Gaming at Mahoningé&yahassets being placed into service upon commeeceal operations on August 28, 2014
and September 17, 2014, respectively. Both pragewere jointly developed with Penn and were addékde Master Lease upon commencement of
operations. The Company’s acquisition of the rette assets of Casino Queen for $140.7 milliaramuary 2014 also contributed to the increase in

building and improvements, as well as land and owpments.
7. Property and Equipment Used in Operations

Property and equipment used in operations, nesisnof the following and primarily represents éssets utilized in the TRS:

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Land and improvements $ 31,59 $ 27,58¢

Building and improvements 116,86 115,88t

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 103,61: 101,28¢

Construction in progress 724 203

Total property and equipment 252,79t 244,96!

Less accumulated depreciation (118,77() (105,844)

Property and equipment, net $ 13402t $ 139,12

8. Long-term Debt
Long-term debt, net of current maturities is asofek:
December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Senior unsecured credit facility $ 558,000 $ 300,00(
$550 million 4.375% senior unsecured notes due ez 2018 550,00 550,00
$1,000 million 4.875% senior unsecured notes dueshdber 2020 1,000,00! 1,000,00!
$500 million 5.375% senior unsecured notes due Ninez 2023 500,00( 500,00(
Capital lease 1,48i —
Total long-term debt 2,609,48 2,350,001
Less current maturities of long-term debt (812) —
Long-term debt, net of current maturities $ 260940 $ 2,350,000

The following is a schedule of future minimum repegnts of long-term debt as of December 31, 201thfnsands):
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2015 $ 81
2016 11¢
2017 107
2018 1,108,11
2019 11€
Thereafter 1,500,94
Total minimum payments $ 2,609,48

Senior Unsecured Credit Facility

The Company participates in a one billion senigaaured credit facility (the "Credit Facility"), msisting of a $700 million revolving credit
facility and a $300 millioiTerm Loan A facility. The interest rates payabletiomloans are, at the Company's option, equatherea LIBOR rate or
base rate plus an applicable margin, which ranges 1.0% to 2.0% per annum for LIBOR loans and 0t6%.0% per annum for base rate loans, in
each case, depending on the credit ratings asstgribe Credit Facility. At December 31, 2014 , #ipplicable margin was 1.50% for LIBOR loans
and 0.50% for base rate loans. In addition, the @om is required to pay a commitment fee on thesedyortion of the commitments under the
revolving facility at a rate that ranges from 0.18%8.35% per annum, depending on the credit ratasgigned to the Credit Facility. At
December 31, 2014 , the commitment fee rate wa&0.2The Company is not required to repay any lasmaer the Credit Facility prior to maturity
on October 28, 2018 and may prepay all or any goif the loans under the Credit Facility priomaturity without premium or penalty, subject to
reimbursement of any LIBOR breakage costs of thddes. The Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Glapital is the primary obligor under the
Credit Facility, which is guaranteed by GLPI.

At December 31, 2014 , the Credit Facility had @sgroutstanding balance of $558 million , consgstihthe $300 million Term Loan A
facility and $258 million of borrowings under thevolving credit facility. Additionally, at Decemb8d, 2014 , the Company was contingently
obligated under letters of credit issued pursuariié senior unsecured credit facility with faceoamts aggregating approximately $0.7 million ,
resulting in $441.3 million of available borrowiegpacity under the revolving credit facility asidcember 31, 2014 .

The Credit Facility contains customary covenanss, tamong other things, restrict, subject to cergaiceptions, the ability of GLPI and its
subsidiaries, to grant liens on their assets, imagbtedness, sell assets, make investments, eingagquisitions, mergers or consolidations or pay
certain dividends and other restricted payments. Ctedit Facility contains the following financ@dvenants, which are measured quarterly on a
trailing four-quarter basis: a maximum total debt to total agsleie ratio, a maximum senior secured debt to agaét value ratio, a maximum rati
certain recourse debt to unencumbered asset vatlia minimum fixed charge coverage ratio. In additiGLP!I is required to maintain a minimum
tangible net worth. GLPI is required to maintamstatus as a REIT on and after the effective afats election to be treated as a REIT, which
election GLPI intends to make on its U.S. fedemabime tax return for its 2014 fiscal year. GLPpésmitted to pay dividends to its shareholders as
may be required in order to maintain REIT statubject to the absence of payment or bankruptcyultsfaGLPI is also permitted to make other
dividends and distributions subject to pro formanptiance with the financial covenants and the abser defaults. The Credit Facility also contains
certain customary affirmative covenants and evehtiefault. Such events of default include the oence of a change of control and termination of
the Master Lease (subject to certain replacemghtg). The occurrence and continuance of an evfetgfault under the Credit Facility will enable
the lenders under the Credit Facility to acceletia¢eloans, and terminate the commitments, theud December 31, 2014 , the Company was in
compliance with all required covenants under thedEacility.

Senior Unsecured Notes

At December 31, 2014 , the Company had $550 mibhotstanding of 4.375% senior unsecured notes ington November 1, 2018 (the
"2018 Notes"), $1,000 million outstanding of 4.875@&tior unsecured notes maturing on November 1) 82 "2020 Notes") and $500 million
outstanding of 5.375% senior unsecured notes matwm November 1, 2023 (the "2023 Notes"). Inteoastach of the 2018 Notes, 2020 Notes and
2023 Notes, (collectively the "Notes") is payal@ensannually on May 1 and November 1 of each year.

The Company may redeem the Notes of any serigsydirae, and from time to time, at a redemptiorc@rof 100% of the principal amount
of the Notes redeemed, plus a "make-whole" redemgtiemium described in the indenture governing\tbtes, together with accrued and unpaid
interest to, but not including, the redemption datecept that if Notes of a series are redeemeat #wer days prior to their maturity, the rederopti
price will be 100%of the principal amount of the Notes redeemed, tteyewith accrued and unpaid interest to, but noluiding, the redemption da
If GLPI experiences a change of
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control accompanied by a decline in the credingptf the Notes of a particular series, the Compaitiyoe required to give holders of the Notes of
such series the opportunity to sell their Notesuwth series at a price equal to 101% of the praheiprount of the Notes of such series, togethdr wit
accrued and unpaid interest to, but not includihg,repurchase date. The Notes also are subjewandatory redemption requirements imposed by
gaming laws and regulations.

The Notes were issued by GLP Capital, L.P. and GioRncing Il, Inc., (the "Issuers") two wholly-owsheubsidiaries of GLPI and are
guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by GLPIgT&entees of GLPI are full and unconditional. Nutes are the Issuers' senior unsecured
obligations and rangari passuin right of payment with all of the Issuers' serirmebtedness, including the Credit Facility, aadisr in right of
payment to all of the Issuers' subordinated indii#es, without giving effect to collateral arrangeits. See Note 18 for additional financial
information on the parent guarantor and subsidisyers of the Notes.

The Notes contain covenants limiting the Compaaiity to: incur additional debt and use theireisgo secure debt; merge or consolidate
with another company; and make certain amendmentetMaster Lease. The Notes also require the @oynf maintain a specified ratio of
unencumbered assets to unsecured debt. These otsvana subject to a number of important and siganit limitations, qualifications and
exceptions.

At December 31, 2014 , the Company was in compdamith all required covenants under the Notes.
Capital Lease

The Company assumed the capital lease obligatiatetkto certain assets at its Aurora, lllinoisgady. GLPI recorded the asset and
liability associated with the capital lease orbigdance sheet. The original term of the capitaddesas 30 years and it will terminate in 2026.

9. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

On May 14, 2014, the Company announced that iredt&to an agreement with CCR to acquire The Meadgacetrack and Casino
located in Washington, Pennsylvania, a suburb $tRirgh, Pennsylvania. The agreement providdsctbsing of the acquisition is subject to,
among other things, the accuracy of CCR'’s represients and its compliance with the covenants s#h fo the agreement, as well as the approval of
the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board and Pennsid@acing Commission. On October 27, 2014, the @@om filed a lawsuit in the Southern
District of New York against CCR alleging, amongetthings, fraud, breach of the agreement andchrefthe related consulting agreement ent
into at the same time. The lawsuit was subsequeerfifed in New York state court on January 7, 2@dr procedural reasons. The Company is
seeking a declaratory judgment that CCR has brekttigeagreements, return of $10 million paid punst@ a related consulting agreement and an
unspecified amount of additional damages. The Compall further evaluate and consider all other egties available to it, including termination
of the agreements.

Although the Company intends to pursue its clailgemusly, there can be no assurances that the @wynpill prevail on any of the claims
in the action, or, if the Company does prevail ae or more of the claims, of the amount of recotkag may be awarded to the Company for such
claim(s). In addition, the timing and resolutiontlbé claims set forth in the lawsuit are unprediltaand the Company is not able to currently ptedic
any effect this suit may have on closing of thaseation.

Pursuant to a Separation and Distribution Agreerhetween Penn and GLPI, any liability arising fronrelating to legal proceedings
involving the businesses and operations of Pemakproperty holdings prior to the Spin-Off (othiean any liability arising from or relating to ldga
proceedings where the dispute arises from the tiperar ownership of the TRS Properties) will beamneed by Penn and Penn will indemnify GLPI
(and its subsidiaries, directors, officers, empésyand agents and certain other related partie@)signy losses it may incur arising from or et
to such legal proceedings. There can be no as®ithatPenn will be able to fully satisfy its indafication obligations. Moreover, even if we
ultimately succeed in recovering from Penn any am®for which we are liable, we may be temporaméiguired to bear those losses.

The Company is subject to various legal and adtnatige proceedings relating to personal injuresployment matters, commercial
transactions, and other matters arising in the aboourse of business. The Company does not befiwtdhe final outcome of these matters will
have a material adverse effect on the Company’salfated financial position or results of operasioln addition, the Company maintains what it
believes is adequate insurance coverage to fumiteyate the risks of such proceedings. Howevethqroceedings can be costly, time consuming,
and unpredictable and, therefore, no
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assurance can be given that the final outcomedf ptoceedings may not materially impact the Comjsafinancial condition or results of
operations. Further, no assurance can be giverthth@mount or scope of existing insurance covenaljbe sufficient to cover losses arising from
such matters.

Operating Lease Commitments

As part of the Spin-Off, Penn assigned to GLPlaasileases on the land and buildings acquiredrinection with the Spin-Off. The
following is a description of some of the more diigant lease contracts that Penn assigned to GL&al rental expense under these agreements wa
$2.8 million and $0.4 million for the years endeec@mber 31, 2014 and 2013 (which covers the petibdequent to the Spin-Off date). The leases
consist of annual base lease payments and, in stagces, a percentage rent based on a percadjusted gaming wins, as described in the
respective leases.

The Company has an operating lease for the lalidagtiin connection with the operations of the nasn Biloxi, Mississippi. The lease
commenced March 3, 1994 and is for a term of 99sye@he annual rental payments are increased &vgewars by fifteen percent and will be $0.2
million for 2015 . The next reset period is in Ma2019.

The Company has an operating lease for the latidadtiin connection with the operations of the nash Tunica, Mississippi. The lease
commenced on October 11, 1993 with a five yeaiainiéerm and nine five year renewals at the tesation. The lease agreement has an annual
fixed rent provision, as well as an annual reveshugring provision, which is equal to the resultaiféd by subtracting the fixed rent provision from
4% of gross revenues.

The Company has an operating lease with the CiBawoigor which covers the permanent casino fadtit opened on July 1, 2008. Under
the lease agreement, there is a fixed rent pravi$tw which GLPI is responsible, which totals $thillion per year. The term of the lease, which
commenced with the opening of the permanent faciktfor an initial term of fifteen years , withree ten -year renewal options.

The future minimum lease commitments relating ®lihse lease rent portion of noncancelable opgregaises at December 31, 2014 are as
follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2015 $ 1,52¢
2016 1,52(
2017 1,53:
2018 1,531
2019 1,08¢
Thereafter 44,32(
Total $ 51,52

In addition, the Company is liable under numergosrating leases for equipment and other miscellamassets, which expire at various
dates through 2019. Total rental expense undee thgeements was $1.2 million , $1.4 million ands$tillion for the years ended December 31,
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Capital Expenditure Commitments

The Company's current construction program for 2€dls for no capital expenditures for which then@any was contractually committed
to spend at December 31, 2014 .

Purchase Obligations

The Company has obligations to purchase varioudgiaad services totaling $1.8 million at Decemter2®14 , of which the majority will
be incurred in 2015 .

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a defined contribution pladen the provisions of Section 401(k) of the IngfRevenue Code of 1986, as
amended, which covers all eligible employees. Tlaa pnables participating employees to defer agodf their salary and/or their annual bonus in
a retirement fund to be administered by the Comp@hg Company makes a discretionary match contabutf 50% of employees' elective salary
deferrals, up to a maximum of 6% of eligible emgeyompensation. The matching contributions foidéfned contribution plan for the years
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were $i0i@nm $0.2 million , and $0.2 million , respeeatily.
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The Company maintains a non-qualified deferred eamsption plan that covers most management and lgitdy-compensated employet
The plan allows the participants to defer, on atprebasis, a portion of their base annual salad/a their annual bonus, and earn tax-deferred
earnings on these deferrals. The plan also provatesatching Company contributions that vest avéiwe -year period. The Company has
established a Trust, and transfers to the Trus, periodic basis, an amount necessary to proeidiesfrespective future liabilities with respeat t
participant deferral and Company contribution amisufihe Company's matching contributions for the-goalified deferred compensation plan for
the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2862$0.4 million , $0.3 million and $0.1 milliomgspectively. The Company's deferred
compensation liability, which was included in otleerrent liabilities within the consolidated balargheet, was $14.4 million and $12.8 million at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively and pitimalates to balances contributed as part ofS8hm-Off as related to the Company's executive
officers that were previously employed by Penn.edseld in the Trust were $14.3 million and $1Rilfion at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, and are included in other currené@saithin the consolidated balance sheet.

Labor Agreements

Some of Hollywood Casino Perryville's employeesaneently represented by labor unions. The Seedfdatertainment and Allied Trade
Union represents 210 of Hollywood Casino Perrylallemployees under an agreement that expires iu&ghb2020. Additionally, Local No. 27
United Food and Commercial Workers and United ltrialsService Transportation Professional and Goremt Workers of North America
represent certain employees under collective bairggiagreements that expire in 2020, neither ottvihepresents more than 50 of Hollywood
Casino Perryville's employees. If the Company failsenew or modify existing agreements on satisfgderms, this failure could have a material
adverse effect on Hollywood Casino Perryville'sibess, financial condition and results of operatiorhere can be no assurance that Hollywood
Casino Perryville will be able to maintain theseesgnents.

10. Income Taxes

The Company intends to elect on its U.S. feder@nime tax return for its taxable year beginningamuary 1, 2014 to be treated as a REIT.
The benefits of the intended REIT conversion onGbenpany's tax provision and effective income tte iare reflected in the tables below. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are provided for the&# of temporary differences between the tax ldsis asset or liability and its reported amourthie
consolidated balance sheets. These temporaryaetiffes result in taxable or deductible amountsturéuyears. The components of the Company's
deferred tax assets and liabilities, related td RS, are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2014 2013

(in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Accrued expenses $ 2,01 % 2,22¢

Property and equipment 67¢ —

Net deferred tax assets 2,69¢ 2,22¢
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment (33€) (3,459

Intangibles (1,107 (829)

Net deferred tax liabilities (1,449 (4,282
Net: $ 1,251 $ (2,059

The provision for income taxes charged to operatfonyears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and\#842s follows:
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Year ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Current tax expense

Federal 4,41 $ 19,42¢ 12,21¢

State 2,30¢ 3,51 2,30:
Total current 6,71¢ 22,94; 14,51¢
Deferred tax (benefit) expense

Federal (2,680 (7,629 64

State (625) 1,97¢ (152)
Total deferred (3,305 (5,64¢) (88)
Total provision $ 3,41 $ 17,29¢ $ 14,43:

The following tables reconcile the statutory fedl@maome tax rate to the actual effective incomertge for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 :

Year ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012
Percent of pretax income
U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35.(% 35.C% 35.(%
State and local income taxes 0.E% 10.4% 3.C%
Nondeductible transaction costs — % 7.E% —%
REIT conversion benefit (32.6% (5.9% —%
Permanent differences — % (0.8% 0.1%
Other miscellaneous items (1.1)% (0.2% 0.5%
1.€% 46.€ % 38.6%
Year ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
Amount based upon pretax income

U.S. federal statutory income tax $ 66,07¢ $ 12,99: $ 13,07:
State and local income taxes 964 3,84( 1,12¢
Nondeductible transaction costs — 2,797 —
REIT conversion benefit (61,489 (1,959 —
Permanent differences 52 (26¢) 30
Other miscellaneous items (2,199 (204) 20z

3,41 % 17,29¢  $ 14,43

The Company is still subject to federal incomedaaminations for its years ended December 31, 20842013.
11. Dividends

On February 18, 2014, GLPI made the Purging Digtigm, which totaled $1.05 billion and was compdié cash and GLPI common stock,
to distribute the accumulated earnings and profieted to the real property assets and attribetibhny pre-REIT years, including any earnings and
profits allocated to GLPI in connection with theirg@ff. Shareholders were given the option to e&ttter an all-cash or all-stock dividend, subject
to a total cash limitation of $210.0 million . @fet 88,691,827 shares of common stock outstandirijeorecord date, approximately 54.3% elected
the cash distribution and approximately 45.7% eléet stock distribution or made no election. Shaldshrs electing cash received $4.358049 plus
0.195747 additional GLPI shares per common shddedmethe record date. Shareholders electing stoclot making an election received 0.309784
additional GLPI shares per common share held onetberd date. Stock dividends were paid based ®wdlume weighted average price for theee
trading days ended February 13, 2014 of $38.2162mre. Approximately 22.0 million shares wereéskin connection with this dividend
payment. In addition, cash distributions were
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made to GLPI and Penn employee restricted stockdal@ders in the amount of $1.0 million for theging distribution. Additionally, on
December 19, 2014, the Company made a one-timgbditson of $37.0 million to shareholders in orderconfirm the Company appropriately
allocated its historical earnings and profits iigiato the separation from Penn, in response t&tkeFiling Agreement requested from the IRS. In
addition, cash distributions were made to or aatfoe both GLPI restricted stock award holders @hdPl and Penn unvested employee stock op
in the amount of $0.7 million for this one-time tiilsution.

Also on February 18, 2014 , the Company’s BoarBiodctors declared its first quarterly dividend$tf.52 per common share, which was
paid on March 28, 2014 , in the amount of $58.0iomil, to shareholders of record on March 7, 20Maddition, first quarter dividend payments
were made to or accrued for GLPI restricted stacird holders and both GLPI and Penn unvested ereplstock options in the amount of $1.0
million . On May 30, 2014 , the Company’s Boarddafectors declared a second quarter dividend &2@er common share, which was paid on
June 27, 2014 , in the amount of $58.2 million shareholders of record on June 12, 2014 . Iniaddisecond quarter dividend payments were made
to or accrued for GLPI restricted stock award hddmd both GLPI and Penn unvested employee sftabns in the amount of $1.0 million . On
September 3, 2014 , the Company’s Board of Direadeclared a third quarter dividend of $0.52 penmon share, which was paid 8eptember 2
2014 , in the amount of $58.5 million , to shareleo$ of record on September 15, 2014 . In additiirg quarter dividend payments were made to or
accrued for GLPI restricted stock award holderslaottht GLPI and Penn unvested employee stock opiiotie amount of $1.0 million . On
November 18, 201, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a foguarter dividend of $0.92 per common share, whiak paid on
December 19, 2014 , in the amount of $103.7 millitmshareholders of record on December 2, 20h& .$0.92 per share dividend included a
regular quarterly dividend of $0.52 per share andextime dividend of $0.40 per share. The one-tiiwiglend is related to distributions made to
confirm the Company appropriately allocated itgdrisal earnings and profits relative to the sepianafrom Penn, in response to the Pre-Filing
Agreement requested from the Internal Revenue &=and to ensure that the Company has distribl@@&olof its taxable income for the 2014 year.
In addition, fourth quarter regular quarterly dieitl payments were made to or accrued for GLPlicesdrstock award holders and both GLPI and
Penn unvested employee stock options in the anafu$it.0 million .

A summary of the Company's common stock distrimsifor the year ended December 31, 2014 is asafsilo

Quallified dividends $ 12.2¢
Non-qualified dividends 1.9C
Capital gains 0.1¢
Non-taxable return of capital 0.0z
Total distributions per common share $ 14.32
Percentage classified as qualified dividends 85.471%
Percentage classified as non-qualified dividends 13.2%
Percentage classified as capital gains 1.12%
Percentage classified as non-taxable return ofalapi 0.14%
100.0(%

12. Stock-Based Compensation

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had 4,380s884es available for future issuance under th& 20hg Term Incentive
Compensation Plan (the "2013 Plan") that was amatdy shareholders on October 23, 2013. The 20483 *bvides for the Company to issue stock
options (incentive and/or non-qualified), stock egmiation rights, restricted stock awards, phanstmek units and other equity or cash based awards
to employees. Any director, employee or consulsdall be eligible to receive such awards.

In connection with the Spin-Off, each outstandipgian and cash settled SAR with respect to Penmuoomstock outstanding on the
distribution date was converted into two awardsadjusted Penn option and a GLPI option, or, inctiee of the SARs, an adjusted Penn SAR and a
GLPI SAR. The adjustment preserved the aggreg#iasit value of the options and SARs. Additionatplders of outstanding restricted stock and
PSUs with respect to Penn common stock becaméeeintit an additional share of restricted stock 8URvith respect to GLPI common stock for
each share of Penn restricted stock or PSU heldagdhe intrinsic value of these awards were egjaiut to those that existed immediately prior &
Spin-Off. These awards are not counted agains2@i8 Plan limit mentioned above.
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The adjusted options and SARS, as well as thectstrstock awards and PSUs, otherwise remain stutgj¢heir original terms, except that
for purposes of the adjusted Penn awards (incluiirtgetermining exercisability and the post-terniima exercise period), continued service with
GLPI following the distribution date shall be deehw®ntinued service with Penn.

The unrecognized compensation at the time of tlie-Off related to both Penn and GLPI's stock otiand restricted stock awards held by
GLPI employees will be amortized to expense overaards' remaining vesting periods.

As of December 31, 2014 , there was $2.5 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost for stoclonptthat will be recognized over the
grants remaining weighted average vesting periadd@d year . For the years ended December 31, 2942013 , the Company recognized $5.8
million and $1.2 million , respectively of competiea expense associated with these awards. Theseo@mpensation cost recognized for the
ended December 31, 2012 related to stock optioresddition, the Company also recognized $15.3 onilbf compensation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2014 , relating to the $2.48lmere dividends paid on vested employee stockmpti

The following tables contain information on stogitions issued and outstanding for the year endedmber 31, 2014 :

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic Value
Option Shares Price Term (in years) (in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 13,662,84 % 18.4:
Exercised (2,330,84) 16.2¢
Canceled (170,157 21.47
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 11,161,84 g 18.8¢ 237 $ 119,23
® The number of outstanding stock options and thghtet average exercise price of these options djastad for the period ended

December 31, 2013, as part of the Purging DistidoufThe number of stock options outstanding atdbgwer 31, 2013 includes 3,324,389
shares resulting from the distribution.

Exercise Price Range Total
$10.22 t0 $15.39  $15.78 to $23.68 $23.72t0 $35.87  $10.22 to $35.87

Outstanding options

Number outstanding 1,121,62: 8,855,40! 1,184,81! 11,161,84
Weighted-average remaining contractual life (years) 1.0 2.5¢ 2.0€ 2.3
Weighted-average exercise price $ 12.4t  $ 18.8¢t $ 2450 $ 18.8:¢
Exercisable options

Number outstanding 1,121,62. 7,474,41 1,174,89: 9,770,93!
Weighted-average exercise price $ 12.4t  $ 18.3t  $ 24.4¢ % 18.4¢

The Company had 9,770,939 stock options that wezecEsable at December 31, 2014 with a weightedameeexercise price of $18.44
which had an intrinsic value of $108.2 million .eraggregate intrinsic value of stock options esedtiduring 2014 was $43.1 millioThe Compan
issues new authorized common shares to satisfit sftton exercises and plans to do the same ftnicesl stock lapses once they occur.

As of December 31, 2014 , there was $9.6 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost for resttisteck awards that will be recognized
over the grants remaining weighted average vegiingpd of 2.27 years . For the years ended DeceBthe2014 and 2013 , the Company recognized
$3.6 million and $0.4 million , respectively, ofrapensation expense associated with these awardee Was no compensation cost recognized for
the year ended December 31, 2012 related to restritock awards.

The following table contains information on redtieit stock award activity for the year ended DecerBhe2014 :
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Number of

Award

Shares
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 525,32¢
Granted 240,14¢
Released (237,619
Canceled (59,019
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 468,84!
® The number of outstanding restricted stock awarals adjusted for the period ended December 31, 2318art of the Purging Distribution.

The number of restricted awards outstanding at Déee 31, 2013 includes 106,261 shares resulting fre distribution.

On April 25, 2014, the Company awarded market parémce-based restricted stock awards with a thyesr <liff vesting. The amount of
performance-based restricted shares vested ahtheféhe three -year period will be determineddoasn the Company’s performance as measured
against its peers. More specifically, the percemi@fgshares vesting at the end of the measureneeiodpwill be based on the Company’s three -year
total shareholder return measured against the thiese return of the MSCI US REIT index. The Compaitilized a third party valuation firm to
measure the fair value of the awards at grant ukitey the Monte Carlo model. As of December 31 420there was $9.6 million of total
unrecognized compensation cost, which will be reaczeyl over the awards remaining weighted averagéngeperiod of 2.32 years for performance-
based restricted stock awards. For the year eDdedmber 31, 2014 the Company recognized $2.9omitf compensation expense associated with
these awards.

The following table contains information on perf@amece-based restricted stock award activity foryer ended December 31, 2014 :

Number of Performance-Based
Award Shares

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 —

Granted 613,55¢
Released —
Canceled (70,000
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 543,55¢

As of December 31, 2014 , there was $5.1 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost, which valrécognized over the awards
remaining weighted average vesting period of 1&d&ry, for Penn and GLPI PSUs held by GLPI emp®ytest will be caslisettled by GLPI. For tt
years endeDecember 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Company recogfize&dmillion and $1.2 million , respectively ofrnpensation expense associated
with these awards. In addition, the Company alsogaized $0.8 million for the year ended Decemligr2B14 relating to the Purging Distribution
dividend and the $2.48 per share dividends paidm#ested PSUs.

As of December 31, 2014 , there was $0.2 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost, which vélrécognized over the grants
remaining weighted average vesting period of 182y, for Penn and GLPI SARs held by GLPI emplsykat will be cash-settled by GLPI. For
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 , tmp&ty recognized $67 thousand and $0.2 milliospeetively of compensation expense
associated with these awards. There was no congansast recognized for the year ended Decembge2@12 related to SARSs.

Upon the declaration of the Purging Distributior,Rb options and GLPI SARs were adjusted in a matimerpreserved both the pre-
distribution intrinsic value of the options and S&\&nd the prelistribution ratio of the stock price to exercis&p that existed immediately before
Purging Distribution. Additionally, upon declaratiof the Purging Distribution, holders of GLPI PSisre credited with the special dividend, wh
will accrue and be paid, if applicable, on the irgstlate of the related PSU. Holders of GLPI retgd stock were entitled to receive the special
dividend with respect to such restricted stocklengame date or dates that the special dividengagehle on GLPI common stock to shareholders
of GLPI generally.
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13. Segment Information

The following tables present certain informationhaiespect to the Company’s segments. Intersegraeehues between the Company’s
segments were not material in any of the periodsgmted below.

GLP Capital @ TRS Properties Eliminations ® Total
(in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2014

Net revenues $ 481,82: $ 154,12: % — 3 635,94!
Income from operations 279,84¢ 23,53t — 303,38
Interest, net 114,58t 10,40¢ (10,409 114,58t
Income before income taxes 175,66¢ 13,12¢ — 188,79
Income tax (benefit) expense (1,489 4,90z — 3,41:
Net income 177,15 8,221 — 185,38:
Depreciation 94 ,58: 12,26: — 106,84:
Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements 139,23: — — 139,23:
Capital maintenance expenditures — 3,53¢ — 3,53¢
For the year ended December 31, 2013

Net revenues $ 76,557 $ 165,57 $ —  $ 242,12¢
Income from operations 34,33: 26,24¢ — 60,58:
Interest, net 19,25¢ @ — 19,25:
Income before income taxes 15,07¢ 22,047 — 37,12¢
Income tax expense 8,46 8,82¢ — 17,29¢
Net income 6,612 13,21¢ — 19,83(
Depreciation 14,89¢ 14,027 — 28,92
Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements 13,04: (849 — 12,19¢
Capital maintenance expenditures — 4,23( — 4,23(
For the year ended December 31, 2012

Net revenues $ — % 210,64: $ — 3 210,64
Income from operations — 43,66¢ — 43,66¢
Interest, net — 2 — 2
Income before income taxes — 37,35( — 37,35(
Income tax expense — 14,43: — 14,43:
Net income — 22,91¢ — 22,91¢
Depreciation — 14,09( — 14,09(
Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements — 1,93( — 1,93(
Capital maintenance expenditures — 3,26( — 3,26(
Balance sheet at December 31, 2014

Total assets $ 2,335,447, % 229,10¢ $ —  $ 2,564,58!
Balance sheet at December 31, 2013

Total assets $ 2,379,24. % 229,99t $ — % 2,609,23!

@ GLP Capital operations commenced November 1, 20t®mnection with the Spin-Off. For the year enBe¢ember 31, 2013, results
included transaction costs associated with the-Sfirof $13.5 million .
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@ Amounts in the "Eliminations" column represent élienination of intercompany interest payments frin Company’s TRS Properties
business segment to its GLP Capital business sdgmen

14. Summarized Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The following table summarizes the quarterly ressaftoperations for the years ended December 34 26d 2013 :

Fiscal Quarter

First Second Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share data)
2014
Net revenues $ 158,32¢ $ 160,78t $ 157,79 $ 159,03¢
Income from operations 74,33¢ 77,37¢ 77,62: 74,05
Net income 44,31 47,01: 49,90: 44,15¢

Earnings per common share:

Basic earnings per common share $ 0.4C $ 04z $ 04s % 0.3¢
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.3t $ 0.4C $ 04z $ 0.3¢
2013
Net revenues $ 42.64¢ $ 46,07: $ 39,63 $ 113,77¢ @
Income from operations 6,811 9,09( 5,66¢ 39,01¢ @
Net income 3,21¢ 4,69¢ 2,681 9,23¢ @

Earnings per common share:

Basic earnings per common share $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢ % 0.0z $ 0.0¢
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.0: $ 0.0¢ % 0.0z $ 0.0¢
@ During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company ggtzed rental revenue related to the Master Leslsieh became effective at Spin-Off

(November 1, 2013), of $76.6 million .

@ The Company's fiscal year 2013 fourth quarter tesotlude transaction costs of $13.5 million atsed with the Spirdff and depreciatio
expense of $14.8 million related to the real propassets transferred to GLPI as part of the )finAlso during the fourth quarter of 201
the Company entered into a new five year senioecurgd credit facility and completed offerings 8{@#0.0 million aggregate principal of
new senior unsecured notes in October 2013. Thep@owincurred interest expense of $19.3 millioated to its new borrowings during
the fourth quarter of 2013.

15. Pre-Spin Transactions with Penn

Before the Spin-Off, Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge &lollywood Casino Perryville had a corporate bead assessment with Penn,
whereby Penn provided various management servicesrisideration of a management fee equal to 3fefevenues. The Company incurred and
paid management fees of $4.2 million and $6.3 amilfor the years ended December 31, 2013 (befer&pin-Off) and 2012, respectively. In
connection with the completion of the Spin-Off, thanagement fee agreements between Penn and Hotly@asino Baton Rouge and Hollywood
Casino Perryville were terminated.

16. Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Prior to the Spin-Off, the ComparsyHollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Ca$tearyville paid no federal income taxes dire
to tax authorities and instead settled all interpany balances with Penn. These settlements inclagheong other things, the share of federal income
taxes allocated by Penn to Hollywood Casino Batond® and Hollywood Casino Perryville. The amouiis po Penn for Hollywood Casino Baton
Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville’s allocatbdre of federal income taxes were $9.4 million &h8.2 million , respectively, for the years
ended
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December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. HollywGadino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perrywillgle state income tax payments
directly to the state authorities of $1.6 milliomda$2.8 million for the years ended December 31328hd 2012, respectively.

Cash paid for income taxes was $20.1 million ,aieefunds, for the year ended December 31, 2014 .

Cash paid for interest was $109.4 million and $8iion for the years ended December 31, 2014 &182 respectively, and no interest
was paid for the year ended December 31, 2012.

17. Related Party Transactions

On September 19, 2014, the Company entered infggeaement of Sale (the "Sale Agreement") with Wyssirig Professional Center Inc.
("WPC") and acquired certain land in an office céemgknown as The Wyomissing Professional Center @enlocated in Wyomissing,
Pennsylvania, in exchange for the payment of $7#5i0 cash to WPC, plus taxes and closing costaddition, the Company reimbursed WPC
approximately $270,000 for site work and pre-depelent costs previously completed per the Sale Ages¢. The Company subsequently paid an
additional $244,000 to WPC during the year endedeber 31, 2014 in connection with numerous coostnu costs WPC paid on the Company's
behalf.

In connection with completion of construction oéthuilding in The Wyomissing Professional Centem@as, on September 24, 2014, the
Company entered into an agreement (the "Construblianagement Agreement") with CB Consulting GroltL(the "Construction Manager").
Pursuant to the Construction Management AgreertfemConstruction Manager will, among other thingsyide certain construction management
services to the Company in exchange for three pe(c&% ) of the total cost of work to complete theélding construction project, and certain
additional costs for added services. During the geded December 31, 2014 , the Company paid ajmpabely $59,000 to the Construction
Manager.

Peter M. Carlino, the Company’s Chairman of therBax Directors and Chief Executive Officer, isatte sole owner of WPC. In
addition, Mr. Carlino’s son owns a material interieshe Construction Manager.

18. Supplementary Condensed Consolidating Financial Ifrmation of Parent Guarantor and Subsidiary Issuers

GLPI guarantees the Notes issued by its subsidig@eP Capital, L.P. and GLP Financing Il, Inc. Ea¢ the subsidiary issuers is 100%
owned by GLPI. The guarantees of GLPI are full andonditional. GLPI is not subject to any mateoiasignificant restrictions on its ability to
obtain funds from its subsidiaries by dividendaari or to transfer assets from such subsidianegp as provided by applicable law. No subsidg
of GLPI guarantee the Notes.

Summarized financial information as of December28,4 and 2013 and for the years ended Decemb@034,, 2013 and 2012 for GLPI
as the parent guarantor, for GLP Capital, L.P.@h& Financing Il, Inc. as the subsidiary issuerd #xe other subsidiary non-issuers is presented
below.
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At December 31, 2014 Parent Subsidiary Su(lggi]gi;ry
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet Guarantor Issuers Non-Issuers Eliminations Consolidated
(in thousands)

Assets
Real estate investments, net $ — $ 2,04231 $ 137,811 $ — $ 2,180,122
Property and equipment, used in operations, net 25,22¢ — 108,80( — 134,02¢
Cash and cash equivalents 2,64 4,45( 28,88( — 35,97:
Prepaid expenses 1,09¢ 2,19¢ 3,11( 1,49¢ 7,90(
Deferred tax assets, current — — 2,01¢ — 2,01¢
Other current assets 14,94 27,41 2,89( — 45,25¢
Goodwill — — 75,52: — 75,52
Other intangible assets — — 9,571 — 9,57
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortizafi&9,327

at December 31, 2014 — 39,12¢ — — 39,12¢
Loan receivable — — 34,00( — 34,00(
Intercompany loan receivable — 193,59! — (193,599 —
Intercompany transactions and investment in sudnséedi (138,98 195,09: 65,25t (121,36() —
Deferred tax assets, non-current — — 67¢ — 67¢
Other assets 25€ — 127 — 38:¢

Total assets $ (9481) $ 2,504,18 $ 468,660 $ (313,45) $ 2,564,58

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 4,011 $ 18¢ $ 21C $ — 3 4,40¢
Accrued expenses 514 11¢ 4,70¢ — 5,33¢
Accrued interest — 17,52¢ — — 17,52¢
Accrued salaries and wages 10,01z — 2,56¢ — 12,58:
Gaming, property, and other taxes 1,01Z 18,87« 2,85k — 22,74
Deferred income tax liabilities — (165) (1,339 1,49¢ —
Current maturities of long-term debt — 81 — — 81
Other current liabilities 14,36¢ — 1,41¢ — 15,78¢
Long-term debt, net of current maturities — 2,609,401 — — 2,609,401
Intercompany loan payable — — 193,59! (193,59) —
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current — — 1,44: — 1,44:

Total liabilities 29,91¢ 2,646,03. 205,46 (192,09) 2,689,31

Shareholders’ (deficit) equity
Common stock ($.01 par value, 550,000,000 sharte®azed,

112,981,088 shares issued at December 31, 2014 1,13( — — — 1,13(
Additional paid-in capital 888,86( 139,81 292,54 (432,359 888,86(
Retained (deficit) earnings (1,014,72) (281,659 (29,349 310,99¢ (1,014,72)

Total shareholders’ (deficit) equity (124,739 (141,84, 263,20« (121,36() (124,73¢)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ (deficit) equity $§ (9481) $ 250418 $ 468,66 $ (313,45) §$ 2,564,58

81




Table of Contents

Year ended December 31, 2014 Parent Subsidiary Su(lggi]girary
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Guarantor Issuers Non-Issuers Eliminations Consolidated
(in thousands)
Revenues
Rental — 418,10¢ $ 13,17:  $ — ¢ 431,28(
Real estate taxes paid by tenants — 48,57( 1,96¢ — 50,53¢
Total rental revenue — 466,67¢ 15,13¢ — 481,81
Gaming — — 148,28 — 148,28:
Food, beverage and other 7 — 11,61 — 11,62:
Total revenues 7 466,67¢ 175,03: — 641,71
Less promotional allowances — — (5,77%) — (5,779
Net revenues 7 466,67¢ 169,26( — 635,94!
Operating expenses
Gaming — — 82,99¢ — 82,99¢
Food, beverage and other — — 9,73¢ — 9,73¢
Real estate taxes — 48,57¢ 3,57¢ — 52,15«
General and administrative 54,07 2,75¢ 24,00 — 80,83¢
Depreciation 1,83 89,83 15,17¢ — 106,84«
Total operating expenses 55,90¢ 141,16 135,49( — 332,56
Income from operations (55,899 325,51: 33,77( — 303,38:
Other income (expenses)
Interest expense (11 (117,01 3 — (117,030)
Interest income — — 2,44+ — 2,44+
Management fee — — — — —
Intercompany dividends and interest 612,32¢ 39,80¢ 618,69! (1,270,82) —
Total other expenses 612,31! (77,21 621,13¢ (1,270,82) (114,58¢)
Income before income taxes 556,41 248,30( 654,90¢ (1,270,82) 188,79
Income tax (benefit) expense — (2,490 4,90: — 3,41:
Net income 556,41 $ 249,79C % 650,00 $ (1,270,82) $ 185,38
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Year ended December 31, 2014 Parent Subsidiary Su(lggi]sirary
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Guarantor Issuers Non-Issuers Eliminations Consolidated
(in thousands)
Operating activities
Net income $ 55641 $ 249,79C $ 650,00 $ (1,270,82) $ 185,38
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 1,832 89,83: 15,17¢ — 106,84:
Amortization of debt issuance costs — 8,057 — — 8,057
(Gains) losses on dispositions of property 2 (150 15¢ — 1C
Deferred income taxes — — (3,305 — (3,30
Stock-based compensation 12,25¢ — — — 12,25¢
(Increase) decrease,
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 181 (10,747 (1,539 1,49¢ (10,60:)
Other assets (1,645 — (15) — (1,660
Intercompany 80C (4,015 3,21t — —
Increase (decrease),
Accounts payable (16,999 15,52¢ (181) — (1,650
Accrued expenses (7,944 11¢ (619) — (8,449
Accrued interest — (527) — — (527)
Accrued salaries and wages 2,88z — (63¢) — 2,24¢
Gaming, pari-mutuel, property and other taxes 871 — (349 — 527
Income taxes (1,447 (9,325 (6,490 (1,499 (18,759
Other current and noncurrent liabilities 1,58¢ — 1,292 — 2,871
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 548,80: 338,56° 656,71! (1,270,82) 273,25¢
Investing activities
Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements (1,619 (137,619 — — (139,23)
Capital maintenance expenditures — — (3,539 — (3,539
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment — 15C 30 — 18C
Funding of loan receivable — — (43,000) — (43,000
Principal payments on loan receivable — — 9,00( — 9,00(
Acquisition of real estate — — (140,730 — (140,731)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,619 (137,469 (178,239 — (317,319
Financing activities
Dividends paid (494,10 — — — (494,10
Proceeds from exercise of options 29,93! — — — 29,93:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — 291,95( — — 291,95(
Financing costs — (30€) — — (30€)
Payments of long-term debt — (32,029 — — (32,029
Intercompany financing (122,540 (677,36 (470,92) 1,270,82 —
Distribution in connection with 2013 Pre-Spin taatter
agreement (635) — — — (635)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (587,349 (417,744 (470,92) 1,270,82 (205,185
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivatent (40,159 (216,649 7,55¢ — (249,249
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 42,80! 221,09! 21,32t — 285,22:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,64: § 445 §  28,88( — $ 3597

83




Table of Contents

At December 31, 2013 Parent Subsidiary Su(lggi]sirary
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet Guarantor Issuers Non-Issuers Eliminations Consolidated
(in thousands)

Assets
Real estate investments, net $ — $ 2,010,300 $ — % — $ 2,010,30
Property and equipment, used in operations, net 25,45¢ — 113,66: — 139,12:
Cash and cash equivalents 42,80! 221,09! 21,32t — 285,22:
Prepaid expenses 1,191 1,83« 2,95¢ — 5,98:
Deferred tax assets, current — — 1,88t 345 2,22¢
Other current assets 753 15,70¢ 90¢€ — 17,36
Goodwill — — 75,52: — 75,52
Other intangible assets — — 9,571 — 9,57
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortizafi®1,270

at December 31, 2013 — 46,87 — — 46,87
Loan receivable — — — — —
Intercompany transactions and investment in sudngéadi 104,39: 208,73¢ 308,15 (621,28 —
Other assets 12,88( — 4,161 — 17,04:

Total assets $ 187,47« $ 2,50455 $ 538,15 $ (620,94) $ 2,609,23
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 21,006 % — 3 391 % — 3 21,397
Accrued expenses 8,45¢ — 5,32¢ — 13,78:
Accrued interest — 18,05t — — 18,05¢
Accrued salaries and wages 7,131 — 3,20¢ — 10,331
Gaming, property, and other taxes 141 17,54: 1,10¢ — 18,78¢
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current (4,477 12,30¢ 9,421 — 17,25¢
Other current liabilities 12,78: — 12¢ — 12,91:
Long-term debt — 2,350,00! — — 2,350,00!
Deferred income taxes — — 3,93¢ 343 4,28:
Total liabilities 45,04¢ 2,397,90! 23,517 343 2,466,811
Shareholders’ equity (deficit)
Common stock ($.01 par value, 550,000,000 share®ared,

88,659,448 shares issued at December 31, 2013 887 — — — 887
Additional paid-in capital 3,651 17,27: 162,70( (179,97) 3,651
Retained earnings (deficit) 137,89: 89,38( 351,93 (441,319 137,89:

Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) 142,42¢ 106,65: 514,63¢ (621,28 142,42

Total liabilities and shareholders’ (deficit) equity $§ 18747 $ 250455 $ 538,150 $ (620,949 $ 2,609,23
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Other
Subsidiary
Year ended December 31, 2013 Parent Subsidiary Non-
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Guarantor Issuers Issuers Eliminations Consolidated

(in thousands)

Revenues
Rental $ — $ 6895 $ — % — 3 68,95¢
Real estate taxes paid by tenants — 7,60z — — 7,60z
Total rental revenue — 76,557 — — 76,55
Gaming — — 159,35: — 159,35:
Food, beverage and other — — 12,357 — 12,357
Total revenues — 76,557 171,70¢ — 248,26t
Less promotional allowances — — (6,137) — (6,137
Net revenues — 76,557 165,57: — 242,12¢
Operating expenses
Gaming — — 89,367 — 89,367
Food, beverage and other — — 10,77¢ — 10,77¢
Real estate taxes — 7,60z 1,61¢ — 9,22(
General and administrative 19,72¢ — 23,53¢ — 43,26:
Depreciation 74 14,82: 14,027 — 28,92:
Total operating expenses 19,80( 22,42« 139,32 — 181,54
Income from operations (19,800 54,13: 26,24¢ — 60,58:

Other income (expenses)

Interest expense — (19,259 — — (19,259
Interest income — — 1 — 1
Management fee — — (4,209 — (4,209
Intercompany dividends and interest 68,95¢ — 68,95¢ (137,910) —
Total other expenses 68,95¢ (19,259 64,75 (137,910) (23,45¢)
Income before income taxes 49,15t 34,87¢ 91,00z (137,910) 37,12¢
Income tax expense 643 7,82¢ 8,82¢ — 17,29¢
Net income $ 4851: $ 27,058 $ 82,17 $ (13791) $ 19,83(
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Year ended December 31, 2013 Parent
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Guarantor

Other
Subsidiary Subsidiary
Issuers Non-Issuers Eliminations Consolidated

Operating activities

(in thousands)

Net income $ 48,51: $ 27,058 $ 82,17 $ (137,910 $ 19,83(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by (used
in) operating activities:
Depreciation 74 14,82: 14,027 — 28,92
Amortization of debt issuance costs — 1,27( — — 1,27(
Gain on sales of property — — (39 — (39
Deferred income taxes — — (5,64¢) — (5,64¢)
Stock-based compensation 1,56¢ — — — 1,56¢
(Increase) decrease,
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,949 — (77%) 1,83¢ (88E)
Other assets (662) — — — (662)
Intercompany 2,25¢ — (2,259 — —
Increase (decrease),
Accounts payable 20,07: (18,509 1,07: — 2,63¢
Accrued expenses 8,45¢ — (462) — 7,99¢
Accrued interest — 18,05¢ (839) — 17,21¢
Accrued salaries and wages 2,43: — (307) — 2,131
Gaming, pari-mutuel, property and other taxes 141 — (14¢) — )
Income taxes (4,477 12,30¢ (289%) (1,839 5,71¢
Other current and noncurrent liabilities 564 — 18 — 583
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 77,00( 55,00z 86,54( (137,910 80,63:
Investing activities
Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements (5,539 (7,510 844 — (12,199
Capital maintenance expenditures — — (4,230 — (4,230)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment — — 152 — 15z
Funding of loan receivable — — — — —
Principal payments on loan receivable — — — — —
Acquisition of real estate — — — — —
Net cash used in investing activities (5,539 (7,510 (3,239 — (16,274
Financing activities
Net advances to Penn National Gaming, Inc. — — (6,982) — (6,987)
Cash distribution to Penn National Gaming, Inccamnection with
Spin-Off (29,609 (1,992,93) (77,460 — (2,090,001)
Dividends paid — — — — —
Proceeds from exercise of options 1,431 — — — 1,431
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — 2,350,001 — — 2,350,001
Financing costs — (48,14°) — — (48,14")
Payments of long-term debt — — — — —
Intercompany financing (20,489 (135,319 7,89¢ 137,91( —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (28,667 173,60: (76,544 137,91( 206,30:
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 42,80! 221,09! 6,76: — 270,65¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period — — 14,56: — 14,56:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 42800 $§ 221,098 $ 21328 $ — $ 28522
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Year ended December 31, 2012
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Parent
Guarantor

Other
Subsidiary
Non-
Issuers Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues

Rental

Real estate taxes paid by tenants
Total rental revenue

Gaming

Food, beverage and other
Total revenues

Less promotional allowances
Net revenues
Operating expenses

Gaming

Food, beverage and other

Real estate taxes

General and administrative

Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Income from operations

Other income (expenses)

Interest expense

Interest income

Management fee

Intercompany dividends and interest
Total other expenses

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

(in thousands)

— — 3 —
202,58: — 202,58:
15,63t — 15,63¢
218,21t — 218,21t
(7,57%) — (7,579
210,64 — 210,64
113,11 — 113,11
13,11« — 13,11«
1,59z — 1,59z
25,06¢ — 25,06¢
14,09( — 14,09(
166,97! — 166,97!
43,66¢ — 43,66¢
2 — 2
(6,320) — (6,320)
(6,318 — (6,319
37,35( — 37,35(
14,43: — 14,43:
22,91¢ $ — $ 22,91
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Other
Year ended December 31, 2012 Parent Subsidiary Subsidiary
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Guarantor Issuers Non-Issuers Eliminations Consolidated

(in thousands)
Operating activities
Net income $ — % — % 2291¢ $ —  $ 22,91¢

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by
operating activities:

Depreciation — — 14,09( — 14,09(
Amortization of debt issuance costs — — — — —
Gain on sales of property — — (142) — (142)
Deferred income taxes — — (88) — (88)

Stock-based compensation — — — — —

(Increase) decrease,

Prepaid expenses and other current assets — — 1,51 — 1,51
Other assets — — — — —
Intercompany — — — — —
Increase (decrease),
Accounts payable — — (260) — (260)
Accrued expenses — — (45€) — (45€)
Accrued interest — — — — —
Accrued salaries and wages — — (399 — (399
Gaming, pari-mutuel, property and other taxes — — (250 — (250
Income taxes — — (10,167) — (10,167)
Other current and noncurrent liabilities — — (26) — (26)
Net cash provided by operating activities — — 26,74« — 26,74«
Investing activities
Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements — — (1,930 — (1,930
Capital maintenance expenditures — — (3,260 — (3,260
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment — — 38C — 38C

Funding of loan receivable — — — — —
Principal payments on loan receivable — — — — _
Acquisition of real estate — — — — _

Net cash used in investing activities — — (4,810 — (4,810
Financing activities
Net advances to Penn National Gaming, Inc. — — (24,51%) — (24,51%)

Dividends paid — — — — —
Proceeds from exercise of options — — — — —
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — — — — —
Financing costs — — — — _
Payments of long-term debt — — — — —
Intercompany financing — — — — —

Net cash used in financing activities — — (24,519 — (24,519
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents — — (2,589 — (2,584
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period — — 17,14¢ $ = 17,14¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ —  $ — $ 1456. § — $  14,56:
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Description

Rental Properties:

Hollywood Casino
Lawrenceburg

Hollywood Casino
Aurora

Hollywood Casino
Joliet

Argosy Casino
Alton

Hollywood Casino
Toledo

Hollywood Casino
Columbus

Hollywood Casino
at Charles
Town Races

Hollywood Casino
at Penn
National Race
Course

M Resort
Hollywood Casino
Bangor

Zia Park Casino

Hollywood Casino
Bay St. Louis

Argosy Casino
Riverside

Hollywood Casino
Tunica

Boomtown Biloxi

Hollywood Casino
St. Louis

Hollywood Casino
at Dayton
Raceway)

Hollywood Casino
at Mahoning
Valley Race
Track(2)

Casino Queen

Headquarters
Property:

GLPI Corporate
Office 3)

SCHEDULE llI
REAL ESTATE ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
December 31, 2014

(in thousands)

Gross Amount at which Carried at Close of

. Net - Life on
Initial Cost to Company Capitalized Period which
Costs Depreciation
(Retirements) Original in Latest
Subsequent Date of Date Income
Land and Buildings and to Land and Buildings and Accumulated Construction/  Acquire Statement is
Location Encumbrances Improvements Improvements  Acquisition Improvements Improvements  Total (1) Depreciation Renovation d Computed
Lawrenceburg
IN — $ 15,25 $ 342,39 $ — % 15,25: $ 342,39 $ 357,64. $ 85,03t 1997/2009  11/1/2012 31
1993/2002/
Aurora, IL — 4,937 98,37¢ (439 4,937 97,94( 102,87 48,88¢ 2012 11/1/2012 30
1992/2003/
Joliet, IL — 19,21« 101,10: — 19,21+ 101,10« 120,31t 38,92¢ 2010 11/1/2013 31
Alton, IL — — 6,462 — — 6,46: 6,46 3,791 1991/1999  11/1/2012 31
Toledo, OH — 12,00¢ 144,09: — 12,00: 144,09 156,09t 13,72: 2012 11/1/2013 31
Columbus,
OH — 38,24( 188,54: 10E 38,26° 188,62: 226,88 16,00- 2012 11/1/2013 31
Charles Town
wv — 35,10: 233,06¢ — 35,10: 233,06¢ 268,17: 93,99: 1997/2010  11/1/2012 31
Grantville, PA — 25,50( 161,81( — 25,50( 161,81( 187,31 48,05: 2008/2010  11/1/2012 31
Henderson,
NV — 66,10¢ 126,68¢ — 66,10¢ 126,68 192,79: 16,52¢ 2009/2012  11/1/20132 30
Bangor, ME — 12,88: 84,257 — 12,88: 84,257 97,14( 19,69( 2008/2012  11/1/2012 31
Hobbs, NM — 9,312 38,947 — 9,31: 38,947 48,26( 12,86¢ 2005 11/1/2013 31
Bay St. Louis, 1992/2006/
MS — 59,38¢ 87,35: (17) 59,38¢ 87,33t 146,72: 36,69' 2011 11/1/2012 40
Riverside, MO — 23,46¢ 143,30: — 23,46¢ 143,30: 166,76 43,57¢ 1994/2007  11/1/2013 37
Tunica, MS — 4,63¢ 42,03: — 4,63¢ 42,03: 46,66¢ 20,45: 1994/2012  11/1/2012 31
Biloxi, MS — 3,42% 63,08: — 3,42: 63,08: 66,50¢ 34,13¢ 1994/2006  11/1/2012 15
Maryland
Heights, MO — 44,19¢ 177,06: — 44,19¢ 177,06: 221,26: 28,16" 1997/2013  11/1/2012 13
Dayton, OH — 3,211 — 86,28¢ 3,211 86,28¢ 89,49¢ 1,031 2014 11/1/2013 31
Youngstown,
OH — 5,682 — 94,31t 5,83¢ 94,16¢ 99,99 827 2014 11/1/2013 31
East St. Louis
IL — 70,71¢ 70,01« — 70,71¢ 70,01« 140,73( 2,917 1999 1/23/2014 31
$ — $  453,26¢ $ 2,108,59 $ 180,25. $ 453,44} $ 2,288,66 $2,742,100 $ 565,29
Wyomissing,
PA — $ 73€ $ — $ - 73¢ $ — $ 73€ $ — 2014 9/19/2014 N/A
$ — $ 454,00 $ 2,108,59 $ 180,25: $ 454,18 $ 2,288,66 $2,742,84  $ 565,29
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@ The aggregate cost for federal income tax purpostte properties listed above was $2.75 billiobatember 31, 2014

@ Hollywood Casino at Dayton Raceway and HollywoodiBa at Mahoning Valley Race Course were jointlyeleped with Penn National
Gaming, Inc. The costs capitalized subsequentdaisition represent the capital expenditures iredityy the Company subsequent to the transfer of
the development properties at Spin-Off. Both pripercommenced operations and began paying remglive year ended December 31, 2014.

® Excludes the amounts classified as constructigmagress, as presented on the real estate investmenline item of the Company's
consolidated balance sheets and detailed in Ntgl&: consolidated financial statements.

A summary of activity for real estate and accunedadepreciation for the years ended December 34 206d 2013 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 o
Real Estate: (in thousands)
Balance at the beginning of the period $ 243311 $ —
Amounts contributed from Spin-Off — 2,433,05:
Acquisitions 140,73( —
Capital expenditures and assets placed in service 181,40« 62
Dispositions (12,407 —
Balance at the end of the year $ 2,742,84 $ 2,433,111
Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance at the beginning of the period $ (484,48Y) $ =
Amounts contributed from Spin-Off — (469,661)
Depreciation expense (92,75() (14,827)
Dispositions 11,94 —
Balance at the end of the year $ (565,29) $ (484,481
@ The Company's real estate operations commencedwvamber 1, 2013, in connection with the Spin-O#e$lote 1 to the

consolidated financial statements for further infation regarding the Spin-Off.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company's management, under the supervisiowindhe participation of the principal executiwificer and principal financial office
has evaluated the effectiveness of the Comparscsodure controls and procedures, as such tergfiised under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended'Bkchange Act"), as of December 31, 2014 , wisdhe end of the period covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. In designing and evehgathe disclosure controls and procedures, managerecognized that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well-designed and opiragen provide only reasonable assurance of acigekie desired control objectives, and
management was required to apply its judgment &ueing the cost-benefit relationship of possifwatrols and procedures. Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer andngipal financial officer concluded that as of Detxm31, 2014 the Company's disclosure controls
and procedures were effective to ensure that irdtion required to be disclosed by the Company pionts it files or submits under the Exchange
is (i) recorded, processed, summarized, evaluatddeported, as applicable, within the time periggiscified in the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission's rules and forms and (ii) medated and communicated to the Company's manademelnding the Company's principal
executive officer and principal financial officexs appropriate to allow timely decisions regardewuired disclosures.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

The Company's management is responsible for esiédi and maintaining an adequate system of inteordrol over financial reporting,
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1%f6e Company's management conducted an asseissfitba Company's internal control over
financial reporting and concluded it was effectgeof December 31, 2014 . In making this assessmeamagement used the criteria established by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@iwvay Commission ilmternal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company's independent regéxt accounting firm, issued an audit report oreffectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of Beter 31, 2014 , which is included on page 53 isfAlmnual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company's ihtaniol over financial reporting (as defined irdeange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) that occurred during the fiscal quarter eh@=cember 31, 2014 , that have materially affeatedre reasonably likely to materially affecie th
Company's internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item concerningediors is hereby incorporated by reference tdbmpany's definitive proxy statement
for its 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (th@12 Proxy Statement”), to be filed with the U.Sci8éies and Exchange Commission within
120 days after December 31, 2014 , pursuant to IR&égu 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of4,3%& amended. Information required by this
item concerning executive officers is included artR of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for in this item is herelmgdrporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Statemen

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

The information called for in this item is herelmgdrporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Statemen

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information called for in this item is herelmgarporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Statemen
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for in this item is herelmgarporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Statemen
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) 1. Financial Statements. The following Istof the Consolidated Financial Statements ef@mmpany and its subsidiaries and supplementary
data filed as part of ltem 8 hereof:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012013

Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearse@imecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Sharehokguity (Deficit) for the years ended DecemberZ&114 , 2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule 111. Real Estate and Accumulated Deprieciats of December 31, 2014 for GLPI.

3. Exhibits, Including Those Incorporated by Refee

The exhibits to this Report are listed on the aqeamying index to exhibits and are incorporated indvg reference or are filed as part of
annual report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredaty authorized.

GAMING AND LEISURE PROPERTIES, INC.
By: /sl PETER M. CARLINO

Peter M. Carlino
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 27, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdaticated.

O
2
©

Signature Title

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Office
[s/ PETER M. CARLINO (Principal Executive Officer) February 27, 2015

Peter M. Carlino

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
/sl WILLIAM J. CLIFFORD (Principal Financial Officer) February 27, 2015

William J. Clifford

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
/s/ DESIREE A. BURKE (Principal Accounting Officer) February 27, 201

Desiree A. Burke

/s/l WESLEY R. EDENS Director February 27, 2015
Wesley R. Edens

/s/ DAVID A. HANDLER Director February 27, 2015
David A. Handler

[s/ JOSEPH W. MARSHALL Director February 27, 2015
Joseph W. Marshall

[s| E. SCOTT URDANG Director February 27, 2015
E. Scott Urdang
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description of Exhibit

2.1 Separation and Distribution Agreement by and betwenn National Gaming, Inc. and Gaming and LeiBuoperties, Inc. dated
November 1, 2013. (Incorporated by reference talkixR.1 to the Company's current report on Forik Bled on November 7, 2013).

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation afrfthig and Leisure Properties, Inc. (Incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's current report on Form 8-K filed on Oetob5, 2013).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Gaming and Leistopdrties, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Eilitl to the Company's curre
report on Form 8-K filed on November 24, 2014).

4.1 Indenture, dated as of October 30, 2013, among Gayhital, L.P. and GLP Financing Il, Inc., as Issy&aming and Leisure
Properties, Inc., as Parent Guarantor, and Weligd#aank, National Association, as Trustee. (Inooaped by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Company's current report on Form 8-K filed\ovember 1, 2013).

4.2  Officer's Certificate of GLP Capital, L.P. and GERancing Il, Inc., dated as of October 30, 20E3alelishing the 2018 Notes and the
2023 Notes. (Incorporated by reference to Exhitdttd the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilem November 1, 2013).

4.2 Officer's Certificate of GLP Capital, L.P. and GERancing Il, Inc., dated as of October 31, 20E3alelishing the 2020 Notes.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to therPany's current report on Form 8-K filed on Novembe2013).

4.4 Investor Rights Agreement by and among Gaming aislute Properties, Inc. and FIF V PFD LLC datedfdsovember 1, 2013.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therPany's current report on Form 8-K filed on Novemb, 2013).

10.1 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Oct80eR013, by and among GLP Capital, L.P., GLP Faivanll, Inc., Gaming and
Leisure Properties, Inc. and Merrill Lynch, PierEenner & Smith Incorporated and the other inpiialchasers named therein, with
respect to the 2018 Notes. (Incorporated by referém Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's current reparfForm 8-K filed on November 1,
2013).

10.z  Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Oct80eR013, by and among GLP Capital, L.P., GLP Féivanll, Inc., Gaming and
Leisure Properties, Inc. and Merrill Lynch, PierEenner & Smith Incorporated and the other inpiialchasers named therein, with
respect to the 2023 Notes. (Incorporated by referém Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's current reparfForm 8-K filed on November 1,
2013).

10.2 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Oct8teR013, by and among GLP Capital, L.P., GLP Fiivanll, Inc., Gaming and
Leisure Properties, Inc. and Merrill Lynch, PierEenner & Smith Incorporated and the other ingialchasers named therein, with
respect to the 2020 Notes. (Incorporated by reterém Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's current reparfForm 8-K filed on November 1,
2013).

10.£ Credit Agreement, dated as of October 28, 2013 ngn@l_P Capital, L.P., as successor-by-merger to 6bBncing, LLC, each lender
from time to time party thereto and JPMorgan Chzesek, N.A., as administrative agent. (Incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 10.4 to
the Company's current report on Form 8-K filed avémber 1, 2013).

10.t Master Lease by and among GLP Capital L.P. and Fenant LLC dated November 1, 2013. (Incorporatedeference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company's current report on Form 8-K filed\mvember 7, 2013).

10.€  First Amendment to the Master Lease Agreementddateof March 5, 2014, by and among GLP Capital @l Penn Tenant, LLC.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmrpany's quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on M&y 2014).

10.7 Second Amendment to the Master Lease Agreemerty datof April 18, 2014, by and among GLP Capit&l. land Penn Tenant, LLC.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlmrpany's quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on Asigl, 2014).

10.& Tax Matters Agreement dated as of November 1, 2§1énd among Penn National Gaming, Inc. and GammLeisure

Properties, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to EixHi0.2 to the Company's current report on Forkifded on November 7, 2013).
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Exhibit Description of Exhibit

10.¢ Transition Services Agreement dated November 132§1and among Penn National Gaming, Inc. and Ggisuirdl Leisure
Properties, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to BixHi0.3 to the Company's current report on Forkfded on November 7, 2013).

10.1C Employee Matters Agreement by and between PenmhadtGaming, Inc. and Gaming and Leisure Properties (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's curreport on Form 8-K filed on November 7, 2013).

10.11 Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. 2013 Long Terxentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by refeeeo Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's current report on Form S-8 filed on Oetd@1, 2013).

10.12 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated sisipfl3, 2014, by and among Gaming and Leisure Ptiegelnc., GLP Capital,
L.P., PA Meadows LLC, PA Mezzco LLC and CanneryiS@a®fesorts, LLC. (Incorporated by reference toiBixH0.1 to the
Company's quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed orgést 1, 2014).

10.1¢ Agreement of Sale, dated as of September 19, 2@tween Wyomissing Professional Center Inc. and Gapital, L.P. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's qubrtreport on Form 10-Q filed on November 7, 2014)

10.1¢ Construction Management Agreement, dated as oeS8dyr 24, 2014, between GLP Capital, L.P. and CBsGiting Group, LLC
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tlwrpany's quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on dlober 7, 2014).

10.15* Employment Agreement dated April 29, 2014 betweamiBg and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Steven yd&n

21* Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
23*  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registdtablic Accounting Firm.
31.1* CEO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) or-18da) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
31.2* CFO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) or-138da) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
32.1* CEO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3%s Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of The SabaOxley Act of 2002.
32.2* CFO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3%s Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of The Saba@xley Act of 2002.

101* Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Raion S-T: (i) the Consolidated Balance SheeBatember 31, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearse@imstcember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (iii) the Glateted Statements of Changes
in Shareholders' Equity (Deficit) for the years edddecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (iv) the Gioladed Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ang, 20 (v) the notes to the Consolidated Finargtalements.

# Compensation plans and arrangements for exeswnd others.

*  Filed herewith.
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Exhibit 10.15

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is egred into on this 29day of April 2014, by and
between Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc., a$yévamia corporation (the “Company”), and Steversiyder, an
individual residing in Pennsylvania (“Executive”).

WHEREAS, Executive and the Company desire to enterthis Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company (feard”) has determined that it is in the beserests of the
Company and its stockholders to enter into thise&grent and Executive is willing to serve as an eyg# of the Company
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agresme

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, intending téelgally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment The Company hereby agrees to employ Executiveexedutive hereby accepts such
employment, in accordance with the terms, condstiamnd provisions hereinafter set forth.

1.1. Duties and Responsibilitie€Executive shall serve as Senior Vice Presideatelbpment of the Company.
Executive shall perform all duties and acceptedponsibilities incident to such position as maydasonably assigned to
him by the Chief Executive Officer of the Compamytlte Board. Executive’s principal place of empl@nhshall be in
Wyomissing, Pennsylvania.

1.2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on thecaken date of this Agreement (the “Commencement
Date”) and shall terminate at the close of busimesslovember 1, 2015 (the “Initial Term”), unlesslger terminated in
accordance with Section 3 hereof. The term ofAlgeeement may be renewed for additional periodshea “Renewal
Term” and, together with the Initial Term, the “Elmygment Term”) only upon the execution of a writtremewal by the
parties hereto. Notwithstanding anything in thigégment to the contrary, Sections 5 through 2d shalive any
termination of the Employment Term until the expoa of any applicable time periods set forth irct8mns 5, 6 and 7,
except that Section 6 shall not apply in the eeémon-renewal if Executive’s termination of emphognt occurs after the
Employment Term.

1.3. Extent of Service Executive agrees to use Executive’s best effortarry out Executive’s duties and
responsibilities and, consistent with the othewnjmions of this Agreement, to devote substantiallyf Executives busines
time, attention and energy thereto. The foregolral 10t be construed as preventing Executive fsemving on the board of
philanthropic organizations or providing oversiglth respect to his personal investments, so languah service does not
materially interfere with Executive’s duties herdan

2. Compensation For all services rendered by Executive to the @amy during the Employment Term, the
Company shall compensate Executive as set forthwbel

2.1. Base Salary The Company shall pay to Executive a base salatye annual rate of $519,841.09, payable in
accordance with the Company’s payroll practices a&ffect from time to time. Executive’s Base Swlahall be reviewed
annually by the Company, subject to approval of




the Board or the compensation committee of the @¢tae “Compensation Committee”), as the case neay be term Base
Salary” as utilized in this Agreement shall refethe base salary in effect from time to time.

2.2. Bonuses Executive shall participate in the Company’s ariincentive compensation plan as determined by
the Compensation Committee. Each annual bonus aseaned in a fiscal year shall be paid pursuatiieéderms of the
annual incentive plan by March 15 of the immediafellowing fiscal year, unless the plan provides & different payment
date or Executive elects to defer the receipt ohdaonus award pursuant to an arrangement thasrieetequirements of
Section 409A.

2.3. Egquity CompensationExecutive shall be entitled to receive equity pemsation awards as determined by the
Compensation Committee, subject to the terms anditions of the applicable equity compensation @ad award
instrument. The Compensation Committee shall seathount and terms of such options or other equigquity-based
compensation, subject to approval of the Boardduired.

2.4. Other Benefits The Company shall provide a term life insuranakcy, which may exclude certain hazardous
activities, to Executive for such beneficiariesExecutive shall designate with a death benefitoffillion; provided that
Executive may convert such policy to a whole litdigy, in which event, the Company will continuegay the premium th:i
would have otherwise been due on the original feolity. Executive shall be entitled to participatell other employee
benefit plans and programs, including, without tation, health, vacation, retirement, deferred cengation or SERP, made
available generally to other similarly situatediseexecutives (“Peer Executives”), as such plars@rograms may be in
effect from time to time and subject to the elitiipirequirements and other terms of each planhiMagtin this Agreement
shall prevent the Company from amending or terrmgadny retirement, welfare or other employee biépédns or
programs from time to time, as the Company deemsoppiate.

2.8. Vacation, Sick Leave and Holiday&xecutive shall be entitled in each calendar ye&wventy (20) days of
paid vacation time. Each vacation day shall bertdigeExecutive at such time or times as agreed ipydhe Company and
Executive, and any portion of Executive’s allowabdeation time not used during the calendar yealt bl subject to the
Company’s payroll policies regarding carryover \tamadays. Executive shall be entitled to holidag aick leave in
accordance with the Company'’s holiday and otherfpagime not worked policies.

2.9. Reimbursement of ExpenseBuring the Employment Term, the Company shathimirse Executive for all
reasonable expenses incurred by him in the perfoceaf his duties in accordance with the Compapyglgies applicable
to Peer Executives.

3. Termination. Executive’'s employment may be terminated prichtoend of the Employment Term in
accordance with, and subject to the terms and tiondj set forth below.

3.1. Termination by the Company

(@) Without Cause The Company may terminate Executive’s employra¢@ainy time without Cause (as
such term is defined in subsection (b) below) ugelivery of written notice to Executive, which ne#ishall set forth the
effective date of such termination.




(b) With Cause The Company may terminate Executive’s employnagainy time for Cause effective
immediately upon delivery of written notice to Exéue. As used herein, the term “Cause” shall mean:

() Executive shall have been convicted of, or pledtgor nolo contendere to, a felony or any
misdemeanor involving allegations of fraud, thp#rjury or conspiracy to commit any of the foregpin

(i)  Executive is found disqualified or not suitabléhtald a casino or other gaming license by a
governmental gaming authority in any jurisdictiohexe Executive is required to be found qualifiedtadble or licensed;

(i)  Executive breaches any material Company policyngrmaterial term hereof, including, without
limitation, Sections 4 through 7 of this Agreemantl, in each case, fails to cure such breach withidays after receipt of
written notice thereof;

(iv)  Executive misappropriates corporate funds as datednn good faith by the Audit Committee of the
Board,;

(v) the Company’s good faith determination of Execusiweiliful and repeated failure to perform
Executives material duties with the Company (other thansugh failure resulting from incapacity due to phgsdisability
or mental illness); or

(viy the Company’s good faith, reasonable determinaifdexecutive’s willful engagement in illegal
conduct or gross misconduct which is materiallyiigus to the Company or one of its affiliates.

3.2. Termination by Executive

(&) Voluntary Termination Generally. Executive may vadhkrily terminate employment for any reason
effective upon 60 days’ prior written notice to tBiempany, unless the Company waives such notiagresgent.

(b) Voluntary Termination Following Reporting Change the event that Executive no longer reports
directly to Peter M. Carlino or Executive’s compaitien is materially reduced (other than in conmattvith a change in
compensation policy that also affects other seexecutives), Executive may voluntarily terminatepéoyment at any time
within the 60 day period following such change lejixcering written notice to the Company.

3.3. Intentionally Omitted.

3.4. Payments Due Upon Termination

(a) Already Accrued Base Salary and Expenggon any termination of employment during the
Employment Term, Executive shall be entitled tceree any amounts due for Base Salary accrued p#idnhrough the
date of Executive’s termination of employment (tiermination Date”)and such amounts shall be paid in accordance
the Company’s then current payroll system for Bearcutives. Any expenses incurred but not reimlabtiseough the
Termination Date shall be paid at such time arglich manner as provided under the Company’s expemsbursement
policy applicable to Peer Executives.




(b) Severance Pay and BenefitSubject to the conditions in subsection (c) higré&xecutive’'s
employment is terminated under Section 3.1(a) oti&e 3.2(b), then the Company will provide Exegatwith the
following severance pay and benefits (in additmany amounts payable under subsection (a) hegoRided, for purpos:
of Section 409A, each payment (whether an instaitroe lump sum) of severance pay under this suigsef) shall be
considered a separate payment:

() Amount of PosEmployment Base Salaryfhe Company shall pay to Executive an amount etguiile
product of 2.0 times the annual rate of Base Sateeffect for Executive on the Termination Date.

(i)  Amount of PosEmployment BonusThe Company shall pay to Executive an amount etguiile
product of 2.0 times the amount of annual cash s@oempensation that would have been paid to Exexbased on
the actual performance of the Company for the ciegear in which the Termination Date occurred.

(i)  Payment of PosEmployment Base Salary and Bonuishe amount described in subsection (b)(i) shall
be paid to Executive in cash in a single lusyor immediately following expiration of the 7 dawvocation period referenc
in subsection (c). The amount described in subse¢h)(ii) shall be paid on the date such bonysid to Peer Executives.
In each case, such payments are expressly subjsabsection (c) hereof.

(iv)  Continued Medical Benefits CoveragBuring the 60-day period following the Compang&ivery of
the notice required by the Consolidated Omnibusgetu&econciliation Act of 1986 (“COBRA”), Executivéll have the
opportunity to elect continuation coverage undeB&2 or, if applicable, Pennsylvania “mini-COBRA”"rfdimself and his
dependents for the Severance Period (as definedpelf elected in a timely manner, the Companglisteimburse
Executive (a) for the time period extending frora Trermination Date until COBRA expires, for thd ftdst of purchasing
COBRA coverage and (b) for the time period extegdiom the date on which COBRA expires throughehd of the
Severance Period, for the cost of replacement egeeup to the full cost of purchasing COBRA coverggovided that, in
either case, no reimbursement shall be paid aftgr sarlier date as Executive and his dependertisipate in coverage
under another employer-based group health plan).

(v) Acceleration of Certain Optionslo the extent any options to acquire sharesefbhmpanys commor
stock held by Executive on the Termination Datesafeeduled to vest during the 24 month period ¥alg the Termination
Date (the “Severance Period”), the vesting of syations shall be accelerated to the TerminatioreDBlie other terms and
conditions of any such options shall continue fedt

(c) Release AgreemengExecutive’s entitlement to any severance paylmangfit subsidies under Section
3.4(b) is conditioned upon Executive’s first entgrinto a release agreement in substantially tha &dtached hereto as
Exhibit “A”; such release agreement shall be detdeto Executive within 7 days after the Terminatidate. Any payment
of severance pay or benefit subsidies due undesestibn (b) hereof shall be delayed until afterdkgiration of the 7-day
revocation period required for an effective ageelda®lease, and any amount otherwise due undessls#ction (b) before
the end of such revocation period shall be paitherday after the end of such period in a singiephsum payment. In no
event shall any payment be made unless the redgmeement is executed within 21 days followingTeemination Date ar
any applicable revocation period shall have expihedhe event the Termination Date occurs in crderdar year




and the 28'day following the Termination Date is in anothelecalar year, any payment of severance pay or kdenefi
subsidies due under subsection (b) hereof shalhimkin the later calendar year.

(d) Termination Following End of Employment Termlo payments or benefits shall be due under this
Agreement to Executive upon termination of emplogtngon or following the expiration of the Employm&erm.

(e) No Other Payments or BenefitExcept as otherwise provided in this Sectiond3.8ection 8, no other
payments or benefits shall be due under this Agesito Executive upon termination of employment.

3.5. Notice of Termination Any termination of Executive’s employment shadl dommunicated by a written
notice of termination delivered within the time joerspecified in this Section 3. The notice of teration shall (a) indicate
the specific termination provision in this Agreersszlied upon, (b) set forth in reasonable deteslfiacts and circumstances
deemed to provide a basis for a termination of egrpent and the applicable provision hereof, andggerify the
termination date in accordance with the requiresienthis Agreement.

4. No Conflicts of Interest Executive agrees that throughout the period @&chive’s employment hereunder,
Executive will not perform any activities or sem@; or accept other employment that would matgriaterfere with or
present a conflict of interest concerning Execusvamployment with the Company. Executive agreesaakdowledges thi
Executive’'s employment by the Company is condittbnpon Executive adhering to and complying withlibsiness
practices and requirements of ethical conductas#t fn writing from time to time by the Companyita employee manual
or similar publication. Executive represents andrarats that no other contract, agreement or uraleigig to which
Executive is a party or may be subject will be atetl by the execution of this Agreement by Exeeutiv

5. Confidentiality. Executive acknowledges that, as an integralgiatie Company’s business, the Company and
its affiliates have developed, and will developaabnsiderable investment of time and expensaspfaocedures, methods
of operation, financial data, lists of actual amdemtial customers and suppliers, marketing stiraseglans for development
and expansion, customer and supplier data and otiméidential and sensitive information (collectivéhe “Company
Confidential Information”). Executive acknowledgest the Company and its affiliates have legitintaisiness interests in
protecting the confidentiality of that informatidéxecutive acknowledges that in his position heldeen and will be
entrusted with that information. Therefore, Exeeritacknowledges a continuing responsibility to @cothat information
and agrees as follows:

(@) Definition of Trade Secrets‘Trade Secrets” means data and information tQompany or any of its
affiliates owns or licenses including, but not lied to, technical or nontechnical data, formulagtgens, compilations,
programs, devices, methods, techniques, drawimgsepses, financial data, financial plans, pro@tans or lists of actual
potential customers or suppliers, which (i) deeeenomic value, actual or potential, from not begegerally known to, and
not being readily ascertainable by proper meansther persons or entities who can obtain econealige from their
disclosure or use, (ii) are the subject of effthtet are reasonable under the circumstances tdaimatheir secrecy, and (iii)
are protected as trade secrets under applicaliéelata




(b) Definition of Confidential Information “Confidential Information” means data and infottioa relating
to the business of the Company or its affiliatgsybich the Company or its affiliates have diseldso Executive, or of
which Executive became aware as a consequenceioftue course of his employment with the Compdiywhich have
value to the Company or its affiliates, and (iifpish are not generally known to its competitorsjuding but not limited to
the Companys Confidential Information. Confidential Informatiavill not include any data or information that tBempany
or its affiliates have voluntarily disclosed to fablic (except where Executive made or causedphidlic disclosure witho
authorization), that others have independently lbgesl and disclosed to the public, or that othesveisters the public
domain through lawful means.

(c) Restrictions Executive agrees to treat as confidential antinetl, without the prior written approval of
the Company in each instance, use (other thareipeinformance of his duties of employment with@uenpany or its
affiliates), publish, disclose, copyright or autlzeranyone else to use, publish, disclose or cghtrany Confidential
Information or any Trade Secrets obtained durirsgelnnployment with the Company or its affiliates etfter or not the
Confidential Information or Trade Secrets are ititten or other tangible form. Additionally, thissteiction will continue to
apply for a period of 2 years after the Terminafmte (and, in the case of a Trade Secret, favrag &s that information
remains a Trade Secret). Executive acknowledgesi@rags that the prohibitions against disclosudeuse of Confidential
Information recited in this section are in addittonand not in lieu of, any rights or remedied tha Company or its
affiliates may have available under applicableeskaivs to prevent the disclosure of Trade Secrets.

(d) Return of Materials Executive agrees that all records, notes, fdesyings, documents, plans and like
items, and all copies of them, relating to or comie or disclosing Confidential Information or T& Secrets of the
Company or its affiliates (i) which are made or tieyp Executive, or (ii) which are disclosed to himcome into his
possession, are and will remain the sole and exelysoperty of the Company or its affiliates. Udas termination of
employment, Executive will deliver to his supervisioe originals and all copies of any and all &f items described above
together with any material derived from, or conitagnportions of, any of the items described above.

6. NonCompetition.

(&) As used herein, the term “Restriction Period” shadlan a period equal to: (i) the six month period
immediately following the Termination Date if Exdime’'s employment terminates under circumstancesrevhe is not
entitled to payments under Section 3.4(b) or Commdnallenges his right to such severance paymenis the Severance
Period if Executive’s employment terminates undexurnstances where he is entitled to payments uBdetion 3.4(b) or
Section 8.

(b) During the Employment Term and for the durationhaf Restriction Period thereafter, Executive shall
not, except with the prior written consent of then@pany, directly or indirectly, own, manage, opergtin, control, finance
or participate in the ownership, management, ofmeratontrol or financing of, or be connected a®#titer, director,
employee, partner, principal, agent, representatioesultant or otherwise with, or use or permie&ixive’s name to be us
in connection with, any competing business or @nigg located within the United States of America.




(c) The foregoing restrictions shall not be construedrohibit Executive’s ownership of less than 5% of
any class of securities of any corporation whicérigaged in any of the foregoing businesses and hkss of securities
registered pursuant to the Securities Exchangeft934, provided that such ownership represeptsaive investment al
that neither Executive nor any group of personkiding Executive in any way, either directly or irattly, manages or
exercises control of any such corporation, guaesnaay of its financial obligations, otherwise ®kay part in its business,
other than exercising Executive’s rights as a di@der, or seeks to do any of the foregoing.

(d) Executive acknowledges that the covenants contam8ections 5 through 7 hereof are reasonable an
necessary to protect the legitimate interests@fQbmpany and its affiliates and, in particulaatttne duration and
geographic scope of such covenants are reasonablethe nature of this Agreement and the positat Executive will
hold within the Company. Executive further agreedisclose the existence and terms of such covemamtny employer th
Executive works for during the Restriction Period.

7. Non-Solicitation. During the Employment Term and for a period eqodhe greater of the Restriction Period or
one year after the Termination Date, Executive moll, except with the prior written consent of @@mpany, (i) directly or
indirectly, solicit or hire, or encourage the siéition or hiring of, any person who is, or washwita six month period prior
to such solicitation or hiring, an executive or agement employee of the Company or any of itsiatki§ for any position
as an employee, independent contractor, consutastherwise or (ii) divert or attempt to divertyagxisting business of the
Company or any of its affiliates.

8. Change of Contral

8.1. Consideration

(@) Change of ContralIn the event of a Change of Control (as defingldw), and either (A) Executive’s
employment is terminated without Cause within 12hthe after the effective date of the Change of @bt (B) Executive
resigns from employment for Good Reason within Iihtis after the effective date of the Change oft@b(the effective
date of such termination or resignation, the “TeigBate”), Executive shall be entitled to receivaaah payment in an
amount equal to the product of two times the suifn)dhe highest annual rate of Base Salary inatffier Executive during
the 12-month period immediately preceding the Teiggate and (ii) the amount of targeted cash bopugpensation as
established by the Compensation Committee for BRextor the full calendar year immediately precegihe Trigger Date.
Such payment shall be in lieu of any payment tochiiixecutive would be entitled under Section 3.4(b)

(b) Restrictive ProvisionsAs consideration for the foregoing payments, Exge agrees not to challenge
the enforceability of any of the restrictions coméal in Sections 5, 6 or 7 of this Agreement upoafter the occurrence of a
Change of Control.

8.2. Release Agreement and Payment Terisecutive’s entitlement to any severance pay ueetion 8.1(a) is
conditioned upon Executive’s first entering intcedease agreement in substantially the form atthbleeeto as Exhibit “A”;
such release agreement shall be delivered to Exeaowithin 7 days after the Trigger Date. The antalascribed in Section
8.1(a) shall be paid to Executive in cash in alsiigmp-sum immediately following expiration of tieday revocation
period required for an effective age-based reldasao event shall any payment be made unlessthase agreement is
executed within 45 days following the Trigger Datel any applicable




revocation period shall have expired. In the eveatTrigger Date occurs in one calendar year aad#i’day following the
Trigger Date is in another calendar year, any payjroeseverance pay or benefit subsidies due usutegection (b) hereof
shall be paid in the later calendar year.

8.3. Certain Other Termsin the event payments are being made to Execunhder this Section 8, no payments
shall be due under Section 3.4(b) with respechtotarmination of Executive’s employment followiagChange of Control.
In the event that the Company announces that isigagd a definitive agreement with respect to arge of Control, the
provisions of this Section 8 shall continue to gdpl Executive if, during the period after the patZinnouncement and
immediately preceding the date such transacticonsummated or terminated, the Company terminatesugive’s
employment without Cause; provided, however, timasuch event, any amount payable under this Se8tighall be reduce
by any payments received pursuant to Section 3.4(b)

8.4. Defined Terms

(&) Change of Contral The term Change of Control shall have the meagingn to such term in the
Company’s 2013 Long Term Incentive Compensation,Ria in effect on the date hereof.

(b) Good ReasonThe occurrence of any of the following eventd tha Company fails to cure within 10
days after receiving written notice thereof fromeEutive (which notice must be delivered within 2/slof Executive
becoming aware of the applicable event or circuntsta (i) assignment to Executive of any dutie®mgstent in any
material respect with Executive’s position (inclglistatus, titles and reporting requirements), @itih duties or
responsibilities or inconsistent with Executivedgél or fiduciary obligations; (ii) any reductiam (A) Executive’s annual
base compensation, (B) targeted cash bonus contmenaa established by the Compensation Committethé full
calendar year immediately preceding the Changeootr@l, or (C) the annualized grant date fair vadfighe equity-based
awards granted to Executive in the year prior eoGfange of Control (with such annualized grane gatue determined in
the sole discretion of the Compensation Committ@e)any travel requirements materially greatearn Executive’s travel
requirements prior to the Change of Control; oy @ay breach of any material term of this Agreenimnthe Company.

9. Property SurrenderWithout limiting the generality of Section 5(djpon termination of Executive’s
employment for any reason, Executive shall immedijagurrender and deliver to the Company all priypivat belongs to
the Company, including any computers, phones, diiskes and any documents, correspondence andiafoemation, of
any type whatsoever, from the Company or any dagents, servants, employees, suppliers, andrexistipotential
customers, that came into Executive’s possessia@anipymeans whatsoever during the course of employme

10. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and constiruadcordance with the internal laws (and
not the law of conflicts) of the Commonwealth ohRsylvania.

11. Jurisdiction. The parties hereby irrevocably consent to thisgiction of the courts of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania for all purposes in connection with action or proceeding which arises out of or eddb this Agreement
and agree that any action instituted under thissAgrent shall be commenced, prosecuted and contomigdh the state or
federal courts having jurisdiction for matters mgsin Wyomissing, Pennsylvania, which shall be ékelusive and only
proper forum for adjudicating such a claim.




12. Notices. All notices and other communications requiregp@mitted under this Agreement or necessary or
convenient in connection herewith shall be in wgtand shall be deemed to have been given whendweiveéred, delivered
by guaranteed next-day delivery or sent by facsifwlith confirmation of transmission) or shall beedhed given on the
third business day when mailed by registered difiggl mail, as follows (provided that notice ofasfge of address shall be
deemed given only when received):

If to the Company, to:

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.
825 Berkshire Boulevard, Suite 400
Wyomissing, Pennsylvania 19610
Attention: Chief Executive Officer
Facsimile: (610) 401-2901

If to Executive, to:
His then current home address.
With a copy to his attorney:

Michael J. Salmanson
Salmanson Goldshaw, PC
2 Penn Center, Suite 1230
1500 JFK Boulevard
Philadelphia, PA 19102
Facsimile: 215-640-0596

or to such other names or addresses as the Corop&xgcutive, as the case may be, shall desigiyatetice to each other
person entitled to receive notices in the mannecifipd in this Section.

13. Contents of Agreement; Amendment and Assignm@iis Agreement sets forth the entire understandin
between the parties hereto with respect to theestibjatter hereof and supersedes all prior or cgmeaneous agreements
or understandings with respect to thereto. Thise@grent cannot be changed, modified, extended, daivgrminated
except upon a written instrument signed by theypaghinst which it is to be enforced. Executive mayassign any of his
rights or obligations under this Agreement. The @any may assign its rights and obligations undisrAlgreement to any
successor to all or substantially all of its assetsusiness by means of liquidation, dissolutraeyger, consolidation,
transfer of assets, stock transfer or otherwise.

14. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or applicatithrereof to anyone or under any circumstances ic
adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable in amsgliction, such invalidity or unenforceabilityahnot affect any other
provision or application of this Agreement whicindze given effect without the invalid or unenforskeaprovision or
application and shall not invalidate or render damreable such provision or application in any ofesdiction. If any
provision is held void, invalid or unenforceablahwespect to particular circumstances, it shalengeless remain in full
force and effect in all other circumstances. Initaid, if any court determines that any part of t8ets 5, 6 or 7 hereof is
unenforceable because of its duration,




geographical scope or otherwise, such court wilehthe power to modify such provision and, in isdified form, such
provision will then be enforceable.

15. Remedies No remedy conferred upon a party by this Agredrseimtended to be exclusive of any other
remedy, and each and every such remedy shall belatine and shall be in addition to any other reyngden under this
Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law oedpuiity. No delay or omission by a party in exangisany right, remedy «
power under this Agreement or existing at law oequity shall be construed as a waiver thereof,aarydsuch right, remedy
or power may be exercised by such party from tiongne and as often as may be deemed expediecessary by such
party in its sole discretion. Executive acknowlesitfeat money damages would not be a sufficient dgnfm any breach of
this Agreement by Executive and that the Compa@yl ble entitled to specific performance and injiretelief as remedies
for any such breach, in addition to all other reieg@vailable at law or equity to the Company.

16. Construction This Agreement is the result of thoughtful negitins and reflects an arms’ length bargain
between two sophisticated parties, each represégtedunsel. The parties agree that, if this Agreetnequires
interpretation, neither party should be considétiee drafter” nor be entitled to any presumptioattany ambiguities are to
be resolved in such party’s favor.

17. Beneficiaries/Reference€xecutive shall be entitled, to the extent petediunder any applicable law, to se
and change a beneficiary or beneficiaries to recaiwy compensation or benefit payable under threémgent following
Executive’s death by giving the Company writtenieethereof. In the event of Executive’s death purdicial determination
of Executive’s incompetence, reference in this &grnent to Executive shall be deemed, where apptept@refer to
Executive’s beneficiary, estate or other legal espntative.

18. Withholding. All payments under this Agreement shall be madgext to applicable tax withholding, and the
Company shall withhold from any payments under Agseement all federal, state and local taxesha<Company is
required to withhold pursuant to any law or goveenial rule or regulation. Except as specificallgyided otherwise in this
Agreement, Executive shall bear all expense of,mnsolely responsible for, all federal, state kedl taxes due with
respect to any payment received under this Agreemen

19. Requlatory ComplianceThe terms and provisions hereof shall be conuibon and subject to compliance
with all laws, rules, and regulations of all julisiibns, or agencies, boards or commissions thelenfing regulatory
jurisdiction over the employment or activities ofd€utive hereunde

20. Section 409A This Agreement is intended to comply with theuiegments of Section 409A and shall be
construed accordingly. Any payments or distribusiombe made to Employee under this Agreement ageparation from
service (as defined in Section 409A) of amountssifeed as “nonqualified deferred compensation”dorposes of Code
Section 409A and do not satisfy an exemption frbentime and form of payment requirements of Sect@®A, shall in no
event be made or commence until six months afteln saparation from service if Executive is a spediemployee (as
defined in Section 409A). Each payment of nonqigalitleferred compensation under this Agreement bhafeated as a
separate payment for purposes of Code Section 488 reimbursements made pursuant to this Agreestaait be paid as
soon as practicable but no later than 90 days Bftgrloyee submits evidence of such expenses tGdhgany (which
payment date shall in no event be later than tstediay of the calendar year following the calengsar in which the expense
was incurred). The amount of such
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reimbursements during any calendar year shall fiettsthe benefits provided in any other calendzaryand the right to ai
such benefits shall not be subject to liquidatioexchange for another benefit.

[Signatures on the Following Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, intendingeddgally bound, have executed this Agreement &seof
date first above written.

GAMING AND LEISURE PROPERTIES, INC.

By: /s/ Peter M. Carlino
Name: Peter M. Carlino
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

EXECUTIVE

/sl Steven T. Snyder
Steven T. Snyder
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Exhibit A
SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE

This is a Separation Agreement and General Rel@eseinafter referred to as the “Agreemert8tween (hereine
referred to as the “Employee”) and Penn Nationahidg, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the “Empl&yeln consideration of the mutual promi
and commitments made in this Agreement, and intenth be legally bound, Employee, on the one hand,the Employer on the other hand, a
to the terms set forth in this Agreement.

1. Employer and Employee hereby acknowledge tita¢ Company notified Employee/Employee notifiede t Company c
that Execu's employment pursuant to that certain Employmegte&ment executed on En{ploymen
Agreement”)would be terminated as of | . Upon thenigation of the Employment Agreement, Employeel W& subject to tr
obligations and be the beneficiary of the surviviremefits as set forth in Section [3.2(b)][8.1}tleé Employment Agreemett all as described in t
Employment Agreement. Employee’s last day of woilk ve

2. (a) When used in this Agreement, the watdleasees’means the Employer and all or any of its past aedent parent, subsidi
and affiliated corporations, companies, partnesshjgnt ventures and other entities and their gspulivisions, departments and units, and theit
and present directors, trustees, officers, managsners, supervisors, employees, attorneys, tagamd consultants, and their predeces
successors and assigns.

(b) When used in this Agreement, the word “CHimeans each and every claim, complaint, cause @nacnd grievance, whett
known or unknown and whether fixed or contingent] @ach and every promise, assurance, contracgsegation, guarantee, warranty, right
commitment of any kind, whether known or unknowd arhether fixed or contingent.

3. In consideration of the promises of the Empicset forth in this Agreement and the Employnmfgrteement, and intending to be leg
bound, Employee hereby irrevocably remises, reteand forever discharges all Releasees of and d&rmnmand all Claims that he (on behalf of ei
himself or any other person or persons) ever hatar has against any and all of the Releaseeshimhvhe (or his heirs, executors, administrato
assigns or any of them) hereafter can, shall or m@ag against any and all of the Releasees, foy oeason of any cause, matter, thing, occurrer
event whatsoever through the effective date of Algigeement. Employee acknowledges and agreeshida&laims released in this paragraph incl
but are not limited to, (a) any and all Claims lshea any law, statute or constitution or based artract or in tort on common law, and (b) any
all Claims based on or arising under any civil tiglaws, such as any Pennsylvania employment lawEitle VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (<
U.S.C. § 2000¢ et seq.), or the Federal Age Disoation in Employment Act (29 U.S.C. § 621 et s€hereinafter referred to as the “ADEA3NC
(c) any and all Claims under any grievance or camplprocedure of any kind, and (d) any and alir@$abased on or arising out of or related tc
recruitment by, employment with, the terminationhi$¢ employment with, his performance of any sawiin any capacity for, or any busir
transaction with, each or any of the Releasees.Idgmp also understands, that by signing this Agesgnhe is waiving all Claims against any an
of the Releasees released by this Agreement; prdyitbwever, that as set forth in section 7 (f)(€})of the ADEA, as added by the Older Worl
Benefit Protection Act of 1990, nothing in this A&gment constitutes or shall (i) be construed tcstitoiie a waiver by Employee of any rights
claims that may arise after this Agreement is etastby Employee, or (ii) impair Employeseright to file a charge with the U.S. Equal Empiean
Opportunity Commission (“EEOC")the National Labor Relations Board or any statenegeor to participate in an investigation or pratieg
conducted by the EEOC or any state agency. Nottaitioing the foregoing, Employee agrees to waive ley@e’s right to recover individual relief
any charge, complaint, or lawsuit filed by Employeenyone on Employee’s behalf.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement wilit release any right of Employee (x) in his catya@s a shareholder or owner in the Compar
any of its affiliates or with respect to any equatyards held by Employee, (y) to be indemnifieddiy act or omission in his capacity as an
employee, officer or director of the Company or ahijts affiliates (whether arising under contrabge governing documents of the entity, state la
otherwise), or (z) in respect of the benefits owedim under this Separation Agreement, and vasteefits under the Company’s

*As applicable




retirement or deferred compensation plans, or ddanaccrued long-term disability or health cagadfits under any welfare benefit plan.

4. In consideration of the promises of the Emetoset forth in this Agreement and the Employnfeggreement and intending to be leg.
bound, Employer hereby irrevocably remises, releasel forever discharges Employee and his heicgessors and assigns from any and all Cl
that the Employer ever had or now has though tfer&fe date of this Agreement. Employee furthatifies that he is not aware of any actue
attempted regulatory, EEOC or legal violations ydoyer and that his separation is not a resutetdliation based on any legal rights or oppos
to an illegal practice.

5. Employee and Employer covenant and agretormie each other or any of the Releasees for n€released by this Agreement
to waive any recovery related to any Claims covénethis Agreement.

6. Employee agrees to provide reasonable transissistance to Employer (including without liatibn assistance on regulatory mat
operational matters and in connection with litigajifor a period of six months from the executidriis Agreement at no additional cost; provic
such assistance shall not unreasonably interfette Bvhployees pursuit of gainful employment, cause a breadidotiary duty or duty of loyalty 1
any employer or entity, or result in Employee natihg a separation from service (as defined ini8e@09A of the Internal Revenue Code of 19
Any assistance beyond this period will be provitdgdnutual agreement and at a mutually agreed Eosployee further agrees that he will retur
the Employer all property in his possession, inclgdbut not limited to, keys, identification caralsd credit cards, files, records, publicationslras:
lists and documents that belong to each or anhe@Releasees. Such documents also include, wilingitation, any documents created or mad
Employee during his employment with the Employer.

7. Employee agrees that, except as specifigabyided in this Agreement and the Employment Agreet, there are no compensat
benefits, or other payments due or owed to him d&gheor any of the Releasees. Employee further adkdges that he has not experience
reported any work-related injury or illness.

8. Except where disclosure has been made bgdngpany pursuant to applicable federal or state tale or regulation, Employee agr
that the terms of this Agreement are confidential that he will not disclose or publicize the terofighis Agreement and the amounts paid or a¢
to be paid pursuant to this Agreement to any peoscentity, except to his spouse, his attorney,aeisountant, and to a government agency fc
purpose of payment or collection of taxes or apgiic for unemployment compensation benefits. EygBoagrees that his disclosure of the terr
this Agreement to his spouse, his attorney andhbi®untant shall be conditioned upon him obtairsiggeement from them, for the benefit of
Employer, not to disclose or publicize to any parso entity the terms of this Agreement and the am® paid or agreed to be paid under
Agreement. Further, Employer and Employee agreetaotake any false, misleading, defamatory or dagiag communications about the of
party (including without limitation Employes’products, services, partners, investors or padpand to refrain from taking any action desigmha
harm the public perception of the other party ereleasees. Employee further agrees that he $&es#id to Employer all information, if any, in
possession, custody or control related to any Jegahpliance or regulatory obligations of Emplogied any failures to meet such obligations.

9. The terms of this Agreement are not to besiclamed as an admission on behalf of either paigjther this Agreement nor its terms s
be admissible as evidence of any liability or wrdoigg by each or any of the Releasees in any jldieidministrative or other proceeding r
pending or hereafter instituted by any person tityerThe Employer is entering into this Agreemsately for the purpose of effectuating a mutu
satisfactory separation of Employee’s employment.

10. All provisions of this Agreement are sevégadnd if any of them is determined to be invaliduoenforceable for any reason,
remaining provisions and portions of this Agreensdll be unaffected thereby and shall remainlifdoce to the fullest extent permitted by law.

11. This Agreement shall be governed by andpnéted under and in accordance with the laws ahBgvania. Any suit, claim or cat
of action arising under or related to this Agreetrghall be submitted by the parties hereto to #wtusive jurisdiction of the courts of Pennsylve
or to the federal courts located therein if theyeotvise have jurisdiction.




12. This Agreement constitutes a complete amdl fiagreement between the parties and supersedésreptaces all prior
contemporaneous agreements, offer letters, neiguigator discussions relating to the subject maifethis Agreement. With the exception of
Employment Agreement, no other agreement shallilgiiy upon each or any of the Releasees, includingnot limited to, any agreement m
hereafter, unless in writing and signed by an effiaf the Employer, and only such agreement sleallibding against the Employer.

13. Employee is advised, and acknowledges thails been advised, to consult with an attorneyréesdigning this Agreement.
14. Employee acknowledges that he is signirgAlgireement voluntarily, with full knowledge of thature and consequences of its terms.

15. All executed copies of this Agreement andtpbopies thereof shall have the same force amttedind shall be as legally binding
enforceable as the original.

16. Employee acknowledges that he has been gipdn twentyene (21) days within which to consider this Agreetrigefore signing i
Subject to paragraph 17 below, this Agreemently@iome effective on the date of Employee’s sigeaa@reof.

17. For a period of seven (7) calendar dayo¥ahg his signature of this Agreement, Employee mayoke the Agreement, and
Agreement shall not become effective or enforceahld the seven (7) day revocation period has rexbiEmployee may revoke this Agreemel
any time within that seven (7) day period, by sagdi written notice of revocation to the . Such written notice 1
be actually received by the Employer within thatese(7) day period in order to be valid. If a val@/ocation is received within that seven (7)
period, this Agreement shall be null and void fbrparposes. Payment of the severance pay amoufbrsle in the Employment Agreement will
paid in the manner and at the time(s) describéddérEmployment Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have read, undedstand do voluntarily execute this Separation Agrer®t and General Rele:
which consists of four pages.

EMPLOYER EMPLOYEE

By:

Date: Date:




Subsidiaries of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Incta Pennsylvania corporation)

Name of Subsidiary

State or Other
Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

Exhibit 21

Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. (d/b/a Hollywood i@a8aton Rouge)
Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc. (d/b/a Hollywood Casireriiyville)

GLP Capital Partners, LLC

GLP Capital, L.P.

GLP Holdings, Inc.

GLP Financing I, LLC

GLP Financing Il, Inc.

GLP Midwest Properties I, LLC

Louisiana
Maryland
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference infétlewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-192@&rtaining to the 2013 Long Term Incentive Congagion Plan and
(2) Registration Statement (Form S-4 No. 333-196@&6Zaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Sudses;

of our reports dated February 27, 2015 , with resfzethe consolidated financial statements anéduale of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and
Subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internalrobotver financial reporting of Gaming and Leistmeperties, Inc. and Subsidiaries, included in this
Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Gaming and Leisureg@mies, Inc. and Subsidiaries for the year endeceihber 31, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, Peter M. Carlino, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ksaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to n
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfie periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))Herregistrant and have:

@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduiies tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by others withi
those entities, particularly during the period inigh this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimethort our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallyciéfé, or is reasonably likely to materially affette registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessparforming the equivalent functions):

@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

February 27, 2015 [s/ Peter M. Carlino
Name: Peter M. Carlino
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, William J. Clifford, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ksaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to n
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfie periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))Herregistrant and have:

@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduiies tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by others withi
those entities, particularly during the period inigh this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimethort our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallyciéfé, or is reasonably likely to materially affette registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessparforming the equivalent functions):

@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

February 27, 2015 [s/ William J. Clifford
Name: William J. Clifford
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report of Gaming &etsure Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) on FormKL®r the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014, as filed with the Securities Bxchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R§ph Peter M. Carlino, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Sect@®6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S&ktion 1350, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly @ets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of
the Company.

[s/ Peter M. Carlino
Peter M. Carlino

Chief Executive Officer
February 27, 2015




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002,
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report of Gaming &etsure Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) on FormKL®r the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014, as filed with the SecuritiasExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R§pb William J. Clifford, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Sect@®6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S&ktion 1350, that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly @ets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of
the Company.

[s/ William J. Clifford
William J. Clifford
Chief Financial Officer
February 27, 2015




